Public Document Pack

Cabinet

Wednesday 23 May 2012 at 2.00 pm

To be held at the Town Hall,
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH

The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend

Membership

Councillor Julie Dore Chair/Leader of the Council

Councillor Harry Harpham Deputy Leader/Homes & Neighbourhoods
Councillor Bryan Lodge Finance & Resources

Councillor Leigh Bramall Business, Skills & Development
Councillor Jackie Drayton Children, Young People & Families
Councillor Mary Lea Health, Care & Independent Living
Councillor Isobel Bowler Culture, Sport& Leisure

Councillor Mazhar Igbal Communities & Inclusion

Councillor Jack Scott Environment, Waste & Streetscene

Sheffield

City Council




PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING

The Cabinet discusses and takes decisions on the most significant issues facing the
City Council. These include issues about the direction of the Council, its policies and
strategies, as well as city-wide decisions and those which affect more than one
Council service. Meetings are chaired by the Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie
Dore.

A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council's website at
www.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance. The
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday, or you can ring on telephone no. 2734552. You
may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential
information. These items are usually marked * on the agenda.

Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Cabinet
meetings. Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further
information.

Cabinet meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Cabinet may
have to discuss an item in private. If this happens, you will be asked to leave. Any
private items are normally left until last. If you would like to attend the meeting
please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the
meeting room.

Cabinet decisions are effective six working days after the meeting has taken place,
unless called-in for scrutiny by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or referred to the
City Council meeting, in which case the matter is normally resolved within the
monthly cycle of meetings. Further information on this or any of the agenda items
can be obtained by speaking to John Challenger on 0114 273 4014.

If you require any further information please contact committee@sheffield.gov.uk or
call us on 0114 273 4014.

FACILITIES

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the
Town Hall. Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms.

Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the
side to the main Town Hall entrance.



CABINET AGENDA
23 MAY 2012

Order of Business

10.

1.

12

13.

Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements
Apologies for Absence
Exclusion of Public and Press

Declarations of Interest
Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be
considered at the meeting.

Minutes of Previous Meeting
To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 25™ April
2012.

Public Questions and Petitions
To receive any questions or petitions from members of the public.

Items Called-In For Scrutiny
The Deputy Chief Executive will inform the Cabinet of any items called in
for scrutiny since the last meeting of the Cabinet.

Retirement of Staff
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive.

Community Right to Challenge - Implementation of the provisions
within the Localism Act 2011

Joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and the Executive Director,
Resources.

Review of Care4you Resources Centres
Report of the Executive Director, Communities

Lowfield MyPlace (U-mix) Project
Report of the Executive Director, Children, Young People and Families

Learning Provision for Young People and Adults in Sheffield
Report of the Executive Director, Children, Young People and Families

Transforming Support for People with Dementia Living at Home
Report of the Executive Director, Communities

NOTE: The next meeting of Cabinet will be held on Wednesday 20
June 2012 at 2.00 pm



ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

You will have a personal interest in a matter if it relates to an interest that you have
already registered on the Register of Interests; relates to an interest that should be
registered but you have not yet done so; or affects your well-being or financial
position or that of members of your family or your close associates, to a greater
extent than it would affect the majority of people in the ward affected by the decision.

The definition of family is very wide and includes a partner, step-relations, and in-
laws. A “close associate” is someone whom a reasonable member of the public
might think you would be prepared to favour or disadvantage.

If you have a personal interest you must: declare the existence and nature of the
interest at the beginning of the meeting, before it is discussed or as soon as it
becomes apparent to you; but you can remain in the meeting, speak and vote on the
matter unless the personal interest is also prejudicial.

However, in certain circumstances you may have an exemption which means that
you might not have to declare your interest.

« You will have an exemption where your interest arises solely from your
membership of or position of control/management in a body to which you have
been appointed or nominated by the authority; and/or a body exercising functions
of a public nature (e.g. another local authority).

In these exceptional cases, provided that you do not have a prejudicial interest you
only need to declare your interest if you intend to speak on the matter.

« You will have an exemption if your personal interest is simply having received a
gift or hospitality over £25 which you registered more than 3 years ago.

When will a personal interest also be prejudicial?

Your personal interest will also be prejudicial if a member of the public who knows
the relevant facts would reasonably think the personal interest is so significant that it
is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest; and

i. either the matter affects your financial position or the financial position of any
person or body through whom you have a personal interest. For example, an
application for grant funding to a body on your register of interests or a contract
between the authority and that body; or

i. the matter relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence,
permission or registration that affects you or any relevant person or body with
which you have a personal interest. For example, considering a planning or
licensing application made by you or a body on your register of interests.



Exemptions: You will not have a prejudicial interest if the matter relates to:

iii.
iv.
V.
Vi.

the Council’s housing functions — if you hold a lease or tenancy with the Council,
provided that the matter under consideration is not your own lease or tenancy;
school meals, transport or travel expenses — if you are the parent or guardian of
a child of school age, provided that the matter under consideration is not the
school the child attends;

statutory sick pay;

Members’ allowances;

ceremonial honours for Members; or

setting the Council Tax.

If you have a prejudicial interest, you must:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant
agenda item) as soon as it becomes apparent to you.

Leave the room unless members of the public are allowed to make
representations, give evidence or answer questions about the matter. If that is
the case, you can also attend to make representations, give evidence or answer
questions about the matter.

Once you have finished making representations, answering questions etc., you
must leave the room. You cannot stay in the room whilst the matter is being
discussed neither can you remain in the public gallery to observe the vote on the
matter. In addition, you must not seek to improperly influence a decision about
the matter.

FURTHER INFORMATION

If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before
the meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take.

Advice can be obtained from Lynne Bird, Director of Legal Services on 0114
2734018 or email lynne.bird@sheffield.qov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Slclitegjg}lc SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL
g Cabinet Report 1 O

Report of: Richard Webb Executive Director Communities
Date: 23 May 2012
Subject: Review of the Care4you Resource Centres

Author of Report: Eddie Sherwood Director of Care and Support
Communities

Summary:

The City Council and NHS Sheffield are working together to improve the
experience of older people leaving hospital. As part of this both agencies have
been reviewing the 42 beds at the Council’'s 2 Care4you resource centres,
Hazlehurst at Jordanthorpe and Sevenfields at Wisewood.

The centres provide a service for people when they leave hospital who need
rehabilitation before they go home, usually up to a period of around six weeks.
Currently NHS Sheffield and Sheffield City Council jointly fund the centres
although it's acknowledged that the majority of their use is for intermediate care,
where the NHS has primary responsibility.

An options appraisal process was undertaken as a joint initiative between senior
officers of NHS Sheffield (NHSS) and Sheffield City Council (SCC). This
formally agreed process identified a number of options to be considered. An
evaluation of each option identified the preferred option to decommission the 42
beds in the current buildings and commission alternative care elsewhere based
on current needs and demand. The options within the appraisal, including the
preferred option, have been subject to a period of consultation which began on
6™ December 2011 and ended on 29" February 2012.

The NHS have stated their preference for a nursed bed model of service which
is informed by clinical experience and by the outcome of the consultation on
intermediate care which informed the development of IC strategy.

From an NHS and professional clinical perspective this means the services are
better placed where there are qualified nurses on site 24 hours a day. The
caredyou resource centres are only registered to provide residential care. Even
if the buildings were to remain open they would not be able to meet NHS
Sheffield’s requirement to provide nursing care

The proposal to procure alternative provision which better meets health needs
and to decommission the centres is also based upon the need to ensure
intermediate care is good value forfg 4nd the best way of meeting the
needs of the people who require these services. In addition the resource centre



buildings are old stock, they lack modern facilities for rehabilitation and there are
no en-suite bedroom facilities. Intermediate care could be provided by different
providers of nursing care offering much improved facilities which are more cost
effective.

Sheffield City Council has plans in place to accommodate people who require
long term social care support (approx 11 of the 42 beds- 20% of users) in other
more updated services in the independent sector. Not only would this provide
more suitable accommodation but would also offer those people a choice of
location in which they can be supported. NHSS is also committed to
commissioning alternative provision for the remaining 31 beds

A formal period of consultation commenced on the 6™ December 2011 and
concluded on 29" February 2012. (A copy of the full consultation report is
attached to this Cabinet report)

The consultation was as far as possible aimed to capture a wide and varied
audience and focussed on an opportunity for people to express their views and
concerns on the options appraisal, the preferred option, and to offer any
alternative solutions.

Affected individuals and organisations, (including organisations for older people
and carers) and members of the public were invited to comment using a variety
of methods, which included meetings, visits, letters and online opportunities

In general there was a mixed response to the consultation. Whilst there was
some support and acknowledgement of the financial issues leading to the
recommendation of ‘option 5’, and the model of IC, there were also concerns
which people felt should be taken in account if any reprovision is to occur.
Concerns were raised about

¢ Not sacrificing quality solely on the basis of cost,

e The quality and recognition the resource centres have

e The future of the workforce from a personal perspective and as a
valuable resource for the city,

e The capacity and capability of nursing homes to provide appropriate
IC and the fact that a planned 120 bed NHS Sheffield IC resource had
not been built as yet

e Critique of the options appraisal and review process.

Sheffield City Council and NHS Sheffield are fully committed to ensuring that all
concerns raised are fully considered and embedded as part of any new delivery
model. For example ensuring that the procurement process is robust and the
quality of care is monitored as part of internal monitoring processes.

Both the City Council and the NHS are totally committed to ensuring that
everyone who needs intermediate care will be able to receive this without delay
and no changes in services will be made that would put this commitment into
jeopardy

The Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee
considered this issues at its meeting on the 30" April 2012 (further details at
section 9) and recommends that Cabinet considers the Committee’s resolution
in coming to a decision.
The Committee: P 2

e supports the proposal detalleQ%Qhe Cabinet report to decommission the



two resource centres;

e recognises the value of the skill and expertise of the staff currently
employed in the resource centres, and requests that all efforts are made
to retain them;

e supports the aim expressed by NHS Sheffield, that in commissioning an
increased number of nurse led intermediate care beds from the
independent sector, the number of sites providing intermediate care is
not increased,

e recognises that in the case of these two resource Centres, running the
service as a staff mutual or social enterprise is not a viable option.
However this should be explored as an option in the earliest stages of the
development of any future proposals involving the decommissioning of
services

And furthermore

e expresses concern over the length of time it is taking to find a suitable
site for the 120 bed intermediate care facility that was proposed as part of
the Intermediate Care Strategy developed in 2008; and

o requests that Cabinet offers the Council’'s assistance to NHS
Sheffield in finding an appropriate site

o will be asking NHS Sheffield to come to the Committee in 6
months time to provide an update on progress, including whether
the newly established Clinical Commissioning Group will be
continuing with this strategy; and the selection criteria for the site.

This report seeks agreement from Cabinet to decommission the 2 resource
centres taking into account the outcomes of the recent consultation and the
Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee

Reason for the recommendations

e The NHS requires nursed beds for intermediate care which the resource
centres do not offer

¢ The NHS professional view is that nursed beds are more appropriate for
intermediate care where there are qualified nurses on site 24 hours a day.
Neither the resource centres nor the City Council can offer this service.

e The City Council buildings are no longer fit for purpose for those people
needing intermediate care and are provided at a comparatively high cost.

e Older people, their families and carers have told NHS Sheffield and the
City Council that they want to be supported at home or as close to home
as possible.

e The City Council and NHS Sheffield have given a commitment to secure
alternative services within improved facilities and which will deliver better
value for money.

e The requirement for the City Council to make savings whilst also
maintaining essential services.

Page 3



Recommendations

Cabinet

e Fully consider the outcome of the consultations and the Healthier
Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee

e Acknowledge both the council and NHS Sheffield will secure
appropriate alternative provision from the independent sector

e Approve the recommendation to proceed with the decommissioning of
the 2 resource centres and the proposals for the commissioning of
alternative care by the end of June 2012 or a date as soon as practical
after that date.

Background Papers:

NHS Sheffield Consultation Proposals - Improving Intermediate
Care Services in Sheffield -Care in your own bed 2008

Pathways for Intermediate Care in Sheffield Tom Downes 2008
Standing up for Sheffield Corporate Plan 2011-2014

Department of Health Intermediate Care Halfway Home 2009
Strategic Commissioning and Partnership Section Social Care Bed
Based Reablement " Hypothesis Testing" March 2010

Strategic Commissioning & Partnership ‘Best practice guide for
decommissioning’

Outcomes from the Review. SCC Care4you Resource Centres in
Sheffield January 2012

Caredyou Intermediate Care Resource centre consultation Report
March 2012

Category of Report:

OPEN

Page 4



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist

Financial implications

YES

Legal implications

YES

Equality of Opportunity implications

YES

Tackling Health Inequalities implications

NO

Human rights implications

YES

Environmental and Sustainability implications

NO

Economic impact

NO

Community safety implications

NO

Human resources implications

YES

Property implications

YES

Area(s) affected

ALL

Relevant Scrutiny Board if decision called in

Health and Community Care Scrutiny Committee

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?

NO

Press release

YES

Page 5




1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

21

2.2

2.3

24

Report Summary

In December 2011, the Executive Director of Communities in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Health Care and Independent
Living gave approval for a formal period of consultation on proposals
about the future of the two Care4you resource centres.

This report sets out the proposals for the future of centres. It

summaries the outcome of the consultation process
describes the proposal for reproviding the services
details the plan to de-commission the resource centres
sets out the associated impacts and risks

It describes the strategic context for services for older people in the
light of the transformation of Social Care and the proposals for the
reconfiguration of intermediate care by NHS Sheffield.

The report seeks agreement from Cabinet to decommission the 2
resource centres and to support the commissioning of alternative care
by the two commissioners (NHSS and SCC), taking into account the
information detailed in the report and the outcomes of the consultation.

What does this mean for the people of Sheffield?

NHS Sheffield’s plan for a new model of intermediate care has been
informed by learning gained from successful services from around the
country, and from a public consultation in 2008 where users and carers
of intermediate services were saying that they wished to be cared for in
their own homes or as close to home as possible rather than in
hospital.

People will still be able to access intermediate care services following
hospital discharge, therefore no one leaving hospital should experience
any change except they may receive this in a different place and in
beds which are designed to support nursing care. This remains the
case regardless of the outcome of the consultation or any decision to
decommission the resource centres.

We know that if we are able to arrange the right kind of support, within

the right setting and at the right time, we have better chance of helping
peoples longer term ambition of remaining independent and healthy for
as long as possible.

The decommissioning in the Wisewood area also opens up
opportunities for the building and land to be part of a wider

" NHS Sheffield Consultation Proposals - Improving Intermediate Care Services in Sheffield -Care in
your own bed 2008

Page 6



3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

regeneration plan which will benefit all citizens in that particular
community.

Outcomes and Sustainability

This proposals detailed in this report will ensure better value for money
as new services will be modernised and fit for purpose. There will no
longer be a need to maintain council owned buildings at high cost
which will ultimately reduce the council’s carbon footprint and in some
cases offer up opportunities for the wider regeneration in the particular
areas.

It is recognised however that any service change must meet with NHS
Sheffield’s objective of providing 120 nursed intermediate care beds in
the city? and that every individual has an opportunity to regain
maximum recovery in a non-acute setting. This will include a planned
return home (or to a suitable alternative residence) enabling the patient
to achieve optimum levels of confidence and independence

National and Local Policy Drivers

Sheffield Council is in the process of implementing the Government’s
vision of transforming adult social care by providing services that are
personalised and meet the needs of local citizens. These proposals
support these principles by offering updated and modern facilities and
opportunities for more individualised health care and support.

The proposals also link to and support the priorities and ambitions set
out in the City Council’s corporate plan’ Standing up for Sheffield’ by
supporting and protecting communities. This means we will be
invest;ng in efficient services that people and local communities really
need.

NHS Sheffield’s plans for intermediate care (IC) link to the Department
of Health’s proposal which emphasise the key messages about the
purpose of intermediate care as being to:*

- support alternatives to inappropriate acute hospital admission
- support early discharge after acute illness or surgery
- and delay admission to long term care

The growing demographic pressures are also a significant driver for
change so that our proposals and commissioning activity deliver
services which are more personalised, efficient and effective. These

2 Pathways for Intermediate Care in Sheffield Tom Downes 2008
8 Standing up for Sheffield Corporate Plan 2011-2014
* DH Intermediate Care Halfway Home 2009

Page 7



4.5

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

proposals are designed to do this and at the same time deliver high
quality support that improves individual outcomes and aspirations.

Both parties had indicated that they believed there would be
opportunities for making better use of the funding that had been
historically used to fund the 42 beds. For the city council, the
reductions in government funding was an important factor, particularly
as this could lead to a net reduction in expenditure whilst also
continuing to purchase the necessary alternative services.

Background

The Cabinet meeting in October 2010, agreed to;

5.1.1 Formally withdraw the PFI (Private Finance Initiative) proposals

for the development of two new resource centres as they were
no longer expected to meet the long term needs of older people.

512 A period of consultation on the proposal to develop a more

flexible model of support for vulnerable older people and
delegate the final decision on the decommissioning of
Ravenscroft resource centres to the Executive Director of
Communities in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Healthy and Independent Living and the Director of Legal
Services.

After taking full consideration of the feedback from the consultation
Ravenscroft Resource centre closed successfully on 31% March 2011.

In 2010, Cabinet also noted that a review would be needed on the
future of Hazlehurst and Sevenfields, with a report back as soon as the
review was complete. This is the said report.

Current Position

As part of the NHS Sheffield’s remodelling of intermediate care
services across the city it was agreed that the 42 resource centre beds
should only be only used for 24 hour non nursed (residential) patients.

Therefore the 2 resource centres only accept referrals from health
professionals and do not provide any services for permanent care
meaning no one lives there on a permanent basis. They provide short
term residential care but do not and are not registered to offer nursing
care.

The resource centres are registered to provide residential care with in
reach health care provided by NHS Sheffield. Even if the buildings
were to remain open they would not be able to meet NHS Sheffield’s
requirement to provide nursing care

Page 8



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

The intermediate care is provided in what were previously old City
Council residential homes, which were only ever intended to be used
for this purpose on a temporary basis. These are not modern buildings
lacking in en-suites and purpose designed facilities for intermediate
care. Any long term use of these buildings will require substantial
investment for maintenance purposes; for example, repair of a flat roof
at Hazelhurst and managing inefficient energy consumption at
Sevenfields. Both centres would also require general refurbishment.

The buildings are currently run and managed by the City Council and
employ approximately 62 staff across the two sites. Therapy,
Consultant Geriatrician and GP services are commissioned and paid
for separately by NHS Sheffield.

The beds are provided at a high cost in comparison to other similar
facilities in the market. Contributions to the running costs are based on
a historical arrangement between NHS Sheffield and social care as
part of the pooled budget arrangements for intermediate care. The
split of funding has been 1/3 funded by health and 2/3 funded by social
care. The table below shows the comparative costs for residential care
in other settings

. Weekl .
Settings Cost lBg d Variance

£'s £'s

Resource Centres 913

Resource centre beds

excluding in-reach health 755 -158

care

Residential Care Beds

excluding in-reach health 362 -551

care

Nursed Beds excluding in- 500 413

reach health care

Even though on occasions it is suggested that these beds may provide
reablement opportunities, a recent study and analysis undertaken by
social care has determined there is not a need/demand for social care
reablement beds® and that people would prefer to receive any social
care reablement as close to home as possible.. However it is
acknowledged that approximately 20% (approx 11 of the 42 beds) of
users require long term social care support and therefore plans are in
place to accommodate these people in other more updated services in
the independent sector. Not only would this provide more suitable

5 Strategic Commissioning and Partnership Section Social Care bed Based Reablement "
Hypothesis Testing" March 2010

Page 9



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

accommodation but would also offer those people a choice of location
in which they can be supported.

It costs approximately £1.5m to run the 2 resource centres each year
(£500k from NHS Sheffield and £1m from the social care). When the
council is facing significant reduction in its spending power, and the
NHS is experiencing costs pressures requiring significant efficiency
savings, it is essential that we reduce expenditure and secure better
value for money whilst still providing the services that people need.

Currently the average price per bed in the resource centres costs £755
per week (excluding in-reach health costs) and £913 per week
(including in-reach health costs) compared to £500 per week in the
independent sector for nursed beds including nursing care fees (which
NHS Sheffield but not the city council have to pay). This indicates the
current beds are not good value for money and more importantly are
unable to provide the services which are required, 24 hour nursed
beds.

NHS Sheffield currently commissions approximately 122 beds across
the city in various locations. Only 42 beds are provided by the council
and the rest are provided by private, voluntary and independent sector
organisations. The majority of other intermediate care beds
commissioned by NHSS offer nursing care and it is their intention that
this should be the model for the future

At the end of 2011 NHS Sheffield purchased an additional 20
intermediate care beds from the independent sector which did not
create any supply issues in the market. Below is a list of the current
nursed/residential intermediate care providers

Unit Beds

Beech Hill (Norfolk) 16
Beech Hill (Shrewsbury) 15

24
Pexton Grange

7
Jasmin Court 14
Northfields 14
Hazlehurst 22
Sevenfields 20
Woodhill Grange ( temp
residential interim) 10

Page 10



6.12

6.13

7.0
71

7.2

7.3

7.4

Total number of beds 142

There are proposals developing about the regeneration of the
Wisewood area, Sevenfields which is part of the area is not currently
included in this plan which is potentially a missed opportunity for the
wider community development.

Hazelhurst resource centre at Jordanthorpe was once used as a
community hub but this has declined since the development of the
White Willows extra care scheme which is almost adjacent to the
centre. White Willows has up to date facilities and is developing as a
community resource.

Proposals

The review of the units included evaluating options and was a joint
initiative between NHS Sheffield (NHSS) and Sheffield City Council
(SCC). This options appraisal was initiated to examine all the important
factors before making a recommendation.

The main options appraised are detailed below and the suitability of
each option was assessed against set criteria including meeting future
need, value for money, strategic fit, do-ability and strategic market
assessment

1. No change — maintain the current 42 jointly funded beds

2. Decommission the existing 42 beds and meet need through a
redesigned community based model

3. Decommission 21 beds and one building without any re provision

retaining 21 beds in the other building

Decommission 42 beds and 2 buildings without re providing care

Decommission 42 beds in the current buildings and commission

alternative care elsewhere based on current needs and demand

6. Decommission the 42 beds and provide the same care in new or
different buildings

ok

Based on the options appraisal it is recommended to decommission the
2 resource centres and for NHSS to commission a number of nursed
intermediate care beds, which reflects current need and demand
(option 5).

The reasons for this recommendation were based on

Meeting Future Need

e This option meets future need well, offering nursed beds for
intermediate care and flexibility to provide social care in line with
people’s choices

Potential savings

Page 11



7.5

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

e There may be savings to be gained from open procurement of
services.

e Thereis a risk to providing the beds in more than two locations
as this will increase the therapy costs if the service is
fragmented

e Staff redundancies would have to be considered against any
savings

Strategic Fit

e This is a strategic fit with the Intermediate Care Strategy where
there is a need to provide intermediate care in a nursed bed
based environment

e This is a strategic fit with social care commissioning plans,
where reablement beds are not deemed to be required

Do Ability

e This is do able within a reasonable timescale but it would need
to take account of the provision required, the type of patients/
type of beds required, location of re commissioned beds and
appropriateness

Strategic Market Assessment

e The independent sector could provide nursed beds and the

current market position suggest sufficient availability of beds

The proposed timescales for decommissioning the resource centres is
the end of June 2012. This takes account of any HR processes which
will be required, sufficient time to reprovide appropriate resources and
to meet with the council best practice decommissioning guidance®

Outcome of the Consultation

Summary of consultation

A formal period of consultation commenced on the 6™ December 2011
and concluded on 29" February 2012. (A copy of the full consultation
report is attached to this Cabinet report)

The consultation was as far as possible aimed to capture a wide and
varied audience and focussed on an opportunity for people to express
their views and concerns on the options appraisal, the preferred option
and to offer any alternative solutions.

Affected Individuals and organisations, (including those age related and
carers) and members of the public were invited to comment using a
variety of methods, which included meetings, visits, letters and online
opportunities

Opportunities have been provided for affected staff to have private
discussions with Trade Unions, Human Resources (HR) and
management.

6 Strategic Commissioning & Partnership best practice guide for decommissioning

Page 12



8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

Number of responses received

Communication type Number
e-mail 14
Telephone 5
Meeting 7
Letter 5
Web 168 hits

In general each communication was acknowledged or responded to by
letter or in the same format as it was received. UNISON, LINk and the
Carers Centre submitted questions and received detailed written
responses.

Attendees at meetings received verbal responses at the time, though in
addition both the Dignity and Older People’s Champions submitted
questions which were responded to alongside a written account of their
meetings.

In general there was a mixed response to the consultation. Whilst there
was some support and acknowledgement of the financial issues
leading to the recommendation of ‘option 5’, and the model of IC, there
were also concerns which people felt should be taken in account if any
reprovision is to occur. Concerns were raised about

¢ Not sacrificing quality solely on the basis of cost,

e The quality and recognition the resource centres have

e The future of the workforce from a personal perspective and as a
valuable resource for the city,

¢ The capacity and capability of nursing homes to provide appropriate
IC and the fact that a planned 120 bed NHS Sheffield IC resource
had not been built as yet

e Critique of the options appraisal and review process.

Sheffield City Council and NHS Sheffield are fully committed to
ensuring that all concerns raised are fully considered and embedded as
part of any new delivery model. For example ensuring that the
procurement process is robust and the quality of care is monitored as
part of internal monitoring processes, however the requirement for
ensuring IC is provided in appropriate facilities which meet need e.g. 24
hour nursed beds, must remain a priority.

Below is a summary of the outcome for the consultation for the different
groups:

Page 13



8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

Members of the public

Members of the public have been invited to comment using the
methods outlined above in (8.3)

Responses from members of the public (10)

Support for option 5

Opposition to option 5

Mixed response

Neutral responses

Review report request/no comment

S RN W =

The main reasons for opposition to ‘option 5’ were

e The need to retain the specialist and therapeutic resources provided
by the centres

e The capacity and capability of private sector nursing homes to
deliver an equivalent or better service

e Personal positive experiences of the resource centres.

The reasons given for supporting ‘option 5’ was

e Personal experience of using the centres and opinion about the
poor standard of one of the buildings.

Public consultation event

A public consultation meeting was held 31 January 2012 as part of the
consultation on the Sheffield City Council budget for 2012/13. The
event, focused on Adult Social Care which included the resource
centres and wider budget proposals that could affect new customers.

There was a mixed response from members of the public with some
support for ‘option 5’ .and some against the option. This was
particularly in terms of impact on staff and the potential loss of their
skills. There was also concern that any replacement service would
sacrifice quality for cost and is ineffective in providing intermediate
care.

Carers & age related voluntary groups and individuals

Responses were received from the Sheffield Carers Centre, Sheffield
LINK, older people’s champion, older people’s dignity champion and
SIF. There was a mixed response from the various groups. Concerns
were raised about

e The fragmentation of services and the loss of skilled staff,
experience and training.

Page 14



8.19

8.20

8.21

8.22

8.23

8.24

8.25

e The decision being made based on quality not just costs

e The quality and capability of private sector nursing homes to
effectively deliver intermediate care and rehabilitation given staffing
levels and expertise and culture

¢ Sufficient preparatory work being undertaken.

e The rational on the need for ensuite facilities

e The evidence base for recommendation, savings being overstated
and transparency about the use of savings

e The units providing respite for carers

e Clarity of plans for IC in the future

e Option 5 removes provision for older people and disabled adults

Comments and suggestions were made about reprovision which
included

¢ Alternative provision being the use of closed hospital wards or
closing one site

e The need to staff accordingly for rehabilitation and ensure quality
standards are maintained

e Having a specialised 10 bed wing in a nursing home specific for
rehabilitation

¢ Involving unpaid carers in individual cases

e There is investment in alternative models of IC such as support at
home

Groups using the centres

There are 2 community groups that regularly meet at Sevenfields.
These groups have been offered the opportunity to comment on the
proposals and offered reassurance that they will be given support to
find alternative accommodation should the need arise.

The Agewell group who meet at Sevenfields have expressed concerns
about the future of the group and loss of a local resource/meeting
place. They acknowledge the financial issues but suggest that support
for older and vulnerable people should be prioritised.

In addition service users that use the hearing aid services at the units,
have been handed letters about he proposals, 7 at Hazlehurst and 3 at
Sevenfields. No feedback received.

Tenants of bungalows local to Sevenfields

There are 12 bungalows in the grounds of Sevenfields which were
previously part of the unit, these are now separate and run by Pennine
Housing Association. Tenants of the bungalows expressed concern
about;

Page 15



8.26

8.27

8.28

8.29

8.30

8.31

8.32

8.33

e The future of the building/site, vandalism and disruption if the
building is demolished.
e The need to retain bed based IC as well as home based IC

Trade Unions

In a letter to Councillor Julie Dore one of the trade unions made
comments about the:

¢ Need for wide and transparent consultation about the
recommended proposal.

¢ Financial arguments for retaining the current provision.

e Accuracy of information in the joint review carried out by NHS
Sheffield and Sheffield City Council.

e Dependence on the private sector.

As part of the consultation, UNISON asked for information about the:

e Numbers and a profile of staff working in the resource centres and
details of management costs.

Previous maintenance costs.

Number of IC beds in the city, their location, providers, unit costs
and bed occupancy rates.

Consultation about remodelling the provision.

Options appraisal and report on ‘social care bed based reablement
hypothesis testing’.

Financial assumptions for IC beds in the medium term.

Resource Centre Staff

Staff main concerns were about their employment opportunities should
both the resource centres be closed and the impact of potential
redundancies and the process for VER/VS schemes.

Questions and comments have also been submitted about the
proposals. The focus of these has been about the value, success and
expertise of the resource centres and their staff

The requirement for en-suite facilities and disputing other building
refurbishment needs. The basis for the decision to recommend ‘option
5" and suggesting other potential areas for efficiencies and savings,
including alternative uses for the buildings.

For all staff affected by the proposed changes a number of
guarantees have been given by senior management and HR:

¢ No one would be disadvantaged or left vulnerable, all staff will be
treated fairly and equal in line with procedures.

Page 16



e There would be access to HR advice and trade union
representation on a regular basis

e There would be regular staff meetings to share information

e There would be opportunities to apply for VER/VS schemes and
continued advice and support would be given

e There would a skill audit of staff where appropriate.

8.34 Health Staff

8.35 Health staff currently providing support to both units, although not
directly affected by the proposed changes, have also been provided
information about the proposals and will continue to receive regular
updates as part of this process.

8.36 The main concerns have been about the reprovision of beds and where
they will be. They have received reassurances that their skills and
experience will be used in the replacement beds

8.37 Professionals

8.38 A number of Health and Social Care professionals involved in this area
of work were asked to contribute and passed comment on the
proposals:

e An opportunity to create a more flexible IC provision including
assistive technology.

e Resourcing the beds with sufficient therapy, nursing, medical and
social care staff to create flow.

¢ A more flexible approach to criteria and individuals timescales and
accommodation types.

¢ Flexibility in bed numbers to create capacity during periods of high
demand.

e Additional ideas to increase throughput.

e The need to create a good IC pathway and reprovision are
essential.

8.39 Members of Parliament

8.40 Megg Munn, MP for Sheffield Heeley responded seeking assurances
about retaining trained and experienced staff, maintaining good quality
options for the people of Sheffield and ensuring the quality of
reprovision.

8.41 Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)

8.42 The CCG (a committee delegated by the South Yorkshire cluster)
supports the recommended option for the future of the centres, to
decommission the two centres and commission alternative care to
meet future need and demand. Committee members recognised the

Page 17



8.43

9.1

9.2

9.2

9.3

9.4

benefits of intermediate care being provided from nursed beds and
agreed that, should the centres close, the CCG will work with the
intermediate care service to procure alternative capacity, with a similar
number of beds, in a nursed setting.

An officer’s response to the questions raised in the consultations is
available with this report.

Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny
Committee - 30" April 2012

At full Council on the 4 April 2012, a petition opposing the proposal to

decommission the two resource centres was presented with sufficient

signatures to trigger a debate. As a result of the debate, the issue was
referred to the Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny

Committee for detailed scrutiny.

At its meeting on the 19t April, the Committee considered the draft
Cabinet report, including the results of the consultation process and
identified the following areas to be considered at a special Committee
meeting to be convened on the 30™ April 2012:

e How the proposals fit with the strategic plan for intermediate
care in the city

e The reasoning for nurse-led intermediate care beds rather than
social care led beds.

e Alternative options for delivering intermediate care beds in the
city

e Capacity, capability and sustainability of the independent sector
to provide intermediate care beds

The Scrutiny Committee considered the reports attached at appendix B
and heard evidence from officers of the Council, NHS Sheffield and
Sheffield Teaching Hospitals Foundation Trust, as well as Trades
Union representatives from Unison and GMB.

Having considered the information presented to it, the Committee
concluded that the proposal to decommission the two resource centres
was in line with the City’s strategy for intermediate care — moving
towards providing more care in people’s own homes, and where bed
based provision is required, that it is nurse led; and recognises that
alternative models of provision involving the resource centres, for
example through a social enterprise or staff mutual, are not viable in
this case. The Committee was also keen to see progress made in
developing the 120 bed intermediate care facility, and will pursue this
with NHS Sheffield.

The Committee:

e supports the proposal detailed in the Cabinet report to
decommission the two resource centres;

Page 18



9.5

10.

10..1

1.

e recognises the value of the skill and expertise of the staff
currently employed in the resource centres, and requests that all
efforts are made to retain them:;

e supports the aim expressed by NHS Sheffield, that in
commissioning an increased number of nurse led intermediate
care beds from the independent sector, the number of sites
providing intermediate care is not increased;

e recognises that in the case of these two resource Centres,
running the service as a staff mutual or social enterprise is not a
viable option. However this should be explored as an option in
the earliest stages of the development of any future proposals
involving the decommissioning of services

And furthermore

e expresses concern over the length of time it is taking to find a
suitable site for the 120 bed intermediate care facility that was
proposed as part of the Intermediate Care Strategy developed in
2008; and

orequests that Cabinet offers the Council’s assistance to
NHS Sheffield in finding an appropriate site

owill be asking NHS Sheffield to come to the Committee in
6 months time to provide an update on progress, including
whether the newly established Clinical Commissioning
Group will be continuing with this strategy; and the
selection criteria for the site.

The Committee recommends that Cabinet takes this information into
account as part of its decision making process. The minutes from the
meeting are attached at appendix C

Risks

There is always a risk associated with the decommissioning of any
resource centre as this brings with it a degree of anxiety and
uncertainty for those affected. The service will handle the
decommissioning sensitively and professionally and will use its Best
Practice Guide for decommissioning, learning from previous
consultation and decommissioning of homes. It is acknowledged that
early, regular and open communication with those affected is critical to
successful decommissioning.

Financial Implications

There will continue to be recurrent investment in residential care by the
city council as a result of this proposed decommission, and this is likely
to be in the region of £250k pa (based on the Independent sector rate
for 11 beds) compared to the current investment of £1m. NHSS will
also purchase all the intermediate care beds it requires within a 24 hour
nursed setting, this will increase the NHSS spend on intermediate care.

Page 19



11.3

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

13

13.1

There will be financial implications with regard to the current staff group
and this may include redundancies or early retirement if there are no
opportunities for redeployment. The estimated cost of this based on the
current staff numbers including voluntary severance, early retirement or
redundancy is a one off cost of £650k.

There will be other one-of costs in relation to the potential demolition of
the two buildings and interim security costs. These will be funded from
the revenue and capital budgets as appropriate.

The full year recurrent net revenue savings for the council arising from
the decommissioning of the centres and the procurement of alternative
provision is estimated to be £650,000.

Human Resources Implications

It is recognised these changes will provide both opportunities and
concerns for staff and Trade Unions and staff have been fully consulted
on these proposals.

Both the Council and NHS Sheffield will follow their agreed HR
procedures for consulting and implementing the changes. Trade Union
representatives will also be invited to actively participate in the process
of redeployment of staff where this is available and practicable.

The closure could result in a reduction in the number of Council
managed staff currently employed within the units. It is the intention of
the Council to first seek alternative appointments for staff through
redeployment opportunities however; the Council at present has limited
options for redeployment of all staff and these plans could potentially
result in the Council having to explore other options through voluntary
severance, early retirement or redundancy. TUPE is unlikely to apply
to the 11 social care beds as these will be purchased on a spot basis
as and when required. There is a risk TUPE may apply to the 31 health
beds but this will require the model of procurement to be on a like for
like basis but this is unlikely at this stage.

Discussions are underway to determine the level and impact of the
reductions and explore all other options to mitigate the need for
redundancies.

Alternatives Considered
The options appraisal and review considered 6 options and has
produced clear conclusions and recommended Option 5. The second

preferred option would be to commission intermediate care in a
community model, but this does not meet need as well, there is

Page 20



13.2

14.

14.1

14.2

15

15.1

15.2

evidence to suggest bed based services are required alongside any
community model, additionally it would not provide value for money.
The 3" preferred option was to reprovide the current care in new or
different buildings, but this does not meet need well, would not resolve
the requirement for nursed beds and is likely to increase costs. The 4™
and 5™ preferred options sought to reduce the level of service and this
is not the intended outcome or again would not meet the requirement
for nursed beds. The least preferred option was no change and this
would not meet future needs well, would require significant investment
and would not be sustainable in the long term.

Feedback from consultations suggested a co-operative as a means to
deliver the service. It is very difficult to see how this would be able to
offer any solution to the need to relocate the services into more suitable
buildings, to provide intermediate care within nursing beds and to
provide this at less cost than presently. Over the years the council has
considered all options for its residential care buildings, including the
resource centres, and the cost of refurbishing and creating larger
bedrooms with en-suites was always prohibitive. It is more cost
effective to secure new build facilities which would be beyond the
capability of a cooperative, or to purchase intermediate beds from other
providers.

Legal Implications

The Council does not have a legal duty directly to provide intermediate
care itself. The centres do not provide permanent homes for the users,
nevertheless any interference in family and home life must be
considered alongside the practical and economic impact of
reorganisation of the services and be taken into account in the
decision making. However, users of the service should not experience
any changes in the availability of provision.

The Council’s consultation process has been planned appropriately
(including considering equality issues) with those who will be affected
by the proposals ensuring that they are offered the opportunity to
comment on the proposals and that the Council responds to the issues
raised by those who have been consulted

Environmental & Sustainability

It is not anticipated that there will be any negative impact upon the
environment caused by these proposals. Careful consideration will be
given to rationalising the use of any buildings ensuring that the
preferred locations are viable.

As previously mentioned the site offers development opportunities in
the wisewood area as a whole linking with those already being

Page 21



16

16.1

16.2

17

171

discussed, and there are also investment opportunities from a local
housing association and/or social care provider.

Equality of Opportunity

The Council’s consultation process has been planned appropriately
(including considering equality issues) with those who will be affected
by the proposals ensuring that they are offered the opportunity to
comment on the proposals and that the Council responds to the issues
raised by those who have been consulted

The Council must have regard to the public sector equality duty under
the Equality Act 2010 to eliminate discrimination that is unlawful and to
promote equality of opportunity. The Duty to Promote Disability
Equality: Statutory Code of Practice recognises that it will not always
be possible for authorities to adopt the course of action which will best
promote disability equality but when making the decision due regard
must be given to the requirement to promote disability equality
alongside other competing requirements. The Initial Equality Impact
Assessment attached addresses the need to ensure that the
reorganisation will not have a disproportionate impact on any one
group of people has and this will be further considered during the
consultation period.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been completed (see
Appendix A)

Recommendations

It is recommended that cabinet:-

Fully consider the outcome of the consultations and the Healthier
Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee

Acknowledge both the council and NHS Sheffield will secure
appropriate alternative provision from the independent sector
Approve the recommendation to proceed with the decommissioning of
the 2 resource centres and the proposals for the commissioning of
alternative care by the end of June 2012 or a date as soon as practical
after that date

Page 22



Page 23



Sheffield

City Council

Sheffield City Council
Equality Impact Assessment

Guidance for completing this form is available on the intranet
Help is also available by selecting the grey area and pressing the F1 key

Name of policy/project/decision: Proposals for the future of the 2 Care4you Resource
Centres - EIA UPDATED FOLLOWING STAKEHOLDER CONSULTATION (See also CDU
CDU-1112-318, Intermediate Care Resource Centres: pre-consultation EIA)

Status of policy/project/decision: New

Name of person(s) writing EIA: Jade Bann/Joanne Knight/Kay Thompson/Liz Tooke -
Sheffield City Council Communities and Tim Furness NHS Sheffield

Date: 1 March 2012 Service: Strategic Commissioning and
Community Development Section - Sheffield City Council ( SCC) and Commissioning - NHS
Sheffield

Portfolio: Communities

What are the brief aims of the policy/project/decision? Proposal to re commission the 42
intermediate care ( IC) beds in alternative provision outside of the City Council remit

Are there any potential Council staffing implications, include workforce diversity? Yes
this will affect City Council staff but not NHS Sheffield staff

Under the Public Sector Equality Duty, we have to pay due regard to: “Eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity and foster good
relations.” More information is available on the council website

Areas of possible Impact | Impact | Explanation and evidence

impact level (Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations.
This should be proportionate to the impact.)

Age -Select- | -Select- | Staff - high impact for staff but no disproportionate

impact on protected groups

The staff are predominately female, with people from
BME backgrounds, a wide age range, and includes
some people with disabilities.

At this stage, we do not know which individuals will be
affected by these proposals which may result in
compulsory redundancies or redeployment of staff. As
this proposal also links to a wider MER process across
caredyou any changes under this proposal will be
taken account of in the wider MER process.

In addition NHS Sheffield will need to communicate any
plan to re provide these facilties as this may have a
bearing on whether TUPE applies

Page 24



Areas of possible Impact | Impact | Explanation and evidence

impact level (Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations.
This should be proportionate to the impact.)
Patients/users of the service - Positive and Low impact
No one lives at the reource centres, they are used for
short term health rehablilitation
As the age range of those using the services is over
65, this proposal refers only to that age group. The
plan is to continue providing services for this group of
people in alternative provision with more updated
facilities, therefore the impact will be positive and low.
However, it will still be important to ensure that
individual patients support needs are managed
appropriately.
See 'summary of impact' section for details of
stakeholder consultation. There were no equalities
implications arising from the consultation.

Disability -Select- | -Select- | See comments re age

Pregnancy/maternity | -Select- | -Select- | See comments re age

Race -Select- | -Select- | See comments re age

Religion/belief -Select- | -Select- | No disportionate impacts are anticipated.

Sex -Select- | -Select- | See comments re age

Sexual orientation -Select- | -Select- | See comments re age

Transgender -Select- | -Select- | See comments re age

Financial inclusion, | Neutral | Low The decommissioning of the units may result in some

poverty, social tients and having to travel to oth f

justice, cohesion or patients and carers having to travel to other areas o

carers the city, so it will be important to ensure that individual
patients support needs are managed appropriately.

Voluntary, Neutral | High There are some community groups and one health

community & faith group using the facilities at one of the centres. It was

sector agreed that these groups and the use of the centre by
others would be subject to an exit strategy as part of
the decommissioning of Ravenscroft resource centre
(March 2011) The providers of these groups have
been included in the consultation process and any
megative impacts of the proposals will be minimised,
including where necessary appropriate support to re
locate.

Other/additional: Neutral | High There are small numbers of people from the community

Voluntary, dropping into the centre on an ad hoc basis for support

Community & Faith L with hearing aids. Consultation has taken place with

Fage 2o

Version 2.0 (November 2011)



Areas of possible Impact | Impact | Explanation and evidence

impact level (Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations.
This should be proportionate to the impact.)
Sector these people and there are already opportunities for

other similar services in the City

In one of the areas there is an opportunity to include
any decommissioning in the wider regeneration of the
area which will be a positive impact for the majority of
citizens in the area

Other/additional: -Select- | -Select-

Overall summary of possible impact (to be used on EMT, cabinet reports etc): These
proposals remain subject to decisions by Cabinet taking account of the consultation with
those affected. Although in the main those directly affected are City Council employees,

other stakeholders have an interest in the outcome of the decision.

Consultations on the proposals relating to the cared4you resource centres have been ongoing
since 6th December 2011 and more recently they were extended until 29th February 2012.
This was to allow people further opportunity to consider the options and issues and make
their views known. Apart from staff and their representatives from the resource centres the
consultation has included a wide range of stakeholders including:-

*Stakeholder groups/individuals, for example ; 50+, Voluntary Action Sheffield and network,
Carers Centre, Age UK, Agewell, Service Improvement Forum,Quality Improvement Network,
The Stroke Association (Sheffield), Older People’s Partnership Board, Dignity Champion, and
Older People Champion

*The Residents of bungalows built around Sevenfields

Kier staff working at resource centres

*Individuals who provide services to residents e.g. hairdressers and chiropodists

*Through a public consultation meeting held on 31st January 2012 about budget proposals
for 2012/13, particularly those where we don't have an obvious stakeholder/customer group
to consult with.

People have also been offered the opportunity to comment in a number of ways including in
writing, via a website, by e mail, telephone and also face to face discussion either on an
individual or group basis

Following the consultation period a report has been developed and is available to all who
would like a copy. This will also be submitted to Cabinet in April 2012 alongside the Cabinet
report. There were no equalities implications arising from the consultation.

Page 26

Version 2.0 (November 2011)



If Cabinet agree with the recommendation this would mean the closure of the 2 resource
centres which may have significant implications for the staff group. However this will depend

on a number of other links to this work including:-

- the wider MER process in care 4you
- the plan for NHS reprovision of the beds
These could both have an impact on the employment of the staff if the closure goes ahead,

however this may be of a postive rather than a negative nature.

For patients/service users, we don’t anticipate a disproportionate impact on any protected
groups if the preferred option is agreed, as the service will be reprovided by Health in
improved facilities in future. As the service provides intermediate care, there are no long
term residential customers who will be affected. However, the decommissioning of the units
may result in some patients and carers having to travel to other areas of the city, so it will be

important to ensure that individual patients support needs are managed appropriately.

The Cabinet Lead for Health, Care and Independent Living has received regular briefings and
information on the proposals and consultation. Ongoing dialogue will continue to be a key

influence on the proposals and any decisions.

If you have identified significant change, med or high negative outcomes or for example the
impact is on specialist provision relating to the groups above, or there is cumulative impact
you must complete the action plan.

Review date: Q Tier Ref Reference number:
Entered on Qtier: -Select- Action plan needed: Yes
Approved (Lead Manager): Joanne Knight = Date: 20/03/12

Approved (EIA Lead person for Portfolio): Date:

Does the proposal/ decision impact on or relate to specialist provision: yes

Risk rating: Medium

Action plan

Area of impact Action and mitigation Lead, timescale and how it
will be monitored/reviewed

Page 27

Version 2.0 (November 2011)



Area of impact

Action and mitigation

Lead, timescale and how it
will be monitored/reviewed

All groups

Staff

Information sharing and support will be
available for staff of all ages and the use of
the best practice desommissioning guidelines
will continue. All staff affected have been
given the opportunity to comment on the
proposals and offered individual and
collective meetings to voice concerns and ask
questions

Care4you will apply the Recruitment and
Selection process across the whole of
Care4dyou to implement these changes. The
Recruitment and Selection process will be
open and transparent, to ensure that staff with
protected characteristics are considered and
included throughout the process, having due
regard for equality issues.

Once all proposals have been considered and
approved, a full MER EIA will be undertaken
for Care4dyou.

The staff are predominately female, with
people from BME backgrounds, a wide age
range, and includes some people with
disablititles.

At this stage, we do not know which
individuals will be affected by these proposals
which may result in compulsory redundancies
or redeployment of staff. As this proposal also
links to a wider MER process across care4you
any changes under this proposal will be taken
account of in the wider MER process.

In addition NHS Sheffield will need to
communicate any plan to re provide these
facilties as this may have a bearing on
whether TUPE applies

Patients/users of the service

Support services users individual needs in
transition to new facilities

Consultation ended 29.2.12
but communication will
continue before and after any
Cabinet decision

After Cabinet decision 11"
April 2012

After Cabinet decision 11" April
2012

After Cabinet decision 11"

April 2012

Page 28

Version 2.0 (November 2011)



Area of impact

Action and mitigation

Lead, timescale and how it
will be monitored/reviewed

Cohesion Work to continue subject to Cabinet decision Ongoing and by end June 2012
to ensure any proposals fit with the planned
regeneration in the Wisewood area

VCF Communication and discussion with the Ongoing
voluntary sector will continue, particularily
where they are directly affected by any
changes.

-Select-

-Select-

Other

-Select-

-Select-

-Select-

-Select-

-Select-

-Select-

Approved (Lead Manager): Joanne Knight/Tim Furness Date: 20/03/12
Approved (EIA Lead Officer for Portfolio): Date:

Page 29

Version 2.0 (November 2011)



Appendix B (1 of 5)

Sg?g}?}ld Report to Healthier Communities and

Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee
16 April 2012

Report of: Eddie Sherwood, Director of Care and Support,
Communities

Subject: Review of Caredyou Resource centres

Introduction.

During December 2011 and February 2012, the council undertook formal
consultation on a proposal to decommission Hazlehurst and Sevenfields, two
resource centres managed by the council’s Car4you service.

The detailed report on the consultations, and the reasoning behind the proposal
was to be considered by cabinet on the 11" April. Papers were sent out as
scheduled.

On the 4" April a petition was presented to full council opposing this proposal
and council referred the petition to this scrutiny committee.

Cabinet is likely to consider the matter in May and will be informed by the
consultations so far, the petition, the council debate and the deliberations of this
scrutiny.

Information available to Scrutiny.

In order to assist scrutiny to consider this issue, attached to this paper are all
the documents that were prepared for Cabinet.

The cabinet report.

The consultation report.

Officer responses to the consultations.

The equalities impact assessment.

In addition, the wording of the petition is attached, and a further submission
from the trade unions to the Leader and officer responses.

All this material provides scrutiny with a large amount of information and it
includes detailed consultation responses from organisations such as LINk, the
Dignity Champion, the Older People Champion, the Carers Centres, and
Trade Unions.

In view of this, members may consider that it is not necessary to‘re-run’ the
consultations, and rather, to
¢ hear the views and evidence of the petitioner

Page130



¢ to use the material and expertise at hand, to focus in and scrutinise
specific issues identified in the consultations

¢ to identify where members feel more information and discussion is
required, before coming to a considered view.

If this is acceptable to members, then it should be possible to complete the
scrutiny exercise this month.

Some potential key areas to consider.

As the senior officer leading on the future of the resource centres, | attended
the full council meeting and listened to the points being made by the petitioner
and elected members.

From my observations, some key themes emerged and scrutiny might like to
explore these, and others, in more detail.

There were

e Is there a strategic plan in the city for intermediate care and how does the
proposals for the resource centres fit with this?

e The reasoning for requiring nurse-led intermediate care beds rather than
social care-led beds.

e How confident is the council and the NHS about the capacity, capability and
sustainability of the independent sector to provide intermediate care
services, rather than the council or the NHS.

e Are there any alternative realistic options for delivering intermediate care
beds that officers have not considered or presented to members as
potential alternative options? The example given in the debate was a social
enterprise or employee cooperative.

e If the centres were to decommission the resource centres, is there a
coherent plan for replacing the resource centre beds and can the council be
assured that demand arising from hospital discharges will be met?

Recommendations.
Members are asked to identify the process and key elements of the focus of its
scrutiny, taking into account the information provided; and the suggestions

above.

Members are asked to identify a timescale for this scrutiny noting that there will
be additional budget implications arising from delays in decision-making.

Members are also asked to consider which key individuals should be asked to
attend, for example, officers of the council and the NHS, and lead members.

Page 31



Appendix B (2 of 5)
NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group

NHS Intermediate Care

Position Statement, in relation to commissioning proposals for Hazelhurst and
Sevenfields Resource Centres

The National Service Framework for Older People (Department of Health 2001) defined
Intermediate Care as “a new layer of care between primary care and specialist
services” which would provide integrated services to;

. Promote faster recovery from iliness

. Prevent unnecessary acute hospital admissions

. Support timely discharge

. Maximise independent living

Intermediate care is a term used to describe a range of services with the following
aims:

. To provide short term rehabilitation, including nursing and therapy, to enable
people to fully recover following hospital treatment, so they can regain their
independence and prevent premature needs for ongoing social and health care,
including placement in care homes. No one should be placed in long term care
without having the opportunity for rehabilitation

. To facilitate early discharge from hospital or residential care settings, as part of
the pathway home

. To provide care in or as near to people’s homes such that hospital can be
avoided

There are a wide range of services in Sheffield that are described as intermediate care,
these include community based services and bed based services.

This position paper is intended to cover the areas of enquiry identified by the Scrutiny
Committee:

1. NHS strategic plans for intermediate care

2. The plan for replacing resource centre beds

3. Reasoning for requiring nursed intermediate care beds

4. Capacity, capability and sustainability of independent sector provision

1. NHS Sheffield CCG position on Intermediate Care

In May 2008 the NHS Sheffield Board approved a strategic direction which described a
new model of intermediate care in the city. This was intended to reduce inequality of
service delivery and increase the number of patients who could access the
intermediate care service.

The rationale for the service change was to improve the organisation of services, to

provide care at home in the first instance and where that is not possible, to provide care
in a new community facility.

Page 32



The clinical evidence to support the reconfiguration of intermediate care services in
Sheffield was based on the results of three months multi-agency work carried out in
2008 by Dr Tom Downes (Medical Advisor to the intermediate care programme) and
Margaret Gibson (Programme Manager for Intermediate Care).

A three month consultation carried out in 2008 showed widespread support for the
proposed model from both the general public and professionals.

The Intermediate Care programme approved by the Board had three main
components:
. A single integrated and coordinated “care in your own bed” service for working
age adults and older people including those with mental health needs
« A new single site 120 bedded unit intended to bring together the existing
dispersed bed capacity (modelling undertaken in 2008 was based on bringing
together the existing 119 beds. By assuming a level of reduction in length of stay
offset by the projected increase in the elderly population, it was estimated that
the proposed 120 bedded unit would be about the right size)
. The procurement of a service in the community facility to provide intermediate
care to patients either as a “step down” from acute hospital care or as a “step
up” from their own homes

The Board approved the award of the “care in your own bed” contract to a consortium
of NHS and independent sector providers, led by Sheffield PCT Provider Services in
November 2009. The contract value is £37.5M for the five years from 2010 to 2015.

Progress to date

Care in your own bed

This service has been successfully commissioned and on a monthly basis is providing
care for 400 people at home. Data shows that around 175 admissions to an acute bed
are avoided every month. There has also been a reduction in the placement of patients
into long term care from intermediate care.

The 120 bedded unit

The development of a single bedded facility providing consistent care pathways
represents a significant change to the way in which intermediate care needs are
currently met. To test the concept, a 30 bedded prototype unit was established at
Beech Hill in April 2009 focussing on ‘step down’ specialist Stroke and Ortho-medical
rehabilitation. This unit has enabled testing, evaluation and proof of concept of the
proposed bedded facility. It is clear from clinician feedback that this model of care is
effective in delivering high quality clinical support and confirms the benefits of
commissioning a single site solution to provide specialist intermediate care.

Community First Sheffield Ltd (LIFT Co) has been instructed to search for a site in
Sheffield suitable for the development of a new Intermediate Care Facility. The site
requirement is approximately 3.2 to 3.7 acres. Identification of the appropriate site is
proving a significant challenge. The LIFT Co has undertaken a comprehensive search
for an appropriate site. 21 options have been assessed, many of them several times,
but NHS Sheffield CCG has yet to identify a site upon which to progress the 120
bedded facility. The key issues with unsuitable sites have been size, availability,

Page 33



access and public transport links. The sites are not named in this document as the
information is commercially confidential.

Independent Sector and Sheffield City Council Resource Centre Beds

Currently community beds are spread over a number of sites, making it relatively more
expensive and fragmented. The sites are the Beech Hill prototype, independent sector
nursing homes and Sheffield City Council Resource Centres.

The beds in the independent sector do not operate to the level of the prototype. In
particular, lengths of stay are longer. None provide step up care from the community.

2. Proposal to commission replacement intermediate care beds

The two resource centres (42 beds in total) are funded by contributions on a historical
split between health and social care as part of the pooled budget arrangements for
intermediate care. The beds are used for people who do not require 24 hour nursing
care. Therapy and nursing services provided into these beds are paid for and provided
by health.

An analysis of the bed usage of the resource centres was undertaken in 2011 to
improve understanding of the split between intermediate care and residential care
provision. The findings showed 74% intermediate care and 26% Sheffield City Council
assessment for longer term care (this equates to 31 intermediate care beds and 11
residential care beds)

Following the proposal to de-commission Hazelhurst and Sevenfields, NHS Sheffield
CCG is clear that there is a need to re-provide the 31 intermediate care beds in order to
maintain the number of intermediate care health beds required in Sheffield. It is also
clear that these beds should be commissioned as intermediate care with 24 hour
nursing in order to better meet people’s health needs whilst they are receiving therapy
services in order to maximise outcomes.

Firm plans for commissioning replacement beds have not been confirmed by the CCG,
pending the decision on the future of the resource centres. Discussions are underway
with Sheffield Teaching Hospitals with a view to STH commissioning those beds on
behalf of the CCG, in the same way as it currently commissions the other Independent
Sector beds providing intermediate care.

The 31 beds will be provided within a small number of independent sector nursing
homes. STH will provide the therapy and case management input into the homes. The
care provided and outcomes delivered will be monitored according to the performance
measures currently in place for similar intermediate care facilities.

The CCG and partners will review and evaluate intermediate care provision within the
Right First Time city wide unscheduled care programme. Intermediate care provision
will be incorporated into Right First Time project 1 as part of the work to ensure people
are supported to remain in their own home for as long as possible and as
independently as possible.

Page 34



3. Rationale for nursed beds

Work carried out in 2008 by Dr Tom Downes and Margaret Gibson explored models of
intermediate care across the UK. Expert clinical opinion concluded that nursed beds
on one site delivered optimal outcomes for patients. The Beech Hill prototype has
provided an opportunity to evaluate the effectiveness of the model.

A clinical evaluation of the Beech Hill intermediate care prototype was carried out in
2010 and concluded that:

. Patients entering Beech Hill are frail with high levels of medical co-morbidities
and mental health problems (diagnosed and undiagnosed)

57% of patients had more than three co-morbid conditions, in addition to the
primary medical diagnosis resulting in admission to Beech Hill. A further 37%
had two or three co-morbidities and only 6% were recorded as having no or one
co-morbidity (excluding any mental health diagnosis)

. High levels of mental health needs within the patient population can be
associated with more complex discharge pathways

The evaluation showed that mental health problems were common; a third of
patients had a diagnosis of depression and 28% had a diagnosis of dementia. In
addition, a number of patients had a mental test score indicative of dementia
during their stay. Overall 68% of Beech Hill patients audited during the
evaluation had one or more mental health issues

Both these points indicate the need for 24 hour nursed care in health intermediate care
beds. Despite the frailty and complexity of the patients admitted, the model of care
used within Beech Hill (including 24 hour nursing) provides good outcomes for patients
with only 6% of patients being discharged to 24 hour care.

Comparison of discharge outcomes over the last six months from the current
intermediate care sites shows that the resource centres achieve lower rates of people
returning to their own home than the Beech Hill prototype or nursed beds, as shown
below:

Unit Discharges Home Care Hospital | Deceased/ Percent

Home other Home
Beech Hill — Norfolk 48 40 5 3 83%
Beech Hill — Shrewsbury 52 33 15 4 63%
Pexton Grange 83 62 5 15 1 75%
Jasmin Court 45 22 5 14 4 49%
Northfields 21 13 1 6 1 62%
Sevenfields 62 18 26 17 1 29%
Hazelhurst 72 39 16 17 54%
Woodhill Grange 23 15 8 65%

The Beech Hill prototype model is therefore the one which will be adopted for the
planned 120 bed facility. It is the preferred model for re-commissioning the 31 beds
currently in the resource centres. In the short term, the beds will be commissioned by

Page 35




the Sheffield Teaching Hospitals’ NHS Foundation Trust (STH) Primary and Community
Care Group on behalf of NHS Sheffield / CCG. In the medium to long term these beds
will be included in the city wide model for the provision of nursed intermediate care
beds.

The 31 beds will provide intermediate care nursed beds for step down care for patients
in the acute hospital, including patients with non-complex mental health needs,
especially those with dementia where their primary need is for general intermediate
care.

4. Capacity, capability and sustainability of independent sector provision

The STH Intermediate Care service has established good working relationships with
the care homes that currently provide intermediate care beds. The service is confident
that the additional beds can be provided by a combination of existing providers offering
more beds and, possibly, a small number of new providers offering beds. It is intended
that the total number of providers offering intermediate care will not exceed the current
number, as supporting a larger number of sites with therapy and other clinical input
would reduce the efficiency of the NHS provided healthcare input and distil the
expertise in providing nursed care.

With regard to sustainability and quality, a number of measures have been taken over
the previous 2 years to ensure that the service specification for the providers ensures
more robust monitoring, accountability and reporting, including audit, governance
meetings and compliance with STH CS infection control procedures.

Contracts set out quality standards and, for 2012/13, are prescriptive about staffing
requirements. There is a very close working between NHS Sheffield, the STH
Intermediate Care service and the local authority contract section. This has already
provided the opportunity for exchanging information, develop joint inspection visits,
coordinate findings and monitor response and compliance with requirements. The care
homes are within the scope of the Quality in Care Homes team.

Tim Furness
Associate Director of Business Planning and Partnerships
April 2012

Page 36



Appendix B (3of 5)

Sheffield City Council
Communities

SCC Officer responses to
questions from Healthier
Communities & Adult
Social Care Scrutiny
Committee

For Scrutiny Meeting on

30 April 2012
Sheftield

City Council

Page 37



Area for scrutiny — Reasoning for nurse led intermediate care
rather than social care led beds

1. Is there demand for social care led beds? Could the centres be used for
this?

Neither of the current resource centres are a permanent home for anyone. In
relation to social care reablement ( temporary support), a recent study and
analysis undertaken by social care has determined there is not a need/demand
for social care reablement beds' and that people would prefer to receive any
social care reablement as close to home as possible.

The City Council has two services which provide social care reablement support
to people in their own homes. The Short Term Intervention Team (STIT)
provides reablement for those people discharging from hospital, and community
reablement service provides reablement support to people in crisis in the
community to avoid hospital admissions.

Both these services help people to build confidence and independence in the
environment in which they normally live.

Keeping people in their own homes for reablement minimises the disruption to
their lives and enables them to be reabled in their normal place of residence and
is thought to enable them to improve and gain confidence more quickly.

2. What are the financial implications?

There will continue to be recurrent investment in residential care by the city
council as a result of this proposed decommission, and this is likely to be in the
region of £250k pa (based on the Independent sector rate for 11 beds)
compared to the current investment of £1m. NHSS will also purchase all the
intermediate care beds it requires within a 24 hour nursed setting.

The City Council also invests in social care reablement on a recurrent basis this
includes approximately 7.5 m per annum to reablement at home services and
approximately 320k per annum to the community access and reablement team.
Both these areas have been recognised as a priority for the council both in
investment terms and because of their known effectiveness in maintaining
independence and keeping people at home for as long as is possible.

1 Strategic Commissioning and Partnership Section Social Care bed Based Reablement "
Hypothesis Testing" March 2010

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.2 of 11
Revision No.: 0 Page 38



There will be financial implications with regard to the current staff group and this
may include redundancies or early retirement if there are no opportunities for
redeployment. The estimated cost of this based on the current staff numbers
including voluntary severance, early retirement or redundancy is a one off cost
of £650k.

There will be other one-of costs in relation to the potential demolition of the two
buildings and interim security costs. These will be funded from the revenue and
capital budgets as appropriate.

The full year recurrent net revenue savings for the council arising from the
decommissioning of the centres and the procurement of alternative provision is
estimated to be £650,000.

3. How and why does this affect the viability of the resource centres?

The proposal to decommission the 42 beds will ensure better value for money
as new services will be modernised and fit for purpose. This is not a reflection of
the quality of service in the resource centres as we know this is good however,
the proposals are about a new way of providing the current service. This will
mean there will no longer be a need to maintain council owned buildings at high
cost which will ultimately reduce the council’s carbon footprint and in some
cases offer up opportunities for the wider regeneration in the particular areas.

Both the city council and NHS Sheffield have indicated that they believe there
are opportunities for making better use of the funding that had been historically
used to fund the 42 beds. For the city council, the reductions in government
funding was an important factor, particularly as this could lead to a net reduction
in expenditure whilst also continuing to purchase the necessary alternative
services. See previous comments about priorities for investment.

The resource centres are registered to provide residential care with in-reach
health care provided by NHS Sheffield. Even if the buildings were to remain
open they would not be able to meet NHS Sheffield’s requirement to provide
nursing care

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.3 of 11
Revision No.: 0 Page 39



Area for scrutiny —Alternative options for delivering intermediate
care beds

4. What alternative options were considered and why were they dismissed?

Options Appraisal

A robust options appraisal process to consider a number of options was
undertaken as a joint initiative between officers of NHS Sheffield (NHSS) and
Sheffield City Council (SCC). It is a formally agreed process where all the
participants bring their knowledge and expertise to agree, the options to be
considered, benefit criteria, scores and weightings. The weightings applied to
each criterion were officer recommendations and subject to senior management
approval.

The main options appraised are detailed below and the suitability of each option
was assessed against set criteria including meeting future need, value for
money, strategic fit, do-ability and strategic market assessment

The 6 options were

1. No change — maintain the current 42 jointly funded beds
Decommission the existing 42 beds and meet need through a redesigned
community based model

3. Decommission 21 beds and one building without any re provision retaining
21 beds in the other building

4. Decommission 42 beds and 2 buildings without re providing care

5. Decommission 42 beds in the current buildings and commission alternative
care elsewhere based on current needs and demand

6. Decommission the 42 beds and provide the same care in new or different
buildings

Based on the options appraisal it is recommended option 5 - to decommission
the 2 resource centres and for NHSS to commission a number of nursed
intermediate care beds, which reflects current need and demand

The main reasons for recommending option 5 are:-

¢ NHS Sheffield has determined that it wants IC to be provided in nursing
homes where there is 24 hour nursed care. The resource centres are
unable to do this as they are only registered to provide residential care.

e |f the resource centre buildings were to continue they would require
investment to both maintain them and to bring them up to a standard which
people expect and which is suitable in which to achieve the longer term
outcomes for IC.

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.4 of 11
Revision No.: 0 Page 40



e The resource centres do not offer value for money. There is potential for
significant savings to be made as part of this proposal as the current cost
per bed is high in comparison to other similar beds in the independent
sector.

The preference for nursed beds is informed by clinical experience and by the
outcome of the consultation on intermediate care which informed the
development of IC strategy. This means procuring alternative provision which
better meets health needs and to ensure intermediate care is good value for
money and the best way of meeting the needs of the people who require
these services.

From an NHS and professional clinical perspective this means the services
are better placed within a nursing home where there are qualified nurses on
site 24 hours a day. The care4you resource centres are only registered to
provide residential care. In addition the resource centre buildings are old
stock, they lack modern facilities for rehabilitation and there are no en-suite
bedroom facilities. Intermediate care could be provided by different providers
of nursing care offering much improved facilities which are more cost effective

The alternatives considered and reasons they weren’t chosen

The options appraisal and review considered the 6 options which produced
clear conclusions and recommended Option 5. The second preferred option
would be to commission intermediate care in a community model, but this
would not necessarily meet the known demand, as there is evidence to
suggest bed based services are required alongside any community model,
additionally it would not provide value for money. The 3" preferred option
was to reprovide the current care in new or different buildings, but this does
not meet need well, would not resolve the requirement for nursed beds and is
likely to increase costs. The 4™ and 5™ preferred options sought to reduce the
level of service and this is not the intended outcome or again would not meet
the requirement for nursed beds. The least preferred option was no change
and this would not meet future needs well, would require significant
investment and would not be sustainable in the long term.

Other suggested alternatives

Feedback from consultations queried the potential solutions of a social
enterprise or employee co-operative as a means to deliver the service.

Officers have never considered viable an option for one or both of the two
resource centres transferring to a new legal entity, such as a social
enterprise, Co-operative or Mutual. The reasons for this are several.

The entity would be committing itself to an unsustainable and uncompetitive
cost base arising from

e Inheriting employee costs associated with TUPE
e Additional capital investment (and subsequent loan repayments) required
to the buildings, both in terms of maintenance, refurbishment and offering

Issue Date: Issue No.:1

Page No.5 of 11
Revision No.: 0 Page 41



en-suite and modern facilities, increasing the bed capacity and
community facilities, and to operate as a care home registered to provide
nursing care.

e Additional revenue investment needed to employ qualified nurses as
managers and carers.

The entity would have no guaranteed income from the commissioners and
would have to compete for contracts with other providers for business through
the tendering process. This is within the context that

e The plan to replace the current intermediate care beds with a new facility,
thus requiring the resource centres to find alternative use of their beds
within a few years.

e The reality that the commissioners are able to purchase appropriate
intermediate care bed provision from other providers and at considerable
less cost than the resource centres.

e If the centres were to diversify their provision, the growth area is not
traditional residential respite care but more individually tailored and non-
building based innovative support packages made possible by self directed
support, personal budgets and in the next couple of years, personal health
budgets as well.

e The council and the NHS will continue to focus on increasing the
opportunities when people can receive their ‘step-down’ or ‘step-up’ care in
their own home rather than in a residential setting.

The review of the resource centres alongside the changing landscape of
health and social care means that it is extremely unlikely that an organisation,
or group of like-minded people, could construct a viable business case to
attract financial loans or investment, based on the continuing use of the
resource centres. To do this, the business case would require financial
forecasts setting out sustainable income expected and which would cover the
expenditure anticipated over a suitable period. There is no evidence that this
could be achieved.

It is perhaps also worth noting the option to transfer to other organisations
was explored previously by the council within the wider strategic review to
determine the future of all the council’s residential care homes for older
people At the time, and this has not changed substantially, the cost of
modernising the buildings and bringing them up to competitive standards,
such as larger bedrooms and en-suite facilities, was not cost effective,
compared to investing in new, state of the art facilities with increased bed
capacity.

5. Are there any other alternatives to replacing the provision in the
independent sector?

See answer to question 4

It has not been possible to identify other alternatives other than solutions
based on the need to relocate the services into more suitable buildings, to

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.6 of 11
Revision No.: 0 Page 42



provide intermediate care within nursing beds and to provide this at less cost
than presently. Over the years the council has considered all options for its
residential care buildings, including the resource centres, and the cost of
refurbishing and creating larger bedrooms with en-suites was always
prohibitive

Sheffield City Council has plans in place to accommodate people who require
longer term social care support (approx 11 of the 42 beds- 20% of users) in
other more updated services in the independent sector. Not only would this
provide more suitable accommodation but would also offer those people a
choice of location in which they can be supported and which removes the
need to move to another facility should they require long term residential
care. .

6. What are the financial and operational implications of alternative
options?

In terms of the financial and operational implications these were the reasons
for not choosing the other options

Option 1. No change — maintain the current 42 jointly funded beds

Potential savings

e The buildings have a limited life span and would require substantial
investment to maintain the buildings and bring the accommodation up to
CQC standards e.g. no single rooms with on suite

e The present cost of the beds are significantly higher than in the
independent sector,

e There are therefore no potential savings and significant need for
investment associated with this option

Do Ability

e ltis clearly possible to do nothing but the above suggests that it is not
sustainable to do so, financially or with regard to CQC regulations

e Buildings not fit for purpose longer term

e Longer term financial impact not doable

Option 2. Decommission the existing 42 beds and meet need through a
redesigned community based model

Potential savings

e There would be saving from not running and maintaining the buildings

e Cost of providing care for the patients who would have access to bed
based care would be greater if provided in the community. Therapy staff
provide care on two sites, the cost of visiting people in their own homes
has the potential to increase the unit cost

e Possible double running costs - duplication of CICS and STIT service

Do Ability
e This may not be do-able within the planned timescale is April 2012 due to
the time required to design, test and implement a new model of care

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.7 of 11
Revision No.: 0 Page 43



e A plan with a timescale would have to developed to expand or
commission new services to provide for this group of people

Option 3. Decommission 21 beds and one building without any re-
provision retaining 21 beds in the other building

Potential savings
e Make some savings through the closure of one building

e Investment in one unit to up- grade to CQC standards

e Likely negative impact on other services if care is not re-provided
e Cost of staff redundancy

Do Ability

e This is a partial solution so is do able

e Risk of not reinvesting saving from the closure of one unit and the impact
on other community and hospital services

e Remaining building not fit for purpose — longer term financial impact — not
doable

Option 4. Decommission 42 beds and 2 buildings without re providing
care

Potential savings

e Savings from decommissioning if no reinvestment in alternatives.

e A major risk that not providing alternatives would result in increased costs
in the wider health and social care economy, e.g. by delaying patient
discharge from hospital resulting in increased length of stay, and
pressure on SCC purchasing budgets for short term placements and
increased home support. This risk is considered likely to outweigh
savings

e Cost of staff redundancy

Do Ability

e Doable. However unmet demand will appear elsewhere in the system

e Timeframe to manage decommissioning for April 2012 would be
challenging

Option 6. Decommission 42 beds in the current buildings and provide
the same care in new or different buildings

Potential savings
e There is likely to be a significant additional cost to procuring new
buildings

Do Ability
e Itis not known whether it would be possible to find existing buildings.
New building would be possible, but would take considerable time

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.8 of 11
Revision No.: 0 Page 44



Area for Scrutiny- capacity, capability and sustainability of the
independent sector to provide intermediate care

7. Can the independent sector provide sufficient beds now and in the future?

The current market share of residential and nursing care home provision is
dominated by the private sector with 79% share of the market, the voluntary
sector having a 16% share, and the City Council and NHS share 5%. This is in
line with national and regional patterns

There is capacity in the independent sector to provide sufficient beds as there
are a number of vacancies and also demand is reducing, as shown below

Total number of care homes

Care Type Number | Number
of of beds
homes

Care homes with nursing 47 2007

Residential care homes 40 2032

Total Private Care Homes in 95 3894

Sheffield

The number of vacancies in care homes in April 2012 is currently 405.

Occupancy April 2012

%
Occupancy
Nursing 90.4
Residential 89.7

Demand 2007 -11

Sheffield Supported Residents 2007-11

1600

1400

1200

Number of residents
@D o] 8
S 3 3
3 3 3

N
S
S

——Nursing
—#—Residential

)
=3
S

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.9 of 11
Revision No.: 0 Page 45



NHS Sheffield and Sheffield Teaching Hospitals Foundation Trust currently
commissions approximately 122 beds across the city in various locations.
Only 42 beds are provided by the council and the rest are provided by
private, voluntary and independent sector organisations. All the other
intermediate care beds commissioned by NHSS offer nursing care.

At the end of 2011 NHS Sheffield purchased an additional 20 intermediate
care beds from the independent sector which did not create any supply
issues in the market.

8. What safeguards are in place to guarantee quality and continuity of
provision in the independent sector?

Key Performance Indicators which includes data from a number of sources
including CQC are monitored fortnightly. Representatives include the
Contracts Team, Care Home Support Team (CHST), Care Home
Assessment Team (CHAT), and NHS Sheffield (NHSS). Homes are risk
rated according to their level of risk. Red = high, Amber = medium, Green
=low .

The purpose of this group is to

e Provide a joint health and social care overview of all Serious Incidents,
Safeguarding Incidents and incidents/concerns reported by health and
social care professionals and others relating to care homes.

e Ensure appropriate joint action is taken to resolve the issues and improve
the performance of providers and the quality of care delivered to
residents either as single health and social care agencies or as joint
action.

Homes with low level concerns as well as those which are being investigated
through serious incident procedures are considered through this process.
Where concerns exist in a care home there is active engagement with the
provider through the SCC Contracts section with a clear remit to seek
improvement

This systematic performance monitoring, combined with additional
investments made jointly by SCC and NHS Sheffield to support care home
provision (such as the Care Home Support Team and the GP Local
Enhanced Service), have largely contributed to care home quality in Sheffield
comparing favourably with other areas.

There are 93 residential and nursing care homes across the city and at April
2012 there are currently 80% in Green, 4% in Amber 8% in Red, 8% which
are subject to a coroner’s investigation and therefore highlighted for this
reason.

The demands of national policies such as the national dementia strategy and
end of life strategy also have implications for policy and practice which care
homes are required to address as quality improvements.

Issue Date: Issue No.:1

Page No.10 of 11
Revision No.: 0 Page 46



10.

11.

12

How can we guarantee extra services if patients are scattered across
providers?

For the provision of the 11 social care beds this would not be an issue as it
would offer more choice for individuals. Explain

Understanding demand- reassuring communities that services are
available?

See answer to question 8

Is there a coherent plan for replacing resource centre beds; can demand
be met?

Sheffield City Council has plans in place to accommodate people who require
long term social care support (approx 11 of the 42 beds- 20% of users) in
other more updated services in the independent sector. Not only would this
provide more suitable accommodation but would also offer those people a
choice of location in which they can be supported. As mentioned above there
is enough capacity in the independent sector to meet demand — see answer
to question 9 for further detail.

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.11 of 11

Revision No.: 0 Page 47



Appendix B (4 of 5)

Review of Caredyou Resource centres

Sheffield City Council

Healthier Communities and Social Care Scrutiny Committee 30" April 2012

Statement from Sheffield Save Our NHS

Sheffield Save Our NHS supported the petition which led the Council to refer this issue to
Healthier Communities and Social Care Scrutiny Committee. We broadly agree with many
of the comments made by Sheffield LINK to the original consultation. We are not convinced
they have been addressed in the subsequent reports.

1. Lack of clear analysis and strategy

We do not think that the Council and NHS Sheffield have provided adequate public
justification for proposing that this type of provision should be closed, let alone that it should
happen now. To us the rationale appears little more than cost reduction, certainly at this
stage. Forinstance paragraph 6.9 in the Cabinet report interprets value for money solely in
price terms. This repeats a major weakness of last year's NHS Sheffield proposals to close
Birch Avenue and Woodland View, now overturned. It is far from clear that like is being
compared with like.

According to official figures, over the next 20 years the number of people over 65 is
predicted to increase by over 25% and the number over 85 by 40%. These numbers will
include an increasing proportion of people from BME communities. Sheffield also has one of
the highest levels of people with diagnosed dementia in England. In this context the Council
and the NHS in Sheffield are currently trying to develop a coherent programme for care
under the title Right First Time. However we have not seen any comprehensive analysis of
what this actually means for people at the moment, let alone updates. Instead we have a
series of seemingly unconnected papers over recent years on Dementia, Intermediate Care,
and other matters, now interspersed with a series of closure proposals.

We have already seen across the country how school closures based on current rather than
projected populations have led to major shortages of places. Are we on the same route for
people approaching the closing stages of their lives?

Furthermore, reliance on the scattering of places in the independent sector poses major
problem for monitoring of quality, as well as making it more difficult to provide culturally
appropriate care.

2. Restricted definition of intermediate care

In 2008 NHS Sheffield and Sheffield Council consulted over the provision of intermediate
care. The Sheffield definition of intermediate care appears to be strongly oriented towards a
medically based understanding of need:

“a range of services with the aim of providing short term rehabilitation, including nursing and
therapy, to enable people to fully recover following hospital treatment, so that they can regain
their independence and prevent premature needs for ongoing social and health care,
including placement in care homes. No one should be placed in long term care without having
the opportunity for rehabilitation.”

This differs from a 2009 definition from the Department of Health which has a broader scope:

“a range of integrated services to promote faster recovery from iliness, prevent unnecessary
acute hospital admission and premature admission to long-term residential care, support
timely discharge from hospital and maximise independent living”. Intermediate Care -
Halfway Home (DH 2009).

More information: www.sheffieldsaveournhs.co.uk http://sspphs.blogspot.com Page 1
Email: team@sheffieldsaveournhEdd Q& 4




Although there is a general agreement that care should, where possible and appropriate, be
provided nearer to home or at home, rather than in hospital, some problems with the
Sheffield definition are

i) It seems to reflect needs of the NHS - reduce admissions / longer stays in hospital
rather than the actual needs of people

ii) It makes intermediate care intrinsically more expensive by defining it as nursed care

iii) It helps legitimate the Council’s questionable intention to move away from providing
bedded accommodation

iv) It enables intermediate care to be considered separately from services such as
respite care — resulting in two separate proposals for closure of service (this and the
dementia resource centres) rather than a whole systems approach.

3. Apparent retreat from previous intermediate care proposals
The 2008 consultation on intermediate care had 2 elements:

¢ to refine the model of intermediate care that has a principle of delivering care in your own bed.
This means increasing the care that can be provided at home. And if a patient is too unwell and
needs to go to hospital, when they are well enough the intermediate care service will provide
specialist care to give the patient the best chance of recovering to independent living.

e The building of a new community facility to reprovide the beds that are currently fragmented into
small groups. This will allow intermediate care to become more specialised in Sheffield. [The
community facility will provide specialist care in one place that will give the patient the best
chance of recovering to independent living. This model of care is supported by clinical evidence
and best practice.]

These two aims were shown as linked in two diagrams:

St i

Single Access Port

' \
Transfer to Community \

EH
Transfer home when +

needs can be met

Although NHS Sheffield has recently reaffirmed some level of commitment in principle to the
proposed 120 bed Community Facility, the current proposals simply substitute the two boxes
labelled community facility in the diagram with two boxes now labelled ‘Transfer to
independent care’. Would the consultation have been quite so calmly received if this was
the case? What would be the results of the same consultation now, following the
widespread popular opposition to the 2012 Health and Social Care Act?

We suspect that the proposal for the community unit (which does not even have a site yet) is
unlikely to proceed as the NHS suffers further financial pressures and the service becomes
scattered among independent sector providers.

More information: www.sheffieldsaveournhs.co.uk http://sson logspot.com Page 2
Email: team@sheffieldsaveournhs.cb:




4, Costs

Are costs reflected accurately in the information given? While public sector expenditure has
been frozen, costs in the independent sector have risen rapidly in the last year. BUPA in
May 2010 stated that the weekly cost of care with nursing in Yorkshire and Humberside was

£597. A survey by one money adviser site shows the followin

g.

HC HAVE SOARED I

- "LI

LAY

Average weekly fees charged NURSINGCARE : RESIDENTIALCARE

by private care homes 2010/11 ; 2011/12 : % change § 2010/11 § 2011/12 ; % chang

M North Eastand Cumbria €575 (E589 :+234% :£439 :£487 :+10.93Y%

M Yorkshire and the Humber £604 (£650 :+7.62% : £443 1£483 1+0.03%

B North West £656 (£647 :-137% :£433 (£483 1+947%

B West Midlands £662 (£700 :+5.74% : £467 :£470 :+064%

M East Midlands £632 :£650 :+2.85% : £457 (€488 (+678%

M East Anglia £697 i£736 :+5.60% : £494 (£554 (+6.78%

i B Northern Home Counties €854 :£867 :+152% : £605 :£607 i+033%
' B London £808 :£850 : +5.20% : £594 :£679 i+14.31%

, ‘ | M Southern Home Counties  £787 :£806 : +241% : £568 :£583 i+2.64%
A | B South West £753 (£786 :+4.38% : £510 (E522 (+2.35%

)  Wales £507 i£646 :+8.21% :£463 (£472 +1.94%

. WUNITEDKINGDOM £692 ‘€722 1+4.34% :£498 (€524 :+5.22%

http://www.thisismoney.co.uk/money/pensions/article-2107029/Soaring-care-fees-force-thousands-pensioners-sell-

homes.html#ixzz1tQL40OhCa

No doubt the figure of £500 in the Council reports reflects a lower price based on contracts

rather than spot purchases, but even these may well have risen now. |If there is to be
exclusive reliance on the independent sector, what evidence is there that this will not be
exploited, thus reducing what is presented as a price advantage?

5. Transfer of Costs

Furthermore the article accompanying the above analysis shows how the increasing inability
of the public sector to pay market rates is both increasing prices for individuals needing care
and threatening the viability of individual companies and the sector as a whole.

A paper on the Right First Time Programme for the May 2012 meeting of the Sheffield

Shadow CCG Committee states that the “current reductions in Length of Stay for Sheffield
Teaching Hospitals result in each new person staying 3 weeks longer in social care funded
care and support”’. This results in a transfer of costs either to the Council or to individuals.

6. Workforce

The evidence suggests that high quality care is provided in these two units, regardless of the
physical disadvantages of the buildings. The proposals for closure are pessimistic about the
chances of employment within the Council, thus breaking up a considerable resource within
the public sector of care expertise for the city. Itis another example of the short term
thinking behind the current proposals.

7 Request to Scrutiny

Sheffield Save Our NHS requests the Healthier Communities and Social Care Scrutiny
Committee to recommend deferment of the closures of the two Intermediate Treatment
centres until firm proposals for these services are presented in the context of the whole
development and improvement of services for older people.

More information: www.sheffieldsaveournhs.co.uk http://s s.blogspot.com Page 3
Email: team@sheffieldsaveournnk’ad!




UNISON’s submission to the Healthier Communities and
Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee 30™ April 1012

The public of Sheffield have spoken overwhelmingly in favour of
retaining Hazlehurst and Sevenfields. Thisisa message you their
elected représentatives must not ignore. 7300 people took the
trouble to sign our petition so their views must not be ignored.

UNISON and its members concerns are outlined below:

There is no Strategic plan for Intermediate Care. There is no joined
up strategy to provide Health and Social Care so it will continue to
be a fragmented service delivery model.

The report isn’t evidence based, there are no guarantees only
commitments and it is full of inaccuracies. The options appraisal
which Officers suggest demonstrates option 5 is the best way
forward does not have any of the detail to prove the scoresare
correct. We appear to have to take Officers word on this which just
isn’t good énough on something as important asthe proposed
dosure of these two homes.

The report paints a picture of a service that isn’t fit for purpose
with buildings that are unfit to house service user’s, this couldn’t be
further from the truth. Where isthe evidence that thisisthe case it
is just the usual officer daim to back up their recommendation.
Very recently the Care Quality Commission undertook an
unannounced visit with the resulting report stating the service was
excellent. If anyone thinks the private sector is like stayingin a five
star hotel then they are in for a shock. Most of the homes we visit
are exactly the same as the one’s you say aren’t fit for purpose.

The report states there may be savings from procuring beds from
the private sector it doesn’t state there will be. It identifies

Page 51



potential savings however these are nearly outweighed by the
likely redundancy costs at £650k with other costs like demolition
and security costs likely to be quite significant. It also states that
the on-going costs will be £250k so in the first year there WI|| be
little if any savmga

In the report it daims beds are left unfilled which is untrue. When
we spoke to staff they told us a different story altogether. The
occupancy sheets in the homes confirm beds are very rarely left
unfilled. There is a constant demand from the NHS for beds with a
long list of people waiting to be admitted.

The report is full of possible outcomes, there are no guarantees this
or that will actually happen. As Councillors you need to have
confidence that the officers recommended option 5 will deliver and
at present there is no guarantee that it will.

There is no detailed analysis of the outcomes achieved in the public
sector or private sector to evaluate whether we can be confident
that the service will continue to be excellent which is surely a must.
We are told that there is no specialised rehabilitation in the private
sector.

Nowhere within the report is there any evidence that the private
sector have the beds only a statement that the NHS have previously
been able to procure beds. Surely when writing a report
recommending the decommissioning of the last two remaining re-
enablement homes there would be evidence to prove that the beds
are indeed available.

There is no incentive for the private sector to get the users back
into independent living indeed it isin their interest to keep them in
the home. Once the private sector have a monopoly and know the

Page 52



Coundil can no longer provide their own intermediate care the price
will go up. Who will provide the service when a Southem Crosstype
situation occurs when the Council have no homes of their own ?

~ These homes not only provide care post hospital they also provide
care to people who if not receiving it would be admitted to hospital
thereby saving the NHSmoney.

The issue of there being no en-suiite facilities is a red herring The
OQC have not identified this as a problem, current service users
don’t appear to be bothered, hospitals don’t have en-suite and
most of the over 65’s using the service won’t have en-suite at home
and don’t demand it whilst they are in residence. It could be argued
that if they were provided the service user’'s progress would be
held back and if they weren’t to use the communal fadilities they
would be more likely to remain in their rooms and not socialise.
Walking to the facilities would speed up service user’s recovery and
mobility. There is no evidence to support managements daim that
service users expect or are demanding single rooms with en-suite
fadilities. The OQChave not recommended or insisted on these
facilities they appear to think things are perfect the way they are.

If Service users were to be asked whether they wanted these
fadilities in preference to the excellent outcomes they currently
receive from these dedicated staff they would chose a quick return
to independent living of that we are sure.

Previously there was no mention of NHS Sheffield wanting nursed
beds however in the new report it statesthat is what they want.
This appears to have been added to make the case to

Page 53



decommission the two homes. At present there are excellent
outcomes delivered with service users on average moving back into
independent living within six weeks. There is no evidence that
nursed beds will deliver better outcomes or speed up the move
back to independent living yet thisis used asa way of ruling out the
retention of the two homes.

We need to retain the spedialist and therapeutic resources that
have delivered excellent outcomes and experiences for previous
users

In condusion

Many of the repair costs outlined in the report to justify the
decision to decommission the two homes are possible outlays,
these costs may not be required. If the new unit wasto be built in
the next couple of years these costs would not have to be incurred.

The report does not sufficiently make the case for decommissioning
Hazlehurst and Sevenfields neither doesit guarantee the continuing
excellent outcomes provided by the two homes. Putting peopie in
nursing homes means their individual needs aren’t met asisthe
case now due to the servicing culture that exists within these
homes. Nursing homes can lead to service users becoming
institutionalised rather than moving back into their own homes.
There are too many unknowns, too many possible’s not

guarantees. We also believe that the potential cost savings have
been overstated in an attempt to get Coundillors to accept the
Officers recommendation to go with option 5.

We fail to see how these proposals fit into the supposed longer
term strategic plan that is being developed. These centres were to

Page 54



be assessed within the context of the longer term plan. These
proposals should be put on hold until an up to date Intem\edlate
and Dementia Strategy for the city is drawn up.

We would request further options are explored so asto protect

- these valuable resources. Consideration should be given to keeping
these two homes open until the new 120 bed unit is built which we
are told the money is still available for. Some of the £4m
underspend in Communities could be put into keeping Hazlehurst
and Sevenfields open until the new unit is up and running.

Anyone watching last week’s Panorama programme must be
concerned about putting more care out into the private sector. As
stated earlier who will pick up the pieces when there is another
Southern Cross and where are we to accommodate these peopile if
we dose Hazlehurst and Sevenfields ? Many private homes are
understaffed, under resourced and fail to provide the level of care
needed. The emphasis will be on the collective rather than be
person centred thereby slowing down the process of returmn to
independent living It will be profit before care with no incentive to
return service users quickly to their own homes.

Page 55



Sheffield City Council
Adult Social Care

Caredyou
Intermediate Care
Resource centre
consultation report

March 2012

Sheffield

City Council

Page 56



Introduction and background

Sheffield City Council runs two resource centres under its Care4you service. These
are called Hazelhurst and Sevenfields. These centres offer 42 intermediate care beds
for people aged 65 and over, 22 beds at Hazelhurst and 20 at Sevenfields. People
stay in these beds for a short period of rehabilitation and reablement, usually for around
6 weeks. These resource centres are not like residential care homes as no-one lives in
them on a permanent basis as their home.

The beds are paid for by Sheffield City Council and some funding also from NHS
Sheffield. A joint NHS Sheffield and Sheffield City Council review during 2011 found
that 74% of their beds were being used for their primary purpose of NHS-led
intermediate care and 26% for social care led assessment for longer term care (31
Intermediate care beds and 11 Residential beds).

This consultation report will go alongside a Cabinet report to the Council’s cabinet
meeting on 11 April 2012.

As well as looking in detail at how the beds in the Resource Centres had been used by
NHS Sheffield and the Council the review also looked at what other options there were.
The review was done to look at all the important factors before reaching conclusions
and making officer recommendations for the council and NHS Sheffield to consider.

Intermediate Care (IC) is a term used to describe a range of services with the aim; of
providing short term rehabilitation, including nursing and therapy, to enable people to
fully recover following hospital treatment, so that they can regain their independence
and prevent premature needs for ongoing social and health care, including placement
in care homes. No one should be placed in long term care without having the
opportunity for rehabilitation.

NHS Sheffield

Page 57



Options considered in the review:

—_—

. No change — keep the current 42 jointly funded beds

Remove the existing 42 beds and use the money to provide intermediate care in
people’s own homes.

Close one of the resource centres and keep the beds in the other resource
centre. But don’t buy any more intermediate care anywhere else.

Remove all 42 beds and close both buildings without buying any other
intermediate care

Remove the 42 beds in the current buildings and use the money to buy different
intermediate care to meet current needs based on demand. This would include
providing intermediate care in nursing homes.

Remove the 42 beds and re-provide the same care as now, in new or different
buildings

Based on the review of the options, ‘Option 5’ was recommended. The reasons
given were:

The buildings have a limited life span and will require investment to maintain
them in their current form. They would also require investment to bring the
accommodation up to highest standards as expected by Care Quality
Commission (CQC) and public expectation.

We want to make sure intermediate care is good value for money and the best
way of meeting the needs of the people who use the service.

For the council, we know that we will be able to buy alternative services at
considerably less cost than the present services within the resource centres; and
given the government’s funding reductions to the council, this is an important
factor. We believe it is better to save money this way rather than reducing the
level of service we provide to older people in the city.

Intermediate care needs to be provided in nursed beds.

We want to offer improved facilities which help people to rehabilitate and become
more independent.

The consultation

A formal period of consultation commenced on the 6™ December 2011 and concluded
on 29" February 2012 after being extended. Views and opinions expressed have been
compiled into this report.

The consultation was as far as possible aimed to capture a wide and varied audience
and focussed on an opportunity for people to express their views and concerns on the
options appraisal, the preferred option and to offer any alternative solutions.

Page 58



Process used for public consultation

Information about the proposals and background to them was sent to individuals,
Trade Unions and stakeholder groups in letter form (appendix A) and a copy of the
joint NHS Sheffield and Sheffield City Council report was made available on request
(appendix B). it was also put on the website. This included:

and

Wider stakeholder groups including; 50+, Voluntary Action Sheffield to distribute
via it's networks, Sheffield Carers Centre, Expert Elders, Age UK, Care and
Support Older People and Disabled Adults Service Improvement Forum and
Quality Improvement Network, The Stroke Association (Sheffield), LINk (Local
Involvement Network), Older People’s Partnership Board, on the 24" of January
2012.

Dignity Champion
Older People Champion

Stakeholder groups who make use of the facilities within the centres. These
were an AgeWell Group using Sevenfields - via the coordinator and Whist Drive
Group on the 25" of January 2012.

The Residents of bungalows built around Sevenfields on the 27" of January
2012, inviting comment and to a meeting on 14th February 2012.

Kier staff working at resource centres i.e. cleaners on 1% February 2012.

Individuals who provide services to residents e.g. hairdressers and chiropodists
on 27" of January 2012.

A number of Health and Social Care professionals involved in this area of work
were invited via email to contribute and pass comment on the proposals.

Hearing Aid Service users at Sevenfields.

A specific webpage and URL, www.sheffield.gov.uk/resourcecentres was
created with ‘Frequently Asked Questions’ section giving information about how
to ‘have your say’. The page received 264 hits in total from 168 different people.

The review of the Resource Centres was also included in a public consultation
meeting held in the Town Hall on 31% January 2012 about some of the budget
proposals for 2012/13, particularly those where we don't have an obvious
stakeholder/customer group to consult with. (see event flyer appendix C)

On 23™ February, the information was re-circulated to wider stakeholder
groups, re-tweeted and the webpage refreshed with consultation closing date in
the title.

Consideration was given to asking people who'’ve previously used the IC
service about their views on the proposals. However to present a balanced view
this would have required asking people who had used IC resource centres and
those people who had used other forms of IC. We were not able to access to

Page 59



information about people who had used NHS Sheffield services due to data
protection* considerations. It was also considered that talking directly with
people who are currently using services wasn’t appropriate in terms of their
health/recovery.

e There was also local media coverage about the proposal and this included the
council being able to explain the review and encourage people to submit their
views on the proposals.

*the Data Protection Act Sections 1 and 2.

To elicit feedback and comment on plans for a service unconnected to the patient's episode of

care would be using their data for a purpose for which it was not collected and patients who have left the
service and are mostly elderly, the gathering of this information and comment may cause distress and
would therefore breach section 6 of the Act.

As a consequence of information being sent:

e The Carers Centre included an article about the consultation with links to
‘have your say’ in their e-bulletin 24" February 2012.

e LINk featured the consultation on their website.

A number of ways for stakeholders to comment were provided:

e email comments to PracticeDevelop@sheffield.gov.uk

e A number was provided for telephone comments and someone to record
people’s views.

¢ An offer of someone going talk to individuals or groups at a convenient time
by request through contact by phone or email.

e Writing to The Director of Care and Support, c/o the Quality & Development
Team, a part of Communities Business Strategy service.

e Attending an Adult Social Care Budget consultation event on 31 Jan 2012
where the issue was one of the items discussed.

Responses were gathered from:
e A public consultation meeting held on 31 January 2012.

e A meeting with residents of bungalows built around Sevenfields on 14th
February 2012.

e Sheffield LINk in a written response after they had responses to questions
they had submitted (a meeting with LINk planned for 15" January 2012 was
cancelled due to members not being available).

e Dignity Champion 1! February 2012

Page 60



e Older Peoples Champion 20" February 2012.

¢ Individuals including; professionals, members of the public and other
stakeholders.

31 responses to the consultation were gathered in total, summarised below:

Communication type Number

e-mail 14
Telephone 5
Meeting 7
Letter 5

e In general each communication was acknowledged or responded to in the
same format as it was received.

e Both UNISON and LINk submitted questions and received detailed written
responses.

e Attendees at meetings received verbal responses at the time, though in
addition both the Dignity and Older People’s Champions submitted questions
which were responded to alongside a written account of their meetings.

e The Carers Centre also submitted a written response.

Summary of public consultation responses

Summary of views

People were invited to express their views and concerns on the options appraisal, the
preferred option to stop having the 42 beds at Sevenfields and Hazelhurst and use the
money to buy alternative care to meet current needs (including nursed intermediate
care), based on demand and to offer any alternative solutions.

In general there was a mixed response to the consultation. Whilst there was some
support and acknowledgement of the financial issues leading to the recommendation of
‘option 5, there were also concerns raised about;

e not sacrificing quality solely on the basis of cost, the quality of service provided
by the resource centres and the recognition they have,

¢ the future of the workforce from an individual impact perspective and as a
valuable resource for the city,

e the capacity and capability of nursing homes to provide appropriate IC,

Page 61



e the fact that a planned 120 bed NHS Sheffield IC resource had not been built as
yet

e a critique of the options appraisal and review process.

Groups using the centres

There are 2 community groups that regularly meet at Sevenfields. These groups have
been offered the opportunity to comment on the proposals and offered reassurance
that they will be given support to find alternative accommodation should the need arise.

The Agewell group who meet at Sevenfields have expressed concerns about the future
of the group and loss of a local resource/meeting place.

The group acknowledged the financial issues but suggest that support for older and
vulnerable people should be prioritised.

In addition service users that use the drop in facility to have their hearing aid batteries
replaced have been handed letters about the proposals, 7 at Hazlehurst and 3 at
Sevenfields. Hearing aid batteries can now be exchanged at a range of places, and
the Hallamshire hospital produce an information sheet for customers explaining where
to get their batteries exchanged. This hasn’t included information about the resource
centres for some time now. No feedback was received.

Members of the public

Members of the public have been invited to comment using the methods outlined
previously.

Responses from members of the public (10)

Support for option 5 1
Opposition to option 5 3
Mixed response 1
Neutral responses 4
Review report 1
request/no comment

The main reasons for opposition to ‘option 5’ were about:

e The need to retain the specialist and therapeutic resources provided by the
centres.

e The capacity and capability of private sector nursing homes to deliver an
equivalent or better service.

o Personal positive experiences of the resource centres.

Page 62



The reason given for supporting ‘option 5’ was

e From personal experience and opinion about the standard of one of the
buildings.

Public consultation event (extract from full report appendix D)

A public consultation meeting was held 31 January 2012 as part of the consultation on
the Sheffield City Council budget for 2012/13. The event focused on Adult Social Care
which included the resource centres and wider budget proposals that could affect new
customers.

There was a mixed response with some support for ‘option 5’. Those against the option
were particularly concerned in terms of impact on staff and the potential loss of their
skills. There was also concern that any replacement service would sacrifice quality for
cost and be ineffective in providing intermediate care.

Tenants of bungalows local to Sevenfields

There are 12 bungalows in the grounds of Sevenfields which were previously part of
the unit, these are now separate and run by Pennine Housing Association.

Tenants expressed concerns about:

e The future of the building/site, vandalism and disruption if the Sevenfields
building is demolished.
e The need to retain bed based IC as well as home based IC.

Sheffield Carers Centre (full response appendix E)

e Endorsed the need for unit based IC in providing breaks and support for
unpaid carers, and noted other benefits of the model.

e Urged Sheffield City Council to be transparent in how savings from adopting
‘option 5’ will be used for providing intermediate care(IC) in future and involve
unpaid carers in individual cases.

e Ensure standards in nursing home based IC through the procurement
process.

Sheffield LINk (full response appendix F)

LINK sent a series of detailed questions to SCC which we responded to; LINk then
submitted a detailed official response:

Agreed ‘option 5’ is the best option if the centres were to close, but would have liked
more information about how future need would be met and about NHSS plans for a 120
bed facility to be built. They also made a number of points about the rationale for
closure:

e Questioned the need for en-suite bathroom facilities.

Page 63



e Concerns about the use of nursing home beds for IC without preparatory
work being undertaken on staff training, proper facilities being provided for
reablement and a ‘change of culture’.

e That the cost savings from ‘option 5’ have been overstated.

Offered some suggestions to consider in future provision of IC:

e To have e.g. specialised 10 bed wing or group for the specific purpose of
reablement or rehabilitation in a nursing home.

e Pilot studies of the needs and trends in IC to enable a balance to be found
between traditional nursing care and reablement/ rehabilitation and be
staffed accordingly.

e Using closed wards in hospital, adapted to perform the IC and be staffed by
‘care/support staff’, making good use of resources.

LINK also registered a number of comments and suggestions about the consultation
process and in conclusion questioned the clarity of plans for IC in future.

Care & Support (for Older People & Disabled Adults) Service Improvement Forum
(SIF)

Three SIF members commented on the proposals, two of those supported ‘option 5’
on a financial basis with the proviso’ of reinvestment in alternative IC models including
support at home.

One member was opposed on the basis that ‘option 5’ removes provision for older
people and disabled adults.

Dignity Champion (also LINk Vice chair and contributed to the LINk response) (appendix
G)

e Questioned the evidence base for recommending ‘option &’, including the
financial information used in the review.

e Concern about potential fragmentation of the service in terms of the staff
rehabilitation skills, experience and training.

e Questioned the capability of nursing home provision to effectively deliver
intermediate care and rehabilitation given their staffing levels expertise and
culture.

Page 64



Older Peoples Champion (appendix H)

e Suggested alternative provision might be made on hospital sites, or
alternative options for investment explored including closing one site (option

3).

e That decision should be based on quality not just cost.

e ‘Option 5’ requires capacity and quality to be assured in private nursing
homes, with appropriate standards of support; enough staff, appropriate
care, listening to the person.

Professionals

A number of Health and Social Care professionals involved in this area of work
were asked to contribute and passed comment on the proposals:

An opportunity to create a more flexible IC provision including assistive
technology.

Resourcing the beds with sufficient therapy, nursing, medical and social
care staff to create flow.

A more flexible approach to criteria and individuals timescales and
accommodation types.

Flexibility in bed numbers to create capacity during periods of high
demand.

Additional ideas to increase throughput.

The need to create a good IC pathway and reprovision are essential.

Members of Parliament

The MP for Sheffield Heeley responded seeking assurances about retaining trained
and experienced staff, maintaining good quality options for the people of Sheffield and
ensuring the quality of reprovision.

Resource Centre Staff

Via Care4You managers staff and their representatives were offered the opportunity to
comment both in pre-arranged meetings and on an individual basis. A series of ‘drop
in’ sessions were also used as a way for staff to air their views. Care was taken to
ensure those staff employed but currently absent have seen minutes of meetings and
been given the opportunity to comment.

Staff raised issues about their employment opportunities should both the resource
centres be closed. The focus of the discussion was on:

e The planned proposal and timescales to decommission both units pending
cabinet approval.

e The impact of potential redundancies and the redeployment options available
to them, as part of this process. The majority of staff wanted advice and
information about the VER/VS schemes.

e The process for voluntary early retirement (VER)/ voluntary severance (VS)
schemes, guidance on pensions and timetable for staff leaving.

10
Page 65



The opportunities to have private discussion with Trade Unions, Human
Resources (HR) and management.

Staff also submitted questions and comments about the proposals, the focus of these

was:

The value, success and expertise of the resource centres and their staff
have.

The requirement for en-suite facilities and disputing other building
refurbishment needs.

The basis for the decision to recommend ‘option 5’ and suggesting other
potential areas for efficiencies and savings, including alternative uses for the
buildings.

For all staff affected by the proposed changes a number of guarantees have been
given by HR:

No one would be disadvantaged or left vulnerable, all staff will be treated
fairly and equal in line with procedures.

There would be access to HR advice and trade union representation on a
regular basis.

There would be regular staff meetings to share information.

There would be opportunities to apply for VER/VS schemes and continued
advice and support would be given.

There would a skill audit of staff where appropriate.

Trade Unions

In a letter to the Council Leader trade unions made comments about the:

Need for wide and transparent consultation about the recommended
proposal.

Financial arguments for retaining the current provision.

Accuracy of information in the joint review carried out by NHS Sheffield and
Sheffield City Council.

Risks involved in reducing Local Authority provision and dependence on the
private sector.

As part of the consultation, UNISON asked for information about the:

Numbers and a profile of staff working in the resource centres and details of
management costs.

Previous maintenance costs.

Number of IC beds in the city, their location, providers, unit costs and bed
occupancy rates.

Consultation about remodelling the provision.

Options appraisal and report on ‘social care bed based reablement
hypothesis testing’

11
Page 66



e Financial assumptions for IC beds in the medium term.

Health Staff

Health staff that currently provide support to both units, although not directly affected by
the proposed changes were provided with information about the proposals and
received regular updates as part of the process.

Their main concerns have been about the reprovision of beds and where they will be.
They have received reassurances that their skills and experience will be used in the
replacement beds

What we already knew from other sources about people’s views on intermediate
care:

¢ An NHS Sheffield Intermediate Care consultation was held in 2008. Key messages
from that consultation were:

» Whilst a wide range of positive views were expressed by respondents,
there is widespread support for the proposed model of care in your own
bed and when that is not possible in one community facility, both from the
general public and professionals. Concerns were expressed about the
fragmented nature of service provision at present, but the public
welcomed the move to relocate the beds in one place to provide specialist
care and the opportunity of diagnostics in the community.

» The consultation was a positive experience and the engagement resulted
in quality discussion, questions and agreement with the principle of “care
in their own bed”.

» The site of the community facility provided a wealth of information and
comment related to the “need to get it right for the citizens of Sheffield”
with good transport links and adequate parking for both the public and
staff.

As a consequence of the review NHS Sheffield planned to build a new 120 bed facility
in the city. They are committed to and still plan to do this.

12
Page 67



Appendices

Appendix A

UPDATE - on potential changes to the Intermediate Care Resource Centres,
Hazelhurst and Sevenfields

Dear Stakeholder

| would like to inform you of some potential changes affecting the Council’'s two
Care4You resource centres

Sheffield City Council runs two resource centres under its Caredyou service. These
are called Hazelhurst and Sevenfields. These centres offer 42 intermediate care beds
for people aged 65 and over, 22 beds at Hazelhurst and 20 at Sevenfields. People
stay in these beds for a short period of rehabilitation and reablement, usually for around
6 weeks. These resource centres are not like residential care homes as no-one lives in
the two resource centres on a permanent basis as their home.

These beds are paid for by the NHS, but some funding also comes from Sheffield City
Council.

During 2011, the resource centres were reviewed jointly with the Council and the NHS
looking at a range of future options for them. A report has been drafted and will be
presented at the Council’s cabinet meeting on 11 April 2012.

| am writing to you to invite you to comment on the draft proposals. We are holding a
consultation on the proposals which will be open until 29 February 2012. Following the
consultation period, a report of the views and opinions expressed will be compiled and
submitted to the Cabinet alongside the draft proposals.

You can Have Your Say in a number of ways:
1 You can email your comments to PracticeDevelop@sheffield.gov.uk

2 You can call 0114 203 7875 and someone will record your views

3 If you wish someone can come and talk to you and your group. Please call 0114
203 7875 or email PracticeDevelop@sheffield.gov.uk to arrange a time.

4 You can write to me at Eddie Sherwood, c/o Quality & Development Team, Floor
8, Redvers House, Union Street, Sheffield, S1 2JQ

5 There is an Adult Social Care Budget consultation event on 31 Jan 2012 where
this issue will be one of the items discussed. The event takes place at the Town
Hall between 2.00 — 4.00pm. If you would like to book a place to attend please
call 273 5417 or email budget@sheffield.gov.uk

13
Page 68



Background to the review

¢ We know that we offer high standards of care at the resource centres,
and we want to put on record the professional and caring work that our
Caredyou staff undertake successfully at both centres.

e It has never been our intention to stop providing intermediate care in the
city. Everyone who needs this service will be offered it, but possibly in
other facilities rather than the two resource centres.

e Our review of the use of the beds and different options was a process to
look at whether we should provide this service and the 42 beds in a
different way.

What did we do in the review?

We looked, in detail at how the beds in the Resource Centres had been used by the
NHS and the Council and what other options there were. This was a joint review by
both NHS Sheffield (NHSS) and Sheffield City Council (SCC). This review was done to
look at all the important factors before making a recommendation.

What options have been considered?

7. No change — keep the current 42 jointly funded beds

8. Remove the existing 42 beds and use the money to provide intermediate care in
people’s own homes.

9. Close one of the resource centres and keep the beds in the other resource
centre. But don’t buy any more intermediate care anywhere else.

10.Remove all 42 beds and close both buildings without buying any other
intermediate care

11.Remove the 42 beds in the current buildings and use the money to buy different
intermediate care to meet current needs based on demand. This would include
providing intermediate care in nursing homes.

12.Remove the 42 beds and re-provide the same care as now, in new or different
buildings

Based on the review of the options, ‘Option 5’ was recommended.

The reasons for this recommendation were:

e The buildings have a limited life span and will require investment to maintain
them in their current form. They would also require investment to bring the
accommodation up to highest standards as expected by CQC (Care Quality
Commission) and public expectation. For example, people would like to have
single rooms with en-suite facilities which are not available at the resource
centres.

e We want to make sure intermediate care is good value for money and the best
way of meeting the needs of the people who use the service.

14
Page 69



e For the council, we know that we will be able to buy alternative services at
considerably less cost than the present services within the resource centres; and
given the government’s funding reductions to the council, this is an important
factor. We believe it is better to save money this way rather than reducing the
level of service we provide to older people in the city.

¢ Intermediate care needs to be provided in nursed beds

e We want to offer improved facilities which help people to rehabilitate and become
more independent.

If the proposals are accepted by the council, then we will look at how best to make use
of the two sites.

What happens now?

We are inviting you to provide us your views on the recommended option to stop
having the 42 beds at Sevenfields and Hazelhurst and use the money to buy alternative
care to meet current needs (including nursed intermediate care), based on demand.

We will collate all the responses we receive, analyse these and present the feedback to
Cabinet to so they can make a decision informed by the consultation as well as the
recommendation following the review.

We want to know what you think. Please help cabinet make a fully informed decision by
providing us with your views by the end of February. Tell us:

e What concerns does this option cause for you?

e Would you have chosen a different option and why?

Please see the paragraph ‘You can Have Your Say in a number of ways’ on page 1 for
how to send us your comments and suggestions.

If you would like to see the Review Report written by the Council and NHSS that this
letter refers to, then let me know and | will send it to you.

A report to summarise the feedback you give us will be presented to the Council’s
Cabinet on 11 April 2012. If you would like a copy of the consultation report, please let
me know.

Who can | contact about this?

For more details contact Nick Hoult on 0114 205 3185 or Elaine Dutton on 0114 203
7875 or email PracticeDevelop@sheffield.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely,

i

15
Page 70



Eddie Sherwood
Director of Care and Support
Appendix B

I HS

Sheffield

Outcomes from the Review

SCC Cared4you Resource Centres in Sheffield

January 2012

Joint Report from Tim Furness NHSS and Eddie Sherwood SCC.

Page 71



Outcomes from the Review of the Care4you Resource Centres in Sheffield

1. Introduction

The purpose of this report is to make recommendations and to conclude the review that
was undertaken as a joint initiative between NHS Sheffield (NHSS) and Sheffield City
Council (SCC) in relation to the proposed future organisational form of the two SCC
Resource Centres (42 beds) at Sevenfields and Hazlehurst for 2012/13 and beyond.

This paper summarises the options for consideration, taking into account value for
money, the rationale for change, impacts of system change on the delivery of care
pathways, and the impact of change, particularly on the post-hospital discharge
element of service provision, and recommends a preferred option for consideration.

2. Current Arrangements

As part of the remodelling of intermediate care services across the city it was agreed
that the 42 resource centre beds for 2011/12 should only be only used for non 24 hour
nursed patients.

The 42 resource centre beds are in a residential setting, old SCC stock, not en suite
and are not fit for the purpose of providing intermediate care. They provide residential
care, with all nursing and other clinical input being provided separately, by the NHS.

The resource centres are funded by contributions on a historical split between health
and social care as part of the pooled budget arrangements for Intermediate Care.
Therapy and nursing services provided into these beds are paid for and provided by
health.

Recent work on pathways, eligibility, supply and demand has suggested that the use of
the beds is not always intermediate care and an analysis undertaken by social care has
determined there is not a need/demand for social care reablement beds.

An analysis of the bed usage for the period April to September 2011 was undertaken to
obtain an understanding of the split between Intermediate Care and Residential Care.
The findings of the analysis indicated that the usage was 74% Intermediate care
nursing and 26% SCC assessment for longer term care (31 Intermediate care beds and
11 Residential beds).

The table below shows the current costs of the resource centres, and how those are
funded, including the cost of healthcare services into the two centres to provide
intermediate care.

: Strategic Commissioning and Partnership Section
Social Care bed Based Reablement " Hypothesis Testing" March 2010

17
Page 72



Present Costs of Service

Expenditure Category Pay Non Total
Pay Cost
WTE £000's | £000's | £000's
Hazlehurst
Staffing 2224 | 757.0 757.0
Building Running Costs 99.0 99.0
Sevenfields
Staffing 20.67 | 700.0 700.0
Building Running Costs 94.0 94.0
Other Costs
Liaison Nurses 81.3 81.3
Therapy Services (OT, Physio) 115.6 115.6
GP Cover 20.3 20.3
District Nurses 92.8 92.8
Training & Other 38.4 38.4
2011/12 Cost 4291 | 1,766.9 | 231.4 | 1,998.3
Funding Source 2011/12
£'000s
NHS Sheffield 765.9

Page 73

18



Sheffield City Council 1,232.5

1,998.4

The table below shows comparative costs for residential care in other settings.

Settings Weekly Variance
Cost/Bed

£'s £'s

Resource Centres 913

Residential Care
Beds 362 -551

Nursed Beds 500 -413

3. The Rationale for Change

NHS Sheffield (NHSS) and Sheffield City Council (SCC) agreed the need to review the
role and future of the resource centres for 2012/13 and beyond so that there is clear
joint understanding of the service required and of the options for how the required
service is to be provided, as part of our joint work on intermediate care and vision to
provide more support at home.

Both parties had indicated that they believed there would be opportunities for making
better use of the funding that had been historically used to fund the 42 beds. For the
city council, the reductions in government funding was an important factor, particularly if
there could be a net reduction in expenditure whilst also continuing to purchase the
necessary alternative services.

The rationale for this review and an options appraisal was that:

e The two buildings, at Hazlehurst and Sevenfields, are no longer fit for
purpose

e The resource centre beds have higher running costs than other intermediate
care rehabilitation beds

e There was an incomplete understanding of the service provided

e Models of care for intermediate care are changing, with NHSS requiring
nursed beds and SCC moving away from bed based care and support

Any service change for 2012/13 and beyond must be clearly understood in the context
of:

e The strategic case made for 120 nursed intermediate care beds for the
city and the development of the Right First time strategy for urgent care

19
Page 74



e A vision for more services to be delivered at home in the context of a
wider market

e SCC’s move away from bed based care and support

e NHS S and SCC’s requirement to secure modern, high quality, recovery,
reablement, and rehabilitation services to patients registered with a
Sheffield GP

e Our aim to provide every individual with an opportunity to regain
maximum recovery in a non-acute setting. This will include a planned
return home (or to a suitable alternative residence) enabling the patient to
achieve optimum levels of confidence and independence

e Our aim to prevent avoidable admissions to permanent residential care

4, Objectives of the appraisal:

An options appraisal was undertaken by officers, which was then challenged and
reviewed by senior managers. As a result of this review a further option to avoid
misinterpretation was added and compared with the five others. This made the option
appraisal clearer, with explicit consideration of the option to decommission the 42 beds
and provide the same (like for like) care in new or different buildings.

Senior officers also believed that there was an over-weighting (60%) on making
savings/value for money, and that weighting should be given to meeting future need in
any commissioning of services. The value for money rating was thus reduced to 30%
and 30% weighting allocated to meeting future need.

Whilst these changes did not alter the outcomes from the appraisal, with its clear
conclusions for decommissioning the resource centres, it did show that such a
recommendation was not dominated by any single benefits criteria, such as the drive to
making savings across health and social care.

Further work will be required as a result of this process to determine other significant
issues, including the funding requirements for the service and the specification for the
services.

We are proposing to proceed on the basis that the recommended option:

Takes the interests of patients and carers into consideration

Enables the provision of safe, effective, quality personalised care
Supports NHS S and SCC commissioning strategies

Is sustainable and flexible

Is capable of evolving to meet an increasingly challenging environment
Is a more effective targeting of resources to need

Achieves value for money

Provides increasing patient choice

Seeks to maximise independence

Reduces the demand for high cost long term placements

20
Page 75



Benefit

criteria

Criterion Weighting Notes

Meeting future 30% ¢ To what extent does the
need option meet the needs of

people discharged from
hospital to receive therapy, to
rehabilitate and to regain
independence?

Value for Money | 30% ¢ Does the option provide
savings and therefore better
value for money?

e Is there a positive or negative
impact on other services?

Strategic Fit 10% ¢ Does this option have a close
fit with the strategic direction
of commissioning, including
the Right First Time strategy?

e Or how far is the option away
from meeting this?

e Does it meet with current local
and national policy drivers?

Do Ability 20% ¢ Is this option do able taking
into account timing,
reputational and political risks
and the practicality of
implementing this?

Strategic Market | 10% e Is there sufficient actual or
Assessment potential supply in the market
for this service?

e |s this option sustainable?

[\

Options:

. No change — maintain the current 42 jointly funded beds

Decommission the existing 42 beds and meet need through a redesigned
community based model

Decommission 21 beds and one building without any re provision retaining
21 beds in the other building

Decommission 42 beds and 2 buildings without re providing care
Decommission 42 beds in the current buildings and commission alternative
care elsewhere based on current needs and demand

Decommission the 42 beds and provide the same care in new or different
buildings

21
Page 76



The following narrative describes how each option compared to the key factors against
the available evidence. An overview of our scoring is available in Appendix 1.

Option 1. No change — maintain the current 42 jointly funded beds

Meeting Future Need

¢ As NHS Sheffield requires nursed care for the provision of intermediate
care, and SCC is moving away from offering bed based care, this option
does not meet future need well

e The buildings are no longer fit for purpose and therefore do not meet
need well

Potential savings

¢ The buildings have a limited life span and would require substantial
investment to maintain the buildings and bring the accommodation up to
CQC standards e.g. no single rooms with on suite

e The present cost of the beds are significantly higher than in the
independent sector,

e There are therefore no potential savings and significant need for
investment associated with this option

Strategic Fit

¢ Not a strategic fit for health intermediate care, as this requires either
nursed beds or care in people’s own home

¢ Not a strategic fit with SCC direction of travel for social care re-
enablement, an options appraisal previously undertaken determined that
re-enablement should not be delivered in a bed based model

Do Ability

e ltis clearly possible to do nothing but the above suggests that it is not
sustainable to do so, financially or with regard to CQC regulations

¢ Buildings not fit for purpose longer term

e Longer term financial impact not doable

Strategic Market Assessment

e Would not be sustainable in the longer term

This option out of the 6 considered is deemed the 5" choice.

Option 2. Decommission the existing 42 beds and meet need through a
redesigned community based model

Meeting Future Need

22
Page 77



e As NHS Sheffield requires nursed care for the provision of intermediate
care, and SCC is moving away from offering bed based care, this option
might meet future need well

Potential savings

e There would be saving from not running and maintaining the buildings

e Cost of providing care for the patients who would have access to bed
based care would be greater if provided in the community. Therapy staff
provide care on two sites, the cost of visiting people in their own homes
has the potential to increase the unit cost

e Possible double running costs - duplication of CICS and STIT service

Strategic Fit

e This is strategic fit with both NHS S and SCC policy to provide care at
home

Do Ability

e This may not be do-able within the planned timescale is April 2012 due to
the time required to design, test and implement a new model of care

e A plan with a timescale would have to developed to expand or
commission new services to provide for this group of people

Strategic Market Assessment

¢ An assessment of the market would have to be undertaken to ensure the
independent sector could provide an integrated community model of care

¢ An enhanced specification would have to be put in place to manage the
level of care these people would require

e A strategic needs assessment would have to be undertaken for the night
care element of the service that is provided in the existing beds

This option out of the 6 considered is deemed the 2" choice.

Option 3. Decommission 21 beds and one building without any re-provision
retaining 21 beds in the other building

Meeting Future Need

¢ As NHS Sheffield requires nursed care for the provision of intermediate
care, and SCC is moving away from offering bed based care, this option
does not meet future need well

e This option reduces overall capacity to provide care

e The buildings are no longer fit for purpose and therefore do not meet
need well

Potential savings

23
Page 78



¢ Make some savings through the closure of one building
¢ Investment in one unit to up- grade to CQC standards
o Likely negative impact on other services if care is not re-provided
e Cost of staff redundancy
Strategic Fit
¢ Neither retention of one building nor not re-providing care meet strategic
objectives
Do Ability

e This is a partial solution so is do able

¢ Risk of not reinvesting saving from the closure of one unit and the impact
on other community and hospital services

e Remaining building not fit for purpose — longer term financial impact — not
doable

Strategic Market Assessment

¢ Not sustainable in the long term
e Potential to buy alternative beds in the independent sector

This option out of the 6 considered is deemed the 4" choice

Option 4. Decommission 42 beds and 2 buildings without re providing care
Meeting Future Need

e As there is an ongoing need for intermediate care and social care
reablement, this option does not meet future need

Potential savings

e Savings from decommissioning if no reinvestment in alternatives.

e A major risk that not providing alternatives would result in increased costs
in the wider health and social care economy, e.g. by delaying patient
discharge from hospital resulting in increased length of stay, and pressure
on SCC purchasing budgets for short term placements and increased
home support. This risk is considered likely to outweight savings

e Cost of staff redundancy

Strategic Fit

e Current provision is not a strategic fit for NHS or SCC, as noted above

24
Page 79



e However, not reproviding care would be inconsistent with NHSS and SCC
strategies

Do Ability

¢ Doable. However unmet demand will appear elsewhere in the system

¢ Timeframe to manage decommissioning for April 2012 would be
challenging

Strategic Market Assessment
o The market for bed based service is sufficient to manage displaced

demand

This option out of the 6 considered is deemed the 5™= choice

Option 5. Decommission 42 beds in the current buildings and commission
alternative care elsewhere based on current needs and demand

Meeting Future Need

e This option meets future need well, offering nursed beds for intermediate
care and flexibility to provide social care in line with people’s choices

Potential savings

e There may be savings to be gained from open procurement of services.

e Thereis a risk to providing the beds in more than two locations as this
will increase the therapy costs if the service is fragmented

e Staff redundancies would have to be considered against any savings

Strategic Fit

¢ This is a strategic fit with the Intermediate Care Strategy where there is a
need to provide intermediate care in a nursed bed based environment

e This is a strategic fit with social care commissioning plans, where
reablement beds are not deemed to be required

Do Ability
e This is do able within a reasonable timescale but it would need to take

account of the provision required, the type of patients/ type of beds
required, location of re commissioned beds and appropriateness

Strategic Market Assessment

25
Page 80



e The independent sector could provide nursed beds and the current
market position suggest sufficient availability of beds

This option out of the 6 considered is deemed the 1% choice

Option 6. Decommission 42 beds in the current buildings and provide the same
care in new or different buildings

Meeting Future Need

e This option meets future need poorly, as it does not offer nursed beds for
intermediate care and does not give flexibility to provide social care in line
with people’s choices

Potential savings

e There is likely to be a significant additional cost to procuring new buildings

Strategic Fit

¢ Not a strategic fit for health intermediate care, as this requires either
nursed beds or care in people’s own home

¢ Not a strategic fit with SCC direction of travel for social care re-
enablement, an options appraisal previously undertaken determined that
re-enablement should not be delivered in a bed based model

Do Ability

e |tis not known whether it would be possible to find existing buildings.
New building would be possible, but would take considerable time.

Strategic Market Assessment

¢ Noissues, if buildings could be found

This option out of the 6 considered is deemed the 3™ choice

6. Conclusion and Recommendations

The review and challenge has produced clear conclusions and recommended Option 5.
The second preferred option would be to commission intermediate care in a community
model, but this does not meet need as well and may not provide value for money. The
3"preferred option is to reprovide the current care in new or different buildings, but this
does not meet need well and is likely to increase costs.

The city council will conclude its consultations based on option 5 and both NHSS and
SCC will be asked to make final decisions based on this review and the feedback from

26
Page 81



the consultations. If approved, implementation will be subject to an NHSS business
case and agreement of contractual terms that ensures value for money for the services
it will commission to replace its use of the beds. SCC will carry out its own
commissioning for its requirements.

27

Page 82



8¢

00¢C 0.€ 08 0S1 144 0zl 001 jejol
oy 14 Ot v 0¢ € 0¢ € 0¢ 4 0¢ C ol juswissassy|
}oJe\ d169jensg
08 14 08 1% 0¢ | 014 4 4 4 0¢ I 0¢ Ayiqe oq
02 4 oy 1% 0 0 0¢ 4 0¢ c 0¢ 4 0l )4 o169jeng
0 0 06 c 0¢ | 0¢ | 09 4 0 0 0€ sBuines
jeuajod
(42)
09 4 4 14 0 0 0€ ’ 06 c 09 C 0€ paaN Buigidy
O]
21098 X JYB1apn| 9109 |9100G X| 9100G |9100G X|3J00G X 3109 | 9109S |9109S X| 9109S |9109S X| 9109S | JybBIapy | eudud Ewmm
ybBIam WBIdM | ybBram WBIdM WBIam a
puewsap pue uonduosaqg
Spaau Jualind uo uoneuep
sbuip|ing juaiayip 1o paseq a1eymas|e uoisinold Buip|ing 92IAISS abueyo oN
M3U Ul 81BD dwes ay) aleo sAeUIS) R aJ Jnoyum L pue spaq LZ Aunwwod
apinoad pue sbuipjing UOISSILULLOD pue| SPadzy ey UOISSIWIWOD 9 pajepouw
JuaLINO 8y} UI SPaQ | gBypying jueuno |  UOISSILWOD 8] B UOISSILIWO0D
Z{ uoissiuwooa oc.g c._ speq zi aq al pue spaq zvy
uoISsIWWo98( UOISSIWLWOD 8
9 uondo G uondo y uondo ¢ uondo Z uondo | uondo

199YS Sur102s [esreaddy uondQ 1 xipuaddy’



Appendix C

Adult Social Care and Support

Budget Savings Consultation event

Come and hear an overview about how Sheffield City Council Adult Social Care
and Support services are planning to manage with less money next year.

ﬂuhm e ' When is the event?
+  Adults who have a Learning Disability or Mental Date:  Tuesday, 31st January 2012
Health condition, Disabled Adults and Older o e B g ,
People who use Adult Social Care services Venue: Sheffield Town Hall, Reception Rooms
»  Carers 4 Fa Refreshments will be available.
«  Organisations and people ave an interest in
Adult Social Care and Support p ~
At this event you'll be able to find out more about how How do | book my place?
t?hese plans ?:Id affect you, ask questions, discuss your Let us know you plan to attend and tell us about any
priorities and have your say. adjustments you need by:
For example we’ll ask you about plans for: Q@ 2735017
. mmﬁgt:::t?mn: small piocis of \‘/F}J budget@sheffield.gov.uk /
«  Working with you to help you be as independent as
. ('(ou can find out more about the budget consu!tat'on\
¢ 3 i m i
+  Supporting people at home during the Night. . T
- and see updates on line by visiting
\we'll listen to your views and ideas about the plans. L www.sheffield.gov.uk/budget.
Appendix D
Page 84

29



Public consultation 31/1/12 meeting report

Intermediate Care Resource centres.
Proposal:

Draft proposals about the future of two Intermediate Care Resource Centres.

Comments made:

= CQC rate the service as excellent, therefore not not fit for purpose.
» Physical environment important, but service provided also.

= Do not move people into care homes — 5 years ago St Lukes rented rooms in care homes
— don’t spoil the service.

» Any re-provision will need to meet same standards of excellence. What evidence is there to
demonstrate it will be of same standard?

= Critical issue is what happens to staff, i.e. loss of skills, expertise & experience in
rehabilitation. Service offered now is specialised & should remain so.

= How does this fit with the NHSS strategy for ‘intermediate care’?
» Quality of care should not be sacrificed for cost.

= Quality Intermediate care critical in terms of efficiency.

» If having to support an option it would be option 5.

Appendix E

Response from Sheffield Carers Centre to potential changes to the Intermediate Care
Resource Centres, Hazelhurst and Sevenfields

The Carers Centre endorses the need for unit-based intermediate care because we believe
that providing care within a unit gives additional support to unpaid carers and family members

by:

A) Giving the unpaid carer/family greater opportunity to adjust to the change in their cared-
for person and become familiar with the new needs of the cared-for person and seek
guidance and support from staff. This would apply, for example, post-hospital
discharge for a person newly diagnosed with stroke.

B) Providing an opportunity for the staff of the unit to assess the needs of the cared-for
person on a 24 hour basis, which is essential to understand the person’s full abilities
and therefore provide assistance/guidance for the unpaid carer who will be providing
care long-term. This would not be achievable if the cared-for person is at home.

C) providing a point of reference, should there be difficulties for the carer in the future

D) Providing a break from caring for the carer in cases where the cared-for person has a
long-term condition (i.e. not newly diagnosed).

Page 85
30



The Carers Centre urges the Council to:

A) Be transparent regarding the savings made by option 5 and how it will ensure that the
majority of funding will be used to develop alternative intermediate care

B) Be explicit in how it will work with carers in the development of the individual model of
intermediate care, for example by consulting carers as part of any assessment,
including carers in reviews, including carers’ observations and treating them as expert
partners in care. Carers often report how the cared-for person exaggerates their own
abilities when communicating with professionals and how important it is that the views
of carers and family are taken into account in order to ensure the best long-term
support

C) Carry out careful selection and monitoring procedures for intermediate care delivered in
nursing homes. Carers have often reported very variable experiences of nursing home-
based intermediate care, which has sometimes caused considerable distress.

Sheffield Carers Centre
28 February 2012

Page 86
31



Appendix F
Sheffield

Eddie Sherwood
c/o Quality & Development Team
Floor 8, Redvers House

S heffield your health - your care - your say

S12JQ

The Circle

33 Rockingham Lane
Sheffield

S14FW

Tel: 0114 253 6690
info@sheffieldlink.org.uk
www.sheffieldlink.org.uk

29" February 2012
Dear Eddie

Consultation on Potential Changes to the Intermediate Care Resource Centres,
Hazlehurst and Sevenfields

Thank you for the “Dear Stakeholder” letter received by Sheffield LINk on 26" January 2012.
Please accept this letter as Sheffield LINk’s official response to the proposals outlined in that
letter. | would be grateful if you could draw our comments to the attention of the Cabinet
meeting on 11" April 2012.

This response is based on discussions at two LINk meetings, on a report from one of the LINk
Vice Chairs (who is also the Sheffield Dignity Champion) and on comments by LINk members
following their attendance at the Adult Social Care Budget Consultation Event held on 31%
January 2012.

Unfortunately it was not possible for LINk to arrange a public meeting on these proposals
within the short consultation period allowed for comments. Nor was it possible for us to gather
as much information as we would have liked on the costs, staffing and usage as well as the
outcomes for patients pertaining to this issue.

1. The Options Proposed
We agree that option 5 is the best if the centres were to close. We would have liked more
information on how future need would be met by offering nursed beds for Intermediate Care
(IC). Where will this be? Is the proposed new 120 bed community unit assumed to be
available?
However we would make the following points on the rationale for closing the Centres:

Page 87

32



Firstly we feel the state of the buildings is not as poor as is suggested. We understand that
they both had a considerable refurbishment approx 8-10 years ago; this did not go as far as
provision of en-suite facilities, but the bedrooms do have wash handbasins. As you know,
toilets, showers and bathrooms are shared as in hospitals so we do not feel this is
unreasonable given that the Centres are not permanent residential units. As one LINk member
commented:

“Most people who need intermediate care do not have an en suite bathroom at home and
would not expect to have one anywhere else. My mother had intermediate/respite care and
never suggested that she would like to have an en suite bathroom”.

Secondly we have concerns about the use of nursing home beds for IC without considerable
preparatory work being undertaken on staff training, proper facilities being provided for
reablement and a ‘culture change’. As Sheffield’s Dignity Champion says:

e Nursing home staff tend to be risk averse, and with that practice will provide little
opportunity for reablement or rehabilitation unless staff have training and a different
approach. It is vital in IC to avoid ‘institutionalisation’

e Concern that people who use intermediate care services will be subsumed into the
workings of the nursing homes, i.e. staff focus on nursing care and not reablement or
rehabilitation. That staff will be focussed on ‘doing for’ as opposed to ‘doing with’.

o Staff will ‘help’ everybody in the rush to ‘care for’ people who need nursing care and not
adopt a rehabilitation approach. An option to minimise this would be to have dedicated
corridor/s in any nursing home used, where the staff would be trained and focussed on
reablement and rehabilitation.

e Any alternative provision considered should help, rather than hinder the principle in
RFT, i.e. as early discharge as possible & not undo work done earlier in the ‘customer
Jjourney’.

e Current Resource Centres have designated ‘therapy kitchens’, which provide the
opportunity for people to practise with and become familiar with equipment e.g. kettle
tippers that they might subsequently need at home. This is a step change in reablement
or rehabilitation, the process is a continuum. Hospital settings do not ‘normalise’ people,
therefore a necessary step in the process is currently provided by Resource Centres.
Not sure that nursing homes are able to provide this option.

e Many people who live in nursing homes have a degree of dementia (both diagnosed
and undiagnosed) the evidence widely reported is of limited staffing and therefore
limited numbers of staff would struggle to provide time for reablement or rehabilitation.
This takes time, potentially more time than ‘doing for’. It is stated’the independent
sector could provide nursed beds and the current market position suggest sufficient
availability of beds”. Where is the evidence of capacity within ‘nursing homes’ to provide
the capacity which would be lost with closure? When two homes were potentially to be
closed last July there were less than 100 beds across the city available. There would be
dispersion across the sector in the city as no one or two homes will have this 42 bed
capacity. How will the capacity and the level and quality of staff be found for the
preferred option to work?

e In IC therapists liaise and handover the therapy tasks to the responsible staff (key
worker) this aids the reablement or rehabilitation process as therapy continues

Page 88
33



Another LINK member commented:

“Nursing homes by definition are not the most conducive environments for encouraging
rehabilitation and independence, as they are usually populated by those who have significant
health and care needs. It seems we are looking at making a different genre of care fit what is
needed. Ethos and atmosphere play their part; will staff be able to provide both necessary
environments?”

Thirdly we think the cost savings of the current service as compared to nursed beds
elsewhere have been overstated. The nursed beds will still require most of the “in-reach”
therapy and other health care services and so bring the per bed cost up to £600-700 rather
than the average non-IC cost of £5600. There will also be extra costs in providing IC in multiple
locations, in recruiting the additional staffing needed and in the building/refurbishment work
necessary for independent nursing homes.

Finally we understand that some nursing home beds are currently commissioned and in use
for IC. Therefore we would like to see an analysis of the patients outcomes for those who have
used them.

2. Some Suggestions

We would like to make the following suggestions for consideration in the provision of
Intermediate Care:

e Within a nursing home an option would be to have e.g. specialised 10 bed wing or
group for the specific purpose of reablement or rehabilitation

e Some pilot studies to be undertaken of the needs and trends in IC that would enable a
balance to be found between traditional nursing care and reablement/ rehabilitation and
therefore to be staffed accordingly

e Potentially use closed wards in hospital, they might be adapted to perform the function
and be staffed by ‘care/support staff’, making good use of resources

3. The Consultation Process on these Proposals

We consider that the “Dear Stakeholder” letter gives very little information on the proposals. It
refers to a Review Report and a document entitled “Outcomes from the Review” was
distributed at the event on 31st January. It is not clear if this Outcomes document is the full
Review Report referred to. Since neither the Outcomes document nor your letter are lengthy
we consider it would have been better to issue both combined as a Consultation Document for
these proposals.

Perhaps of greater concern is the fact that neither document refers to the previous closure of
two Care4You Resource Centres — Ravenscroft and Foxwood, nor to the three other Centres
at Bole Hill, Norbury and Hurlfield View. It was with some consternation that LINk read in the
Sheffield Star on 20" February that there is a separate proposal to close these latter three
Centres in addition.

Page 89
34



We consider that for the purposes of this Consultation it would have been more open and
transparent of the Council to have explained the background and the proposals for all of the
Centres so that the public had the context within which to consider the future of Hazlehurst
and Sevenfields!

For this reason Sheffield LINk will be referring this matter to the Healthier Communities
and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee and requesting a detailed examination of the
issues involved.

4. Lack of Strategic Context

The consultation documents do not mention how these proposals fit with the Intermediate
Care Strategy of NHS Sheffield:

The Intermediate Care Strategy included the provision of a 120-bedded community unit to
replace existing capacity in the city which is provided in a number of locations. Local
Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) - Scheme Update Report NHS Sheffield Board Meeting 5 April
2011.

The LINk had been informed that this is still NHS Sheffield’s Strategy but it will need to be
reviewed by the (shadow) Clinical Commissioning Group in the context of the Right First Time
programme.

Clearly any proposal to reduce IC beds in the Resource Centres needs to be related to
whether the proposed 120 bed community unit will ever become a reality or not.

Whilst recognising that these proposals refer to Intermediate Care, we believe that IC also
needs to be considered in the overall context of care for people with dementia in the city, as
often dementia plays a part in IC.

A report issued by the Council in January 2011 on Ravenscroft and Foxwood Centres (Report
on Resource Centre De-commissioning Consultation October 2010 — January 2011) states:

5.3 There is a longer term strategic plan being developed between all partners in the
City to develop services that better fit the needs of people with dementia and the people
who care for them. The emphasis will be on earlier intervention to reduce the need in
the longer term for residential and nursing care. The future of the remaining resource
centres will considered within the context of these changes.

Nowhere in the documents issued for this consultation have we seen evidence of this longer
term strategic plan.

Elsewhere in the same Report it says:

4.6 Both health and social care are now committed to focusing on earlier intervention and a
more personalised approach to delivering support for people with dementia and their
carers in line with the National Dementia Strategy. Through this approach it is
anticipated that people will be able to stay independent longer and live better with
dementia.

The papers for this Consultation, the subject of this response, fail to explain how the proposals
align with the National Dementia Strategy or place the proposals within the context of the
Sheffield Dementia Strategy, which was last published in 2007.

Page 90
35



5. Concluding Comments

For the reasons given above Sheffield LINk cannot see with any clarity what future
Intermediate Care service would replace the services lost if Hazlehurst and Sevenfields were

to close. It also appears to us that there is no obvious, agreed and up to date Intermediate
Care or Dementia Strategy for the city at the present time.

Sheffield LINk strongly recommends that these proposals should be re-considered

within an overall joint health and social care strategic plan for people with dementia and
Intermediate Care needs and no changes made to any of the existing Resource Centres
until this strategic plan has been approved by the shadow Health and Well Being Board.

| trust these comments are helpful.
Yours sincerely
JruAndls_
Mike Smith
Chair, Sheffield LINk
cc Richard Webb
Councillor Mary Lea

lan Atkinson
Tim Furness

Page 91
36



Appendix G

Care4You Resource Centre Consultation

1/2/12
Quality & Standards Manager, SCC Business Strategy
Meeting with; Dignity Champion

Response to ‘stakeholder update’ and after brief consideration of ‘Review report’; summary of
main points raised by Helen and responses.

Raised
Dignity Champion believed there may be a permanent resident still living at Sevenfields.
Response

Resolved.

Raised
Little evidence about effectiveness of the proposed option (5).
Response

Option 5 is affirming that NHS has used nursing home provision successfully for intermediate
care and will continue to do so. It also acknowledges that it is better to have a nurse led bed
provision, whilst the council will focus on social care provision for people who need discharge.

Raised

Within the document the potential savings state in bullet 2 “risk re beds in more than two
locations”, please bear this in mind when reading on, as the comparison costs as set out in
page 3 implies that using nursing beds will cost £500, this does not include the costs of the
level of therapy services required or additional staff ratio to achieve reablement/rehabilitation
in line with intermediate care.

Concern that people who use intermediate care services will be subsumed into the workings of
the alternative provision if in nursing homes, i.e. staff focus on nursing care and not
reablement or rehabilitation. That staff will be focussed on ‘doing for’ as opposed to ‘doing
with’.

Response

The issue about the risk of fragmentation if the beds are in more locations is recognised and
will be dealt with in commissioning alternative care, if that is the decision made — i.e. it will be a
factor in procuring nursed intermediate care beds. With regard to the concern about

Page 92
37



intermediate care patients being subsumed into general nursing home care, this has not been
evidenced as an issue for the 70 plus intermediate care beds already provided within nursing
homes.

Raised

Staff will ‘help’ everybody for speed in the rush to ‘care for’ people who need nursing care and
not adopt a rehabilitation approach. An option to minimise this would be to have dedicated
corridor/s in any nursing home used, where the staff would be trained and focussed on
reablement and rehabilitation.

Any alternative provision considered should help, rather than hinder the principle in RFT, i.e.
as early discharge as possible & not undo work done earlier in the ‘customer journey’.

Current Resource Centres have designated ‘therapy kitchens’, which provide the opportunity
for people to practise with and become familiar with equipment e.g. kettle tippers that they
might subsequently need at home when presented with something new at home my
experience is the use of it is not adopted despite the risk. This is a step change in reablement
or rehabilitation, the process is a continuum. Hospital settings doesn’t ‘normalise’ people,
therefore a necessary step in the process is currently provided by Resource Centres. Not sure
that nursing homes are able to provide this option.

Response

Helpful comments. Commissioning of alternative care would focus on enabling rehabilitation,
and would be undertaken in the context of the RFT programme.

The analysis of beds in the resource centres indicated that 11 of the 42 beds were not being
used for this purpose but were people who needed long term residential care, and it will be
better if people were able to move to a home of their choice.

Raised

The Dignity Champion reported that LINk ‘Enter & View’ visits have generally found that
residents in nursing homes are ‘cared for’ in some ways, but institutionalised in others, they
(staff and management) are also in many ways risk averse, and with that practice will provide
little opportunity for reablement or rehabilitation unless staff have training and a different
approach.

Response

The intermediate care beds are commissioned by NHS with a specification for intermediate
care and this would apply to any additional beds procured by NHS.

Raised

Many people who live in nursing homes have a degree of dementia (both diagnosed and
undiagnosed) the evidence widely reported is of limited staffing and therefore limited numbers
of staff would struggle to provide time for reablement or rehabilitation. This takes time,
potentially more time than ‘doing for’.

Response

Page 93
38



Again this would for NHS to consider in their procurement. It would be NHSS’s intention to
commission therapy support to intermediate care patients in nursed beds, as it does with other
such beds.

Raised

There’s a familiarity with what exists, but little actual evidence within the report about what
might replace it being effective.

Response

See previous comment on the use of all the 142 beds.

Raised

Where is the evidence of capacity within ‘nursing homes’ to provide the capacity which would
be lost with closure? When two homes were potentially to be closed last July there were less
than 100 beds across the city available where is the current capacity? “page 9 option 5
Strategic Market Assessment “the independent sector could provide nursed beds and the
current market position suggests sufficient availability of beds” again you will be looking across
the whole dispersed sector in the city no one or two homes will have this 42 bed capacity Tell
us how you will create the capacity and the level and quality of staff for the preferred option to
work.

Response

We are confident that there is capacity given that 3 new homes have opened in the last year
and no closures and NHS were available to purchase another 20 intermediate care beds
without difficulty.

Raised

The Dignity Champion described from experience the working relationship between the staff
team and visiting therapists. Therapists liaise and handover the therapy tasks to the
responsible staff (key worker) this aids the reablement or rehabilitation process as therapy
continues throughout the stay not just when a therapist is present. The Dignity Champion
questioned if this will still be able to occur in a ‘dispersed’ model.

Response

Wherever there are intermediate beds, there will be the required health input so that they can
perform the intermediate care function. This includes therapy input. Commissioning nursed
beds may not result in an increase in the number of providers of those beds and therefore the
model may be no more dispersed than it currently is.

Raised
Staffs skills required are specific to reablement / rehabilitation.

Response

Page 94
39



Again this is part and parcel of the requirements from NHS in their purchase of intermediate
care beds.

Raised

The Dignity Champion felt there’s not enough comparator information about the different
options to consider any of them but fully appreciated the reasons the current model could not
continue.

The NHSS Intermediate Care review concluded a specific city-wide resource should be built,
this hasn’t been done. (LIFT Project)

Response

This is still the long term plan of NHSS.

Raised

Areas that need consideration if it's assumed the current resources can’t continue as they are
would be:

o Not dispersed (although this does have an impact on accessibility & proximity for
any visitors).

o An option would be to have e.g. specialised 10 bed wing or group for the specific

purpose of reablement or rehabilitation.

Balance between traditional nursing care and reablement/ rehabilitation based on

O
analysis of needs/trends and staffed accordingly.
o Making use of what’s effective about the current provision — focus as a specialism.
o Therapy trained ‘care/support staff’.
o Appropriate training for staff.
o Potentially use closed wards in hospital, they might be adapted to perform the
function & be staffed by ‘care/support staff’, making good use of resources.
17/2/12
Raised

The responses have no substantiation to support them, there is no evidence given about the
outcomes being produced via the current contracted nursing beds in the independent sector
for reablement/intermediate care, comparator results of the length of stays and the full
outcomes as rated against the current Care4you homes, the issue about real costs i.e. the
costs of therapy provision is neatly side stepped. There is no response to the list of issues at
the end of the report.

Please pass these comments on

23/2/112
Response

» In terms of outcomes, still seeking that information and will pass on asap.

Page 95
40



= Regarding costs, added to analysis by showing comparisons excluding in-reach health

care below:

The total cost equates to £913 per bed per week including in-reach health care. (£755
excluding the cost of in- reach healthcare), compared with a cost of around £500 per week for

nursed beds and around £362 for residential beds. See below:

Bed cost comparison;

Settings Weekly | Variance

Cost/Bed
£'s £'s

Resource Centres 913
Resource centre beds excluding in-reach health care 755 -158
Residential Care Beds excluding in-reach health care 362 -551
Nursed Beds excluding in-reach health care 500 -413

and

Anticipated cost of maintenance;

Refurbishment of the two centres was carried out in 2004, with the materials designed to have
a shelf life of around 5 years. Both centres would therefore be due for redecoration and a face
lift. The flat roofs at both premises are also likely to require extensive work, possibly new roofs,
over the next two to three years. Extensive patch repairs have been carried out. As you would

expect, buildings of this age are not energy efficient.

Car parks were top surfaces as part of the 2004 work and will be due again.

These costs are purely estimates and will depend on climate interventions with the roofs and

external decorations.

Hazlehurst

Roof approx £25K

Car Park £12k

Redecoration £120k

Bathroom refurbishment £10k minimum per bathroom.
Sevenfields

Roof approx for repairs £15K

Car park £15k

Lift may need renewing minimum £40k

Page 96

41



And all as above.

In terms of the response to the list of issues at the end of the report of our meeting 1/2/12, as
these are issues we discussed if it's assumed the current resources can’t continue as they are
would be, these will be recorded in the consultation report that will go alongside the Cabinet

report on 11/4/12.

Appendix H

20/2/12

Quality & Standards Manager, SCC Business Strategy

Meeting with Older Peoples Champion.

Response to ‘stakeholder update’ and ‘Review report’;

Summary of main points raised by the Older Peoples Champion

Questions and responses provided:

Question raised

Response given

| have read through the documents you gave
me and more questions occurred-- for
instance-- what is the advantage of the
council paying for beds that already exist
elsewhere? | may be dim but it makes no
sense to me. Surely patient’s going into
respite generally have to get funding from
somewhere anyway, isn't this the same thing?
(Where does payment usually come from for
someone in residential or nursing homes who
can't afford the fees, council or NHS?)
Option 5 states there are sufficient beds
available in the independent sector so
why can't the patients just book into them--
why does the council have to 'buy' them first?
Will look forward to learning more

The capacity that would be purchased in
place of the Resource Centres is vacant
capacity in private nursing or residential care
home places. Places not currently being used
or funded. When the council purchases the
required bed as and when, this will be on an
individual basis, rather than en- bloc as it is
currently through the provision of the centres.
NHSS may well purchase their replacement
beds on a bloc basis.

A proportion of the capacity for social care
use (11 beds notionally based on previous
use) could also be provided by

supporting/reabling people better at home.

If a nursing assessor decides a person needs
nursing care, the nursing part of care is
funded by NHS Sheffield. The person still has
to pay for the accommodation and the
personal care they receive in the home.
Unless they pay the full fee for their care this
won'’t affect their contribution.

In the case of the residential beds in the
Resource centres, they’re free to the person
for the first 6 weeks. Then a fee is assessed
for.

Page 97

42




In terms of paying for Residential care
generally, SCC helps to pay the fees for
residential care if the person is assessed as
needing it.

A Financial Assessment is carried out based
on evidence of the person’s income and
capital.

SCC sets funding levels each year; these are the

amounts we agree to pay up to for certain types of
care.

SCC pays the difference between the person’s
contribution and the fee for the place in the home, as
long as the home doesn’t charge more than our
funding level.

All residents in residential and nursing homes
have to pay something towards the cost of
their support. The amount is worked out
according to a national set of rules, and will
vary depending on circumstances. Most of
your income, including your state benefit,
goes towards paying your fees. However
you'll be left with a weekly amount for your
own use, called your Personal Allowance

Summary:
The Older Peoples Champion asked about some background information:

Location, of 2 resource centres, Sevenfields is Ben Lane in Wadsley, in North of the city,
Hazlehurst in the South at Jordanthorpe, near Lowedges. Both ‘old stock’ probably built in
70’s.

The Dignity Champion felt that arrangements seem overly complicated at present and that
NHSS should provide IC.

Questions why IC can’t be provided in a hospital setting. SCC indicated previous consultation
& findings, people’s wishes to be cared for at home where possible. The Older Peoples
Champion felt this ok if appropriate support provided, isolation at home is an important issue
for some people.

Is there no money to upgrade the resource centres, wouldn’t that be more cost effective than
closure?

NH background reports, costs of upgrade and repair a key issue. No funding, not seen as
desirable (see options appraisal).

The Older Peoples Champion believes:

e There does need to be provision, important to people’s recovery. Thinks it should be
‘hospital based’ e.g. NGH site. Cottage hospital model?

e That a decision shouldn’t be based on just money, but on quality as well.

Page 98
42




The NHS should provide IC (as in option 5), but there does need to be capacity in
nursing homes to provide the service. Once the resource centers are gone, they’re
gone for good.

Option 5 is ok provided that people aren’t just abandoned in them (‘out of sight out of
mind’) there does need to be a ‘proper plan’ in place from admission at the outset
towards discharge home. The Older Peoples Champion felt in that respect it's a good
thing that resource centres use is time-limited i.e. free to the person for the first 6
weeks. Then a fee is assessed for.

Private provision is not always good; the Older Peoples Champion has experience of
working in both public and private sector and gave examples of staffing levels and
basic equipment not being as good. Therefore it's important to make sure quality is
checked, there needs to be appropriate standards of support; enough staff, appropriate
care, listening to the person.

The Older Peoples Champion asked what the plans for the buildings are. NH indicated
if the proposals are accepted by the council; then we’ll look at how best to use the
sites. The OPC thinks a plan should be up front as it may provide opportunity e.g. if
sold might provide funding for alternative resources.

The Older Peoples Champion wonders why one unit couldn’t be closed to fund the
other. NH the options appraisal considered that option but ruled it out; (see option
appraisal re option 3)

The Older Peoples Champion asked who we’re consulting with aside from herself, NH
indicated; some e.g. 50+, VAS, Carers Centre, Age UK, Dignity Champion. The Older
Peoples Champion thinks ex service users would be a group to ask as they have direct
experience.

Page 99
43



Appendix |
Extract from CQC report:

What we found about the standards we reviewed and how well
Sevenfields Resource Centre was meeting them

Outcome 01: People should be treated with respect, involved in discussions about their
care and treatment and able to influence how the service is run.

We found the people who use services have their views and experiences taken into

account in the way the service is provided and have their privacy and dignity respected.

Outcome 04: People should get safe and appropriate care that meets their needs and
supports their rights.

We found people who use services experience effective, safe and appropriate care, treatment
and support that meets their needs and protects their rights.

Outcome 07: People should be protected from abuse and staff should respect their
human rights.

We found systems and processes in place to help ensure people who use services are
protected from abuse, or the risk of abuse, and their human rights upheld.

Outcome 14: Staff should be properly trained and supervised, and have the chance to
develop and improve their skills.

We found that staff had undertaken training received regular supervision sessions along with
an individual appraisal.

Outcome 16: The service should have quality checking systems to manage risks and
assure the health, welfare and safety of people who receive care.

We found effective systems were in place to monitor the quality of service provision so that
people who use services will benefit from safe quality care.

Page 100
44



Review of the Caredyou
resource centres

Officer responses to the
consultation to be read in
conjunction with the
cabinet report and the
consultation report

7™ March 2012

Sheftield

City Council

HAe =t

Page 101



Summary of the Public Consultation

Summary of views

People were invited to express their views and concerns on the options appraisal,
the preferred option to stop having the 42 beds at Sevenfields and Hazelhurst and
use the money to buy alternative care to meet current needs (including nursed
intermediate care), based on demand and to offer any alternative solutions.

In general there was a mixed response to the consultation. Whilst there was some
support and acknowledgement of the financial issues leading to the
recommendation of ‘option 5’, there were also concerns raised about;

e not sacrificing quality solely on the basis of cost, the quality of service
provided by the resource centres and the recognition they have,

¢ the future of the workforce from an individual impact perspective and as a
valuable resource for the city,

¢ the capacity and capability of nursing homes to provide appropriate IC,

¢ the fact that a planned 120 bed NHS Sheffield IC resource had not been built
as yet

e a critique of the options appraisal and review process.

Summary of officer responses

Sheffield City Council and NHS Sheffield are fully committed to ensuring that all
concerns raised are fully considered and if considered to be a risk, are addressed
and mitigated as part of any new delivery model. For example, in relation to
concerns about potential quality and performance of other providers, the council and
NHSS will ensure that the procurement process is robust and the quality of care is
monitored as part of internal monitoring processes.

Both the City Council and the NHS are totally committed to ensuring that everyone
who needs intermediate care will be able to receive this without delay and no
changes in services will be made that would put this commitment into jeopardy

Concern. Not sacrificing quality solely on the basis of cost, the quality of
service provided by the resource centres and the recognition they have,

Officers in the consultations were very explicit about recognising the quality of
service given by the staff teams; and the proposal to decommission the centres is
not a reflection on the contribution of the staff. Both officers in the NHSS and SCC,
however, do need to look to how we can ensure people get nursed led intermediate
care.

We should also look to opportunities, when they arise, to secure improved
environmental standards and facilities as this is also an element in quality services.
Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.2 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 102



We agree that reducing costs must not be at the expense of safeguarding quality;
and the experience of NHSS using intermediate care beds in nursing homes does
not demonstrate quality is compromised. It is correct to say that the council will
reduce its costs by over £250 per bed per week, though purchasing the required
services from the independent sector; and at a time of severe funding reductions,
this must be an important consideration in the decision making.

Concern. The capacity and capability of nursing homes to provide appropriate
Intermediate Care.

NHS Sheffield has a well-established model of intermediate care using beds in
several nursing care homes. NHS Sheffield has a rehabilitation training programme
and employs rehabilitation assistants in Intermediate care who support service users
to return to independence. Intermediate care is managed by Sheffield Teaching
Hospitals (STH) and the therapeutic care is provided by NHS staff into those

homes. If the recommended option is approved, NHS Sheffield would work with
STH to secure beds in nursing care homes, adopting a similar model of care as with
existing nursing homes.

The Council’s Strategic Commissioning & Partnership Section have internal
monitoring processes for care/nursing homes and routinely check on quality and
safety of the service provided. Formal compliance checks are scheduled throughout
the year, along with unannounced visits; officers also visit to respond to complaints.
This reduces any risk of failure in the market but provides early indications of where
support may be required.

In the unlikely event that a provider in the private sector fails, the Council, along with
the PCT where appropriate, will instigate its risk management procedure to stabilise
and minimise the risk

On a fortnightly basis there are also meetings to discuss any incidents and monitor
performance against KPIs. Representatives include the Contracts Team, Care
Home Support Team (CHST), Care Home Assessment Team (CHAT), and NHS
Sheffield (NHSS). An example of this type of organised response was the NHS and
SCC joint approach to managing the risk from the recent collapse of Southern
Cross.

Concern. A critique of the options appraisal and review process.

A robust options appraisal process to consider a number of options was undertaken
as a joint initiative between officers of NHS Sheffield (NHSS) and Sheffield City
Council (SCC). It is a formally agreed process where all the participants bring their
knowledge and expertise to agree, the options to be considered, benefit criteria,
scores and weightings. The weightings applied to each criterion were officer
recommendations and subject to senior management approval.

The options appraisals undertaken by officers was then challenged and reviewed by
senior managers. As a result of this review a further option to avoid misinterpretation
was added and compared with the five others. This made the option appraisal

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.3 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 103



clearer, with explicit consideration of the option to decommission the 42 beds and
provide the same (like for like) care in new or different buildings.

The preference for nursed beds is informed by clinical experience and by the
outcome of the consultation on intermediate care which informed the development
of IC strategy. This means procuring alternative provision which better meets health
needs and to ensure intermediate care is good value for money and the best way of
meeting the needs of the people who require these services.

From an NHS and professional clinical perspective this means the services are
better placed within a nursing home where there are qualified nurses on site 24
hours a day. The cared4you resource centres are only registered to provide
residential care. In addition the resource centre buildings are old stock, they lack
modern facilities for rehabilitation and there are no en-suite bedroom

facilities. Intermediate care could be provided by different providers of nursing care
offering much improved facilities which are more cost effective

Sheffield City Council has plans in place to accommodate people who require long
term social care support (approx 11 of the 42 beds- 20% of users) in other more
updated services in the independent sector. Not only would this provide more
suitable accommodation but would also offer those people a choice of location in
which they can be supported.

Concern. The future of the workforce from an individual impact perspective
and as a valuable resource for the city,

We do recognise and value the professionalism and expertise of our staff working
the resource centres, and we will ensure that we follow council procedures, working
with the staff, trade unions and HR.

It is the intention of the Council to first seek alternative appointments for affected
staff through redeployment opportunities. However, the Council at present has
limited options for redeployment of all staff and these plans could potentially result in
the Council having to explore other options through voluntary severance, early
retirement or redundancy.

For all staff affected by the proposed changes a number of guarantees have been
given by senior management & HR:

e No one would be disadvantaged or left vulnerable, all staff will be treated
fairly and equal in line with procedures.

e There would be access to HR advice and trade union representation on a
regular basis

e There would be regular staff meetings to share information

e There would be opportunities to apply for VER/VS schemes and
continued advice and support would be given

e There would a skills audit of staff where appropriate to best match people
to job opportunities.

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.4 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 104



NHS Sheffield staff currently providing support to both units, although not directly
affected by the proposed changes, have also been provided information about the
proposals and will continue to receive regular updates as part of this process.

They have received reassurances that their skills and experience will be used in the
replacement beds as they undertake an ‘in-reach’ role to these services

Concern. The fact that a planned 120 bed NHS Sheffield IC resource had not
been built as yet

The establishment of a 120 bed community facility remains one of the NHS's
objectives to be considered as part of the Right First Time programme. There is now
a much greater emphasis on providing intermediate care in people’s own homes
whenever possible, although both the NHS and City Council recognise that we will
always require some bed based provision.

Questions raised from staff working at Sevenfields resource centre and officer
responses

1 Who chose the six options?

The options considered were part of an options appraisal process undertaken
as a joint initiative between officers of NHS Sheffield (NHSS) and Sheffield
City Council (SCC). It is a formally agreed process where all the participants
bring their knowledge and expertise to agree, the options to be considered,
benefit criteria, scores and weightings. The weightings applied to each
criterion were officer recommendations and subject to senior management
approval.

2. Who made the decision on option 5?

As mentioned above, senior officers of NHS Sheffield (NHSS) and Sheffield
City Council (SCC) were part of the options appraisal process and
recommended Option 5. There has been no decision to proceed with this
option as this will be subject to Cabinet approval in April.

3 Why have the buildings a ‘limited life span’ as recorded in the
communities’ portfolio?

Refurbishment of the two centres was carried out in 2004, with the materials
designed to have a shelf life of around 5 years. Both centres would therefore
be due for redecoration and a face lift. The flat roofs at both premises are
also likely to require extensive work, possibly new roofs, over the next two to
three years. Extensive patch repairs have been carried out. As you would
expect, buildings of this age are not energy efficient. Car parks were top
surfaced as part of the 2004 work and will be due again.

4 “No en-suite- we are an extension of hospital rehab. They don’t provide
en-suite and most elderly don’t have en-suite in their own homes. This
does not affect their rehab program and setting of goals. Sufficient

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.5 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 105



toilets and bathrooms are already available or the building wouldn’t
have passed regulations.

As the buildings are 1970s builds, they lack the facilities people prefer and
are not appropriate for providing rehabilitation services. They no longer meet
people’s aspirations - for example people are required to share bathrooms
and toilets.

5 Where is it documented it needs to be en-suite? Outcome 10 in the
current care standards does not state that bedrooms should be an en-
suite; our bedrooms at both units are fit for purpose.

The units meet the basic care standards but the environment is not
appropriate for providing rehabilitation, and does not meet people’s
aspirations, for example people have to use shared bathrooms and toilets.
We want to ensure that we are providing the very best facilities for people
requiring rehabilitation. The proposals provide an opportunity to do this at
lower cost and to provide care in a nursed environment to gain better
outcomes for people.

6 Why does rehab cost more with the council than the private sector?

The council has higher overhead costs and staff have different terms and
conditions of pay compared to the private sector.

7 Front line staff have not had a pay rise in a number of years. Increments
were frozen so why is Caredyou in deep trouble?

Caredyou is not in deep trouble. Regrettably the budget cuts identified by the
coalition government in the comprehensive spending review set out in
October 2010 had a major impact nationally across all public sector
organisations. The Council is required to make savings of £230 million over a
period of three years from April 2011 which equates to savings of 30% on the
Portfolio budget over the three year period. The NHS fund beds in the
resource centres and have made the decision not to continue to funding them
as they wish to deliver the services differently due to the reductions in their
budget.

The council introduced a new pay model in April 2010 and employees in front
line positions in the Care4You service received a significant increase in salary
as a result of this review. A freeze on pay increments was not introduced
until April 2011.

8 What alternative residence is the council going to provide for patients
to achieve optimum levels of confidence and independence?

CICS and STIT along with the proposed home care reablement service
(which will provide home support reablement to people in the community to
avoid hospital admissions etc) will provide intermediate and reablement care

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.6 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 106



and home support for people in their own homes, to help them to build
confidence and independence in the environment in which they normally live.

Keeping people in their own homes for rehabilitation and reablement
minimises the disruption to their lives and enables them to be reabled in their
normal place of residence and is thought to enable them to improve and gain
confidence more quickly.

9 Why are the elderly being targeted, surely cuts could be made
elsewhere within the council.

This proposed change does not mean there will be cuts to older people’s
services. We want to provide the best facilities appropriate for the
rehabilitation of older people. It has never been our intention to stop providing
intermediate care services in the city. Everyone who needs this service will
be offered it, but we are suggesting that this will be in other facilities rather
than the two resource centres. Our review of the use of the beds and
different options was a process to look at whether we should provide this
service and the 42 beds in a different way.

10 Why spend money on tracking devices in 2011 when you knew this
decommissioning was going to happen? (total waste of money)

We have commissioned a homecare monitoring system for in-house services
and in the independent sector which efficiently controls the delivery of our
commissioned home care. Home care workers have devices which enables
them to log in and out of service users homes.

The system brings huge benefits for both the council and for service users
and is a very important step in increasing the safety of vulnerable people. It
has enabled us to actively manage and verify the quality and timeliness of
services, and the added security for service users and carer’'s means for
example, should a care worker not arrive within a specified time, thereby
identifying a possible missed visit, the system can automatically notify the
provider via alerts and the situation can be resolved immediately

The system resolves most service queries, complaints and investigations and
reduces resource time required.

Other benefits include cost reductions’ in payroll and invoicing, improved
cash flow and reduced back office costs. There is also eradication of
laborious manual production and checking of timesheets.

11 Why have nurses based in units when they could visit twice weekly to
save in NHS funding like they did year ago?

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.7 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 107



We believe that most patients who need intermediate care will benefit from
having nursing care constantly available in a nursing home, rather than
having visiting nurses. This is the model of care we have in most of the other
intermediate care sites and is the model proposed in our strategy.

12 Why have contracts with food retailers when we could cut the costs
going to supermarkets.

As a public organisation we have to conform to procurement rules and buy
responsibly in a way that is consistent with obtaining value for money and
complying with EU legislation. We have to ensure we are, fair, flexible, and
transparent, and providing equal treatment to all potential suppliers when
buying goods or services. We award contracts on the basis of ‘Most
Economically Advantageous’ (a balance of quality and cost) tender rather
than on price alone.

13 Kier charges are high, why not use independent contractors and cuts
the costs. (shop around for reasonable prices)

See answer for 12

14 If councillors do not agree to the closures, will commissioning go
ahead and do it anyway like they did with the day care service?

NHS Sheffield will have to revisit the issue either jointly with SCC, or
separately, in relation to the 31 beds that have been calculated as their share
of the current service. In doing that they would want to take into account the
reasons for the councillors’ decision, which may alter their current view of the
options.

15 Letter that went out to people’s homes from Julie Dore, 84% of returns
stated not to cut elderly services, so why go ahead with the closure?

This proposed change does not mean there will be cuts to older people’s
services. We want to ensure we are providing an environment which has the
facilities most appropriate for rehabilitation. This proposed change is due to
condition of the two centres and the fact that they do not provide nursed
accommodation. The changes would mean commissioning beds in a nursing
care setting rather than residential care, as this will provide better care and
better outcomes for people. The Council has tried to protect as much social
care spending as possible.

16 The cost of the beds in these units states £900 per week, when the new
staffing structure was implemented we were told that we had reduced
unit’s costs to £700 per week?

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.8 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 108



The total cost of the beds equate to £913 per bed per week which includes
the in-reach health care costs. The bed cost excluding this cost is £755 per
week.

17 Why not have AICS back like we used to have this worked perfectly and
there is currently none available at this side of the city.

AICS are still operation at the Northern General Hospital covering all areas of
the city. They continue to assess and refer service users onto care pathways
suitable for their needs.

18 Is there any other way without decommissioning these two units
Sevenfields and Hazelhurst that we could use the buildings in respect
for care for the elderly?

It is not part of our strategy or direction of travel for older people to continue
providing building based services in this way. People have been telling us
they want to be supported to live independently at home or closer to home as
possible. The demand for bed based / building based support is therefore
reducing, and with the introduction of personal budgets people are now using
their money more creatively to enable them to remain in their homes for
longer.

19 Who in Sheffield City has rehab trained staff as we do, that can provide
the same amount of rehab care with high rates of successes of clients
returning back home?

NHS Sheffield have a rehabilitation training programme and employ their own
rehabilitation assistants in Intermediate care who support service users to
return to independence.

20. Have the cost of weekly charges been over inflated to use as an excuse
to close Sevenfields and Hazelhurst.

No, the beds are provided at a high cost in comparison to other similar
facilities in the market. The total cost of the beds per week equates to £913
per bed per week (£755 excluding the cost of in-reach healthcare). This
compares to a cost of around £500 per week for nursed residential care in the
independent sector, and £362 per week for residential beds.

21. Our facilities are used for training purposes, this will mean the Council
will have to find alternative venue which could incur higher costs to the
service.

We have arrangements with a wide range of facilities in the city which could
be used to accommodate training at low or no cost, for example we have

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.9 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 109



several Council occupied buildings which have the capacity to accommodate
training sessions on a regular basis. i.e. Brockwood, Moorfoot, Townhall.

Questions raised by LINk and officer responses

1. Firstly we feel the state of the buildings is not as poor as is suggested.
We understand that they both had a considerable refurbishment approx
8-10 years ago; this did not go as far as provision of en-suite facilities,
but the bedrooms do have wash hand basins. As you know, toilets,
showers and bathrooms are shared as in hospitals so we do not feel
this is unreasonable given that the Centres are not permanent
residential units. As one LINk member commented:

“Most people who need intermediate care do not have an en suite bathroom at home
and would not expect to have one anywhere else. My mother had intermediate/respite
care and never suggested that she would like to have an en suite bathroom”.

See responses to 3.4.5 above

2. We have concerns about the use of nursing home beds for IC without
considerable preparatory work being undertaken on staff training,
proper facilities being provided for reablement and a ‘culture change’

Response NHSS

We understand the concerns expressed, and the suggestions made are
helpful. We would note, though, that the NHS in Sheffield has a well-
established model of intermediate care using beds in several nursing care
homes. Intermediate care is managed by STH and the therapeutic care is
provided by NHS staff into those homes. If the recommended option is
approved, NHS Sheffield would work with STH to secure beds in nursing care
homes, adopting a similar model of care as with existing nursing homes
(some of whom may offer additional beds, of course, in our procurement).
We would be happy for LINk to visit and talk to the intermediate care service,
if that would be helpful in providing further reassurance.

With regard to the risk of dispersal of the service, we recognise the risk.
Sevenfields and Hazlehurst are two of seven current providers of
intermediate care beds. We would prefer not to have more providers than
this, as it increase travel time and reduces the effectiveness of the therapy
service working into the homes. This preference may be one of the criteria
that inform our procurement of alternative beds.

3. We think the cost savings of the current service as compared to nursed
beds elsewhere have been overstated. The nursed beds will still require

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.10 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 110



most of the “in-reach” therapy and other health care services and so
bring the per bed cost up to £600-700 rather than the average non-IC
cost of £500. There will also be extra costs in providing IC in multiple
locations, in recruiting the additional staffing needed and in the
building/refurbishment work necessary for independent nursing homes.

Response NHSS

Cost comparisons - we accept the point made about the comparisons in the
option appraisal. Both the Cabinet report and the report that CCG Committee
received use the correct comparisons.

Response SCC

In the written response to LINk, an adjusted figure was given showing cost
per bed. This shows that if the ‘in-reach’ health care costs are discounted i.e.
Resource centre beds excluding in-reach health care cost around £755 per
week and nursed beds excluding in-reach health care cost around £500 over
31 beds an annual saving of around £411k is potentially made.

Whilst it's not the intention to replace all 11 residential care beds like for like,
residential care beds excluding in-reach health care cost around £360 per
week, compared with Resource centre beds excluding in-reach health care
cost around £755 per week. An annual saving of around £226k is potentially
made.

Total potential saving of £637k.

3. We understand that some nursing home beds are currently
commissioned and in use for IC. Therefore we would like to see an
analysis of the patients outcomes for those who have used them

Response NHSS

Outcomes - our preference for nursed beds is informed by clinical experience
and by the outcome of the consultation on intermediate care which informed
the development of our strategy. We do not have comparative data for
outcomes in nursed beds and in residential beds. However, as noted above,
we would be happy for LINk to visit our intermediate care service and talk to
the clinicians about the outcomes they achieve with patients.

4. We would like to make the following suggestions for consideration in
the provision of Intermediate Care:
e Within a nursing home an option would be to have e.g. specialised 10
bed wing or group for the specific purpose of reablement or
rehabilitation

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.11 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 111



e Some pilot studies to be undertaken of the needs and trends in IC that
would enable a balance to be found between traditional nursing care
and reablement/ rehabilitation and therefore to be staffed accordingly

o Potentially use closed wards in hospital, they might be adapted to
perform the function and be staffed by ‘care/support staff’, making good
use of resources

Response NHSS

These are helpful suggestions, which will be passed to the intermediate care
service to consider.

5. We consider that the “Dear Stakeholder” letter gives very little
information on the proposals. It refers to a Review Report and a
document entitled “Outcomes from the Review” was distributed at the
event on 31st January. It is not clear if this Outcomes document is the
full Review Report referred to. Since neither the Outcomes document
nor your letter are lengthy we consider it would have been better to
issue both combined as a Consultation Document for these proposals.

Response SCC

The ‘Dear Stakeholder’ letter stated that if people wanted access to the
‘Review Report’, they could request a copy. The Review report was available
at the public consultation event on 31 January and attention was drawn to
this.

The ‘Dear Stakeholder’ letter was intended to give a proportionate amount of
clear and succinct information to stakeholders with an opportunity for those
people who wanted further information to be able to request it.

The Review Report was made available at a meeting with Sevenfields
bungalow residents.

A copy of it was forwarded electronically to LINk on 2 February 2012 and a
copy of was provided to both the Older People’s and Dignity Champions.

The report was requested and sent to 3 individuals separately.

6. Perhaps of greater concern is the fact that neither document refers to
the previous closure of two Care4You Resource Centres — Ravenscroft
and Foxwood, nor to the three other Centres at Bole Hill, Norbury and
Hurlfield View. It was with some consternation that LINk read in the
Sheffield Star on 20™ February that there is a separate proposal to close
these latter three Centres in addition.

16 It is important to note that the care4you resource centres provide very
different facilities to the other resource centres. The dementia resource

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.12 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 112



centres are managed by the Health and Social Care Trust as opposed to the
City Council and are part of the review of dementia services in the City. The
three dementia resource centres mentioned provide day support and respite
care — they do not provide a permanent home for anyone. The intention is not
to reduce access to services but modernise them so that they meet the
changing expectations of older people. No person who currently attends
these centres will have their overall service reduced through any changes
that may happen.Sheffield City Council has not yet made a decision about
the future of these centres — a detailed consultation will be undertaken to help
us determine how best to provide dementia day and respite in the future.

Ravenscroft was providing a mix of services before it was closed in 2011 and
all the services have been successfully re provided. The fact that the term
resource centre is used does not necessarily mean they provide the same
facilities

5. Clearly any proposal to reduce IC beds in the Resource Centres needs
to be related to whether the proposed 120 bed community unit will ever
become a reality or not.

Response NHSS

The establishment of a community facility remains one of the NHS's
objectives, although the question will be reconsidered as part of the Right
First Time programme. Our current model of care, including any procurement
of new beds, is an interim model.

Issue Date: Issue No.:1
Page No.13 of 13

Revision No.: 0 Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 114



Agenda Iltem 11

Sheffield SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

City Council Cabinet Report 1 1
Report of: Sonia Sharp
Date: 23 May 2012
Subject: The Lowfield MyPlace (U-Mix) Project
Author of Report: Tony Tweedy 2296140

Summary The purpose of this paper is to set out a proposal to take forward
the Lowfield MyPlace project (named the U-Mix project) including the
establishment of arrangements for the operational management of the centre
and associated programme of activity.

This proposal builds on the success of key elements of current work to date
including:

o Securing MyPlace, Football Foundation and Play Builder funding
to provide the capital investment required to create a range of
facilities to meet the needs of children, young people and the
wider community.

° The involvement of young people throughout the process of
designing the facilities and the provision to be delivered.

° On-going consultation with a range of partners, including the
VCF and private sectors.

° The key role played by Football Unites, Racism Divides (FURD)
in developing and delivering a successful project.

o The identification of city council revenue funding required to
support the facility in accordance with the business plan.

o The development of an income generation strategy to address
and reduce the reliance on city council funding in the future.

Page 115



Reasons for Recommendations:

The City Council has placed significant priority on improving facilities at a local
level for children, young people and the wider community. This proposal
supports this commitment and provides a real opportunity to improve the local
offer available.

The investment by the City Council of the revenue funding required will
provide a secure basis on which to allow the income generation strategy to be
realised.

This proposal delivers the requirement of funding bodies that external
providers to the Council have a key role in the development and operation of
this facility. It also supports the Council’s commitment to working in
collaboration with external organisations and ensuring that high quality
activities and services and are secured and provided.

This proposal seeks to use existing resource within the CYPF budget and is
not seeking to secure any additional City Council funding.

Scarce funds need to be utilised effectively and this is best delivered through
a joined up approach that engages a range of partners and draws on their
expertise and access to additional, external resources.

Recommendations:
Cabinet is recommended:

To allocate funding from the Youth budgets to the U-Mix centre project for the
first two years of the centre’s operation, such funding to be up to the levels set
out in paragraph 6.3 above, and to be used to support running costs including,
but not limited to, staffing and management costs referred to in this report;

To note the proposed contractual arrangements described in paragraph 5.6
and to delegate authority to the Executive Director, Children Young People
and Families in consultation with the Lead Cabinet Member for Children
Young People and Families and the Director of Commercial Services, to
appoint, through a process approved by the Director of Commercial Services,
a suitable provider by way of a formal agreement on such terms as she
considers appropriate to undertake the management of the U-Mix centre,
including the appointment and provision of staff, as described in this report; .

To confirm the authority of the Executive Director, Children, Young People
and Families, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children, Young
People and Families, to take such further steps to progress the Lowfield
project or to safeguard the City Council’s interests in relation to it as she shall
consider appropriate, including entering into such agreements or
arrangements with third parties on such terms as she considers appropriate,
and, if she considers it necessary, to vary the arrangements for the
management of the U-Mix centre proposed in this report.

Page 116



Background Papers:

Category of Report: OPEN

If Closed add - ‘Not for publication because it contains exempt
information under Paragraph... of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended).’

* Delete as appropriate

Page 117



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist

Financial Implications

YES Cleared by: Tricia Phillipson

Legal Implications

YES Cleared by: Andrew Bullock

Equality of Opportunity Implications

YES Cleared by: Bashir Khan

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications

YES

Human rights Implications

NO:

Environmental and Sustainability implications

YES

Economic impact

YES

Community safety implications

YES

Human resources implications

YES

Property implications

YES

Area(s) affected

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader

Jackie Drayton

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in

CYPF

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?

YES

Press release

NO

Page 118




1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

The Lowfield MyPlace (U-Mix) Project

Summary

The purpose of this paper is to set out a proposal to take forward the Lowfield
MyPlace project (named the U-Mix project) including the establishment of
arrangements for the operational management of the centre and associated
programme of activity.

Background

The MyPlace initiative was launched as part of the previous Government’s
plans to provide an additional capital investment of £190m over a two year
period to support the establishment of state of the art youth facilities. Sheffield
City Council, with the support of key partners, succeeded in securing £2.14m
of MyPlace funding to take forward the Lowfield project alongside a host of
additional funding to establish a range of additional facilities on the site.

Following the election of the Coalition Government, all plans to finalise
arrangements to release funding were suspended subject to a Government
review of the quality and sustainability of proposed projects.

At its meeting on 23 March 2011 Cabinet:

a) confirmed its belief that the development of the U-Mix project would
promote and improve the social and environmental well-being of the
people of Sheffield, and especially of young people in the Lowfield
area;

b) authorised the Head of Design and Project Management to issue
instructions to the contractor, William Birch, to carry out the
construction of the Lowfield youth and open space facility programme,
subject to the Executive Director, Children, Young People and
Families, being satisfied that the necessary funding for these works
had been secured; and

C) authorised the Executive Director, Children, Young People and
Families, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children and
Young People’s Services, to ‘take such further steps to progress the
Lowfield project or to safeguard the City Council’s interests in relation
to it as she shall consider appropriate, including entering into such
agreements or arrangements with third parties on such terms as she
considers appropriate’.

The contractor was duly instructed to proceed and the construction works are
now largely completed. Final fit out and handover of the facilities is scheduled
for the end of June/beginning of July 2012. The intention is to bring the centre
into operation as soon as possible after this date.

Page 119



Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

2.5 The purpose of this paper is to set out a proposal to take forward the U-Mix
project, including the establishment of arrangements for the operational
management of the centre and associated programme of activity.

2.6 This proposal builds on the success of key elements of current work to date
including:

Securing MyPlace, Football Foundation and Play Builder funding to
provide the capital investment required to create a range of facilities to
meet the needs of children, young people and the wider community.

The involvement of young people throughout the process of designing
the facilities and the provision to be delivered.

On-going consultation with a range of partners, including the VCF and
private sectors.

The key role played by Football Unites, Racism Divides (FURD) in
developing and delivering a successful project.

The identification of City Council revenue funding required to support
the facility in accordance with the business plan.

The development of an income generation strategy to address and
reduce the reliance on City Council funding in the future.

2.7 The proposal highlights the need for the Council, through existing CYPF
budgets, to commit the resource required to ensure that the facility is managed
and operated effectively to meet the requirements of funders, as set out in the
business cases supporting funding applications.

2.8 There is also a need to create effective links between the range of groups and
organisations delivering Positive Activities to ensure a model of provision is
delivered appropriate to children and young people.

2.9 In addition, the role of the recently established Community Youth Teams (CYT),
comprising of Sheffield Futures staff and youth crime prevention staff is being
defined to support service delivery within the facility. The CYT will provide
additional targeted services and programmes for those children and young
people who are identified as vulnerable and need of more support.

2.10 This paper also outlines a proposed governance model for the facility to ensure
accountability and the engagement of all partners, stakeholders and the local
community in the running of the centre.

3. What does this mean for the people of Sheffield?

3.1 The overall vision for U-Mix is:

Page 120



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

“Young people working together achieving their full potential”

The U-Mix facility aims to bring young people together in a recognised neutral
venue by providing activities that have universal appeal. The universal/open
access engagement programme will be provided by a range of partners
committed to the development of this as a facility offering a wide range of
provision for local people.

U-Mix will predominantly serve as the One- Stop- Shop for the Community
Youth Team and Multi-Agency Support Team in the West area of the city
serving the Central, South and South West Community Assembly areas. The
facilities created, alongside collaborative working with partners, Lowfield
Primary and surrounding schools, will provide exciting opportunities for the
delivery of an all age universal/open access offer of activity, enhanced by a
targeted offer of support and services in response to local need.

U-Mix will provide a range of activities and initiatives that will benefit not only
children, young people and the local community, but also others from across
the city. This facility will provide a unique opportunity for young people and
other members of the community to develop confidence, skills and knowledge
that will have a positive effect on their future lifestyles.

Since the original business plan was composed, the project has worked in
partnership with the University of Sheffield. The University has secured EU
ProFit funding and committed to investing the funding within the Lowfield
project. The funding will provide outdoor equipment that will make Lowfield
the first UK field laboratory for innovation in sport and physical activity. This
project is about working with other European cities to provide innovative and
exciting outdoor fithess opportunities that will encourage individuals not
normally active to become so. This element of the project and the
management of funding will remain the responsibility of the University.

Outcome and Sustainability
Outcomes to be Delivered

The project will deliver the following for children, young people and the wider
community:

° ensure the range of delivery partners work in collaboration with the
Community Youth Team to address the needs of young people who
are not engaged in education, employment or training. This includes
the provision of personalised support, volunteering opportunities and
activity programmes

o offer a comprehensive range of positive activities to ensure young
people gain the skills, knowledge and experience to avoid risk taking
behaviour, feel informed to make positive choices about their lifestyle
and make a positive contribution to community and city life

Page 121



Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

° provide a high quality offer of sport and physical activity to enhance
health and emotional well-being outcomes for children and young
people, promoting healthy lifestyles, individual and team activities and
physical well-being

° promote community cohesion through the delivery of a range of
activities to celebrate cultural differences and diversity, remove barriers
that prevent young people accessing provision and provide
intergenerational approaches to engage the wider community in the life
of the U-Mix facility

° ensure the engagement of young people in the development and
delivery of the project through the active involvement of young people
in decision-making processes associated with U-Mix.

4.2 Programme Development and Income Generation Strategy

4.2.1 Considerable work has been undertaken to assess potential income that the
project can generate, whilst also meeting outcomes required by funders and the
community. The facility has a synthetic sports pitch that has considerable
potential to generate income. A seasonal activity programme has been
developed for the synthetic pitch allowing for both access by community
organisations and the generation of income.

4.2.2 The business case includes a sensitivity analysis that indicates income at
different percentages of use at the full commercial rate. During the first 2 years
of operation surplus will be generated that will off set the need to greatly
increase the full commercial percentage at year 3 and beyond. If operating at
25% commercial use it is estimated that a surplus will be generated over a 10
year period

4.2.3 Market research has also taken place by the Urban Mixtures young people’s
group to test out the potential development of commercial football and cricket
leagues. The research centred around potential teams made up of people
employed locally. For instance, a range of restaurants were visited on London
and Ecclesall roads with employees subsequently expressing an interest in
using the facility.

4.2.4 In addition, an activity programme for the building is also being developed on a
similar basis that will include commercial, concessionary and free access to
local groups and providers.

4.2.5 A major partner in the U-Mix Lowfield project is Football Unites, Racism
Divides (FURD), a third sector project with a track record of delivering high
quality sports and educational activities, tackling racism and inequality. FURD
played a lead role in securing Football Foundation funding for the U-Mix centre
and have been a primary partner from the start. FURD do not receive any core
funding from the City Council but bring with them a wide range of externally
funded services and activities that will add value to the work undertaken in the
facility.

Page 122



Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

4.2.6 The City Council has agreed with FURD that it will dispose of the latter’s

existing premises, The Stables on the Mount Pleasant site, and that this
organisation will take up residence at U-Mix as the ‘anchor tenant’. As a result,
FURD will be a lead partner in the delivery of activities at the facility and as a
result will transfer all of the organisations current delivery to the U-Mix site.
FURD has successfully provided a wide range of activities in the city for many
years making it well placed to deliver a range of youth activities in its own right
and with other partners at no cost to the City Council.

4.2.7 FURD has, therefore, the potential to make U-Mix highly successful in that it

not only has a national reputation for providing high quality sports, positive
activities and educational activities but it has also a track record of securing
substantial amounts of external funding from a wide range of sources that will
now benefit this facility.

4.3 Governance Arrangements

4.3.1 It is proposed that a project board is established to oversee the development

and management of the centre. Although the centre will, initially at least remain
a Council controlled facility, the board will have an important advisory role and
will be charged with monitoring the operation of the centre to ensure that the
vision for U-Mix, performance targets and the associated strategic objectives
are achieved.

4.3.2 It is proposed that the Board will include representatives of all key

5.1

stakeholders, including (subject to confirmation by Full Council) elected
members, a senior representative of Lifelong Learning, Skills and Communities,
FURD, Community Youth Teams, Lowfield Primary school, health
representatives, local Voluntary, Community and Faith sector representatives
and private sector representation.

Management Arrangements

In order to achieve these required outcomes the Council needs to ensure that
the centre is effectively and efficiently managed and staffed. A considerable
amount of effort has gone into assessing what staffing structure will be required
and this is outlined below.

5.2 Project Coordinator

5.2.1 It is believed that a Project Coordinator is required who would be responsible

for:

e developing excellent partnership working with local and city-wide
organisations, including young people

Page 123



5.2.2

Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

e developing a programme that meets sustainability, community and
external funding requirements

e ensuring appropriate financial and reporting systems are in place.

The Project Coordinator would not necessarily be a full-time post. The Project
Coordinator would be supported, in running the centre and the activities
organised through it, by the Facility Manager and Receptionist and a team of
Project Development Assistants. It is proposed that the Project Coordinator
will line manage the Facility Manager and be responsible for leading the
development and implementation of the activity programmes.

5.3 Facility Manager and Receptionist

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.4

5.4.1

54.2

5.5

5.5.1

These roles will be key to the effective operation of the facility both in terms of
working with the general public, centre users, partners and funders.

The Facility manager will have overall responsibility for Health and Safety,
Safeguarding and day-to day operation of the facility supported by relevant
city council colleagues. A main emphasis will be to ensure relationships are
maintained with current funders and developed with future funders, potential
users of the facility and the private sector.

The Receptionist role will ensure the priority of customer focus is maintained
and further developed when dealing with the general public and facility users
in relation to enquiries, needs, bookings and information. The receptionist will
coordinate the booking of spaces throughout the facility on behalf of partners
and providers and ensure resources and equipment are well maintained and
available for programme delivery.

Project Development Assistants

It is envisaged that the facility will be operational seven days per week from
8.30 am to 10.30 pm daily. In order to ensure there is full staffing coverage at
all times it is proposed that part-time Project Development Assistant posts are
established.

It is intended that the Project Development Assistants will undertake evening
and weekend duties providing continuous staffing of the facility responsible for
duties in relation to the operation of the facility and the activity programmes.
The Project Development Assistants will report to the Facility Manager to
ensure effective communication and planning to support the operation of the
facility.

Hours of Operation and Staff Cover

It is proposed that the staffing establishment described above will be deployed
as follows:-

Page 424



Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

Hours Monday- Friday staff in Weekends staff in
Attendance Attendance
8:30 am — 4:30 pm Facility Manager Programme Development
Receptionist Assistant
3:30 pm — 10:30 pm Programme Development | Programme Development
Assistant Assistant

5.5.2 The above table indicates the Manager’s core hours. It will be a requirement
that the manager is flexible in his/her work programme to meet service needs.

5.6 External Provider

5.6.1 Itis proposed that that an external provider of activities for children and young
people is appointed to lead on activity to operate the facility and ensure an
attractive wide ranging activity offer is developed and delivered to meet the
needs and interests of facility users. This approach will continue to
demonstrate the Council’s commitment to partnership working with external
organisations as well as delivering the vision and values set out in the
MyPlace funding proposal.

5.6.2 Accordingly it is intended that the Council will identify through an appropriate
process, and enter into a contractual arrangement with, a suitable
organisation to manage the centre on the Council’s behalf, including
employing, coordinating and managing the work of all staff appointed to the
roles and responsibilities set out above in paragraphs 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 The financial information set out within the project business case includes the
assumed council contribution of £185,000 for the financial years 2012-13 and
2013-14 as submitted in the MyPlace bid. This is expected to be the maximum
amount of resource required as the council’s contribution and this will be off-set
in accordance with income generated. The £185,000 revenue spend may not
be required to be paid ‘up front’ or at all. There are planned revenue streams
which could reduce or remove the required revenue spend from the City
Council. An additional £50,000 from the Council’s Youth budget (revenue) has
been allocated to support the capital spend. This allocation forms part of the
overall youth service revenue budget for 2012-13.

6.2 This financial summary does not include any potential income from sponsors or
the private sector, applications to additional funding sources or income
generated through letting of the building. Whilst the potential exists, it is felt that
until the facility is open and the benefits and outcomes can be demonstrated
strategically, additional income generation cannot be assumed at this stage.

Page 125



6.3

6.4.

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.

8.1

9.

9.1

Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

The following financial detail sets out how the resources are to be allocated
through identified council youth budgets:

Financial Year 1 April 2012 — 31 March 2013

Recruitment and staffing costs £125,979.00
Programme development £ 16,308.00
Launch costs £ 7,000.00
Site Security £ 15,000.00
TOTAL £164,287.00
Management fee/overheads £ 20,778.00
TOTAL £185,065.00

Financial Year 1 April 2013 — 31 March 2014

£185,065.00 as above
Less: recruitment costs and launch costs which will not be required in year 2.
plus 3% increase on salary costs

Total : £175,617

The project business case detailing projected income and expenditure, in
accordance with the MyPlace Business Case included in the funding bid

Legal Implications

The legal power for the Council to fund the running of the U-Mix Centre and to
appoint an external organisation to manage the centre is provided by the new
general power of competence contained in the Localism Act 2011.

The appointment of the external manager must be undertaken in accordance
with guidance from the Council’s Director of Commercial Services to ensure
that a proper process is followed. A formal agreement between the Council
and the appointed organisation will be necessary to make clear the respective
parties’ rights, responsibilities and expectations.

Further agreements will be required to confirm the terms of use of facilities at
the centre.

Human Resource Implications

All recruitment processes will be conducted in accordance with best practice
and with advice from HR professionals as appropriate.

Equal Opportunities

It is important to ensure all children, young people and the wider community
have the opportunity to access services to be provided from the facility. This will

Page 126



9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

10.

10.1

Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

include the need for additional targeting and support for those of our young
people who are most vulnerable and whose chances and choices may be
reduced because of family income, family circumstances, culture, race, gender,
ability, religious beliefs or sexuality.

This will be achieved through the establishment of customer feedback, review
and evaluation processes including on-going consultation and satisfaction
surveys with facility users and the local community. Facility governance
arrangements will also establish a User Forum/Committee to ensure facility
users have a voice in influencing the activity offer at the facility and are fully
engaged in decision-making processes.

Activity programmes and additional targeted services will be provided in
accordance with local need and the views of facility users and local people.

In addition, requirements to ensure the facility is fully inclusive will be included
in contracts and agreements with service providers and will be monitored
through performance management processes.

A full Equality Impact Assessment is attached to this report.
Environmental Sustainability

Through consultation and involvement processes, many young people have
demonstrated concerns about their local environment and the benefits that this
facility will provide in the local community. It is important that the local
environment is maintained to a high standard and children and young people
value the improvements this facility will make to the local environment.

10.2 The activity and programme offer will provide opportunities to encourage and

11.

11.1

support facility users to increase their awareness and knowledge in relation to
environmental issues. In particular service users will be encouraged to be
involved in the establishment and development of the community garden.

Alternatives considered

The Council has considered the option of transferring the facility through Trust
arrangements with an appropriate organisation/group. However, exploration of
this option has concluded that this would require the implementation of a longer
term project to establish a robust, sustainable arrangement. The requirements
of funders also mean that the operation of the facility must be prioritised.
Further work in relation to this option could continue alongside the operational
plans for the facility.

11.2 A further consideration has explored the establishment of the facility under

direct Council management and operation. This option has been rejected as it
will not achieve the added value provided through establishing the facility
through an external provider. External, independent providers have

Page 127



Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

opportunities to apply for and secure funding sources not accessible to local
authorities and provide significant added value to Council services in this way.
In addition, the current funding bodies require the engagement of external
providers as key to the development and operation of the facility.

11.3 The proposed approach set out in paragraph 5 of this paper has therefore been
established as the preferred option that will bring the most value to the
establishment of the facility.

12. Reasons for Recommendations

12.1 The City Council has placed significant priority on improving facilities at a local
level for children, young people and the wider community. This proposal
supports this commitment and provides a real opportunity to improve the local
offer available.

12.2 The investment by the City Council of the revenue funding required will provide
a secure basis on which to allow the income generation strategy to be realised.

12.3 This proposal delivers the requirement of funding bodies that external providers
to the Council have a key role in the development and operation of this facility.
It also supports the Council’s commitment to working in collaboration with
external organisations and ensuring that high quality activities and services and
are secured and provided.

12.4 This proposal seeks to use existing resource within the CYPF budget and is not
seeking to secure any additional City Council funding.

12.5 Scarce funds need to be utilised effectively and this is best delivered through a
joined up approach that engages a range of partners and draws on their
expertise and access to additional, external resources.

13. Recommendations

13.1 Cabinet is recommended:

13.1.1 To allocate funding from the Youth budgets to the U-Mix centre project for the
first two years of the centre’s operation, such funding to be up to the levels set
out in paragraph 6.3 above, and to be used to support running costs including,
but not limited to, staffing and management costs referred to in this report;

13.1.2 To note the proposed contractual arrangements described in paragraph 5.6
and to delegate authority to the Executive Director, Children Young People
and Families in consultation with the Lead Cabinet Member for Children
Young People and Families and the Director of Commercial Services, to
appoint, through a process approved by the Director of Commercial Services,
a suitable provider by way of a formal agreement on such terms as she

Page 128



Lowfield Cabinet paper FINAL 11.04.12

considers appropriate to undertake the management of the U-Mix centre,
including the appointment and provision of staff, as described in this report; .

13.1.3 To confirm the authority of the Executive Director, Children, Young People
and Families, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children, Young
People and Families, to take such further steps to progress the Lowfield
project or to safeguard the City Council’s interests in relation to it as she shall
consider appropriate, including entering into such agreements or
arrangements with third parties on such terms as she considers appropriate,
and, if she considers it necessary, to vary the arrangements for the
management of the U-Mix centre proposed in this report.

Page 129



L g Jo | ebed

HT1dOdd NI JO.LSHANI

I>u :mu And \\..q. ﬂw
PPYJAUS N A

SjuswIssosse-joedul-Ajijenba/AjISIoAIpAji[enba/siobeuew/jou pjogays,/:dny

MO[3q Yul] 3y}
uo Buiyo1jo Aq punoj aqg ued yaiym wioj siyj uil Buijjiy uaym asuepinb ayj o} 1ajal asea|d

Joalold ade|dAN playmon
w.io 4 juswssassy joeduw] Ajijenb3



14 g Jo Z ebed

|[esJaAluUN aAeY 1ey] sanianoe buipinoid Ag anuaa [esinau pasiubodal e ul Jaylabo) ajdoad BunoA Bulig 0] swie Ayljioe) pjaumo ay |
«lenuajod ||nj 119y} Bulaaiyoe 1ayjabo) Buiyiom

ajdoad Buno/ sI 109(oud ay) JO UOISIA 8] "18W aJe SJapuny JO sjuswalinbal ay) 1ey) pue [1Iounod ay) yum diysiauped ul Bujiom
Ajjioey ayy Jo juaswdojaasp ay ul 8jos Buipes| e Aejd 10}08g pJiy] ay) eyl ainsua |Im suswabuelse Bunoesuod pasodoud ay |
Ao} siyy woly AlaAljep 92IAI8S 8y} JO Sjuswia|e |euoielado piemio) aye) 0} Jels Aoy Jinioal

0] uonesiueblo |eussixe a|geyins e Julodde o) Buyass si 108loid ay] ‘eoeds usalb pjaiymoT 8y} Uo pajeoo| sallljioe) AJlunwwod
pue suods ‘Aejd ysijgeise pue Ajijioey; mau ayj Joniisuod o} Buipuny [euia)xa Jo AjalieA e painoas sey siaulled pue siapjoyayels

Jo abuel e yum diysieuped ul Bupiom ‘1ouno) A0 ay] "Aljioe) yinoA ue ay) Jo a1eis mau e BulaAliap ‘eAneniul 8oe|dAN plemoT]
9y} Jo yuswdolansp 8y} Bulpes) s 4dAD UIYIM (DS T1) Saliunwwo) pue s||ig Bulules Buojay s lounod AND payeys

£1lounoD 8y} JO swie JapIm ay] Ylm ul J1j 8say] op moy ‘198foid 1o Aoijod ay Jo sewooino pue asodind ‘swie ulew ay} ale Jeypn

‘dnoub yuswabeuew 10sloid
ayl Agq pejenjeAs $sa00Ns dIay) pue paloliuow aq ||im suonealidwi Aljenba aaey |je yoiym swie j108foud |jesano ay] "dnoib s sjdoad
BunoA e pue aoueul} ‘uonesado Ajjioe) uo ajeljuaduod |Im oym sdnouab gns Aq pauoddns dnoub yuswabeuew 2di6a)el)s e Jo }SISU0D

(M 84njona)s ay | "J0}0as ajeAlld ay) pue sdnoib Ajunwiuiod |B20] SAJOAUI |[IM 1Y) pajuswa|dwil 8q |[IM 8INjoN}S 0UBUIBAOL)

¢ 9busjieyo |eulaixa/malnal 1oad Jo ued se ‘ejdwexs 4o} — |3 8y} Ul paAjoAul 8jdoad Jayjo Aue alay) aly

Juawdojanaq
2169)e11S puke S82IAIBS |BSISAIUN Jebeuew Joluag ‘us||y wry :8jeudoidde Ji |3 |In) e Buna|dwod 1o} s|qisuodsal uosiad
‘SBOIAIBS YINOA U3y Wiy/alowaye|g ue| :1998loid 1o Aoijod ay) Jo) ajqisuodsal uosiad

108l0ud mau e si siy] :108loid 1o Adljod siy) s)

saniuNWwWwo)
pue s||INS ‘Buiuies Buojali:s/ealy 82IAI8S

1o8foid a2e|dAIN playmo
d4dAD:S/0lj0jj10d -9} 108loud Jo Adij0d

pajajdwod aq Jshui uoijaas siyy “(wioy siyy ui Joafoud 10 Aojjod,, se
A19A1}99]]09 0} palsajal aq 0}) jJoaloid/ABajeysjpuawainsold jainpasoad/Aoijodjuoijouny jo asodind pue sjiejaq ;| 1¥Vd

wo4 (v]3) Juswssassy joedw| Ayjenb3 j1ounon AN9 plaays

Page 131



€ g Jo ¢ abed

‘AlanIjap padiAIas pue adueulanob ‘sassasold Buew-uoisioap ul 8jJdoad BunoA Jo JUBWSA|OAUI BAOE
ay} ybnouy} senunuod j0sloud piaymo] ay) Jo AisAlep pue juswdojaasp ayj ul 8idoad BunoA Jo Juswabebus sy} 8iNSUS O] e
"AJj10.) plaMmo 8y} Jo | 8y} ul AJunwiwod Japim 8y} abebus 0y sayoeoudde [euonelsuabisiul
apinoud pue uoisinoud Buissaooe ajdoad BunoA juanalid jey) sialieq aAowal ‘AJISISAIP puB SB2UBIBYIP |BIN}ND 8)eiqs|90
0} saljAioe Jo abuel e Jo AlaAldp a8y} ybnody) uoisayod bunowoid Agq passalppe ale suoisus) AJlunwwod |ennuajod aiNSus 0] e
‘Buiag-||lam [ea1sAyd pue saniAloe wes) pue [enplAlpul ‘sajAysay| Ayyeay bunowold ‘ajdoad BunoA pue
uaJp|Iyo 1o} sawoolno Bulag-|jlom |euoijowa pue yjeay asueyua o0y AjiAnoe |eaisAyd pue uods Jo Jayo Aljenb ybiy e epinoid o] e
"aJI] Ao pue Ajunwiwod 0} uolINQLIUOD dAIISOd B 8)ew pue JnoiAeyaq pue ajA)sayl| J1ay)
1noge sa2I0yd aAIIsod ayew 0} pauliojul |99} ‘InoiAeyaq Buiye) ysii pioAe 0] aoualladxs pue abpajmouy ‘s|iqs ayy uieb sjdoad
BunoA ainsua 0] paau uo paseq sawuwelboid pajabie) jeuonippe pue saljiAljoe aAISod Jo abuel aAIsusyaldwod e B0 O] e
" .33 ol uoissalboid uoddns 0y seswwelboud Ajanoe pue saniunuoddo Buussjunjoa ‘woddns pasijeuosiad
Jo uoisinoad ayy sepnjoul siy | -Bulutely Jo JuswAojdwse ‘uoneanpa ul pabebus jou ajdoad BunoA Jo spasu ay} ssalppe 0}
sasuodsal aAl0aye apinoid 0} wea] YnoA AJlunwiwo) ay} Yjim uoljeloqe|oo ul ylom siauyied AleAlep jo ebuel ayj ainsua 0] e

:Aylunwwoo
Japim ayj pue ajdoad BunoA ‘uaip|iyd 104 SBWOIINO BUIMO||0) By} JBAIIBP [|IM Joaloud ay) ‘ased ssauisng josloid ayj ul N0 }8Ss sy

paJaAljeq 8 0} SawoanQ0

‘puny pajejal yjeay wolj uonelaushb swooul Joj jenusiod sy 0} uonejal ul Aiebins 4o |eoo)
a3y} yum uoneloge|joo buiobuo si aiay) pue polad Jesah aaly) e J1aA0 AJIsiaAiun wejeH plaiays Agq palojiuow aq ||IMm awayods ay |

"9AI}0B W02 0] SAI0B Aj|ewIou Jou sjenpiAlpul abeinoous [jim yoiym juswdinba ssauyly J00pino

Bunioxa pue aAleAouul apiAoid 0] salo ueadolng Jayjo yum Bupdom jnoge sijoafoid siy| -uonejnwns Ajanoe jeoisAyd pue uods
ul uoileAouUl Jo) geT plel4 MN 1s4ik 8yl Bulwoosaq Aqg ayis anbiun e pjayymo ayew |im yoiym 10afoud j14oid papuni N3 a8y} wouy
pauieb Buipuny ybnoay} pabiswas sey ue|d pue ased ssauisng josloid [euiblio sy} ul Jno 189S YIoM 8y} 0} Juswdo|aAap Jayuny v

"s9|A189}1| 84NN} J1I8Y) UO 1088 aAIlISOod B aAeY |IM Jey] abpajmouy pue S||Iys ‘@ousplyuod
dojenap 0} aidoad BunoA 1o} Allunpuoddo anbiun e spinoad |Im Ayjioe) siy | -A10 8y} Ssouoe wol) SIaylo os|e Ing ‘Ajlunuwiwod
[e20] 8y} pue ajdoad BunoA ‘uaip|iyo Ajuo jou jiBuaq ||IM Jey} SeAleIul pue salliAloe Jo abuel e apinodd |Iim Ajjioes ay |

"qnH |eo0| pue doys-dois-suQ, Ajunwwo) pue YyinoA
B Sse sIy) Jo Juswdojanap ay} 0} papiwwod siauled jo abuel e Ag papinoid aq |im swwesboud Juswebebus ay| ‘pesu pue jeadde

Page 132



14 g Jo {7 ebed

sieah 6|
-¢ | 8jdoad BunoA 10} saNIADY BAIISOd Jualons apiaosd o) Ainp Aioiniess s Aluoyiny |e207 8y} 8y} 0} 8inquod |im joaloud siy|
(*aduepinb aas) euvlo AjIqiblj@ ssajawoy 1o a1ed |eloos 68 ¢ sannp Aloiniels Jno uo suonediidwi Aue alsy) aly

‘2o1pnlaid pue BulA|ng
‘uonjeulwliosip abusjieyd 0y pyoddns pue ssausaleme ‘9oUspPLUOD BY) dABY PUB SJBYJ0 Ul Saoualaylp 10adsal aidoad BunoA e
"SYSI 9S8y} 0} WNDIA [|e) Aay} 41 woddns uaAIb ale pue
aAl| A8y} yoIym ul saijlunwiwiod ay} pue way) abewep ued 1ey) sinoireyaq Aysil ploae ‘Ajiyyeay oAl ‘ejes |98} ajdoad Bunos e
JudljIsdy pue sjeg

"sSpaau J1ay) 108w 0} paubisep uoisirnoid adeys 01 djay pue way) 108e 1ey) suoisioap ay} ul Aes e aney ajdoad Bunop e
‘s1y} Bulop 1oy pajoadsal pue pan|eA |88} pue Ajlunwiwod J1ay} Jo aj| 8y} ul Led aajoe ue Aejd sjdoad Bunoy e
saljljioe} spods
pue syled ‘saus|eb ‘swnasnw ‘saljeay) s)l Buipnjoul syasse s A0 ay] JO SSaUYdLl 8y} pue SalliAlloe juswyoliud Jo abuel
apIM B 0] $S820k a|qelinba ybnouy) I} 8y) 01 suonique pue sisalalul ‘sjus|e)} Jiay) ansind o) pabeinoous ale ajdoad Bunoy e
pabebug pue aAnoy

"pO229NS 0] UOIJBUIWIB}SP puB 82UspLuod ‘s||iys ayl yum paddinba aie pue suoneaidse ybiy aney ajdoad Bunop e
19)Jew sqol
ay} ul sanlunuoddo pue wayj 0} uado ale jey) sAemyied Jaaleo pue Buiules| a8y} Jnoge pawlojul-||om ale gjdoad Bunoy e
"YIOM pue 3j1| }Jnpe 0} uoiisuel) ay} Joj paledald Jeneq ale sjdoad BUNoOA e
paJedaid pue paw.iojuf

‘aJe g|doad
BunoA pue uaip|iyo Buunua saljiwe4 pue ajdoad BunoA ‘uaip|iy) |nyssaoong Jo Ajlond ajelodion ayy poddns |im 108loid ay )

| 1-800¢Z-Ue|[d-a1e10di0o-Ajiunijoddo-J0-Al0-B/SoNsSne)s--eouewload/jeu pjaijays//:dny ue|d
ajelodio) ay] ‘69 4jlouno) Al 8y Jo )8 salbsjelis/sioslold/sainpasold Jaylo uo suoneoidwi Aue aaey 108loid Jo Aoijod siyl (I

Page 133



g Jo G abed

‘Ajgesip e yum ajdoad BunoA Aq ssaooe ajeyljioe) 0} ajqeonoeld JaAaiaym apew aq |Im awwelboid
ay} Jo Alanijap pue ubisap ay) ul sjuswisnlpe ajqeuoseal pue 9|qissadde Aj|n) 8q 0} paubisap usaq sey Ajjioe) ay |

¢ 8]doad pajgesip Jo} sjuswisnlpe ajqeuoseal Japisuo?) (9
SaljIAIJO. JO NUBW peolq
e Jo AJaAljep ay) pue uoisinoid Jo uBisap ay) Ul JUSWSA|OAUI J1ay) yBnouy) pasiubooal ale eale Buipunolins pue A)jeso| ay)

ul aidoad BunoA e Jo spasu ayj 1eyl ay) buunsua Aq ‘Allunuoddo jo Ajjenba jo sanssi ssaippe pue ajowoud [Im Ajjioe) ay |

¢Aunyuoddo Jo Ajijenba aoueapy (e
‘Juswwod asea|d ‘os J|

) uonebaibes

|leuonednaoo apyoe)} pue sanunyuoddo juswdojaaap ‘uonowold diey ainsus ‘Aed |enba ajowolid 0} sainseaw apnjou| (|
¢suonejal Ajlunwwod poob 181so4 (Y N ¢SIYbL uewny josjo.id pue sjowold (p

M ¢uonesiwnola Jo Juswsseley djeulwl|3 (6 | N ¢ojdoad pajgesip Joj sjuswisnipe sjqeuoseal Jopisuo) (9

N ¢uoneuiwnosip ayeulwn|3 (3 N Ajaioe pue syl o1ignd ur uonedioied abeinoouz (q

)\ @oipnleud ajoe) % Bulpuejsiopun ajowold (8 N ¢Aunyuoddo Jo Ajijenba aoueapy (e

:0} (sabueys aanebau pue
annisod yjoq 03 u9ja4 aseajd) sannp sjybu uewny ao Ajjenba Aiojnjels uno 3oayje | Jed ul payipusapl swie ayl |IIM 'V

"€ Ued pue g Ued ul || @sea|d ‘1saia)ul JO saiiunwiwod uo aAlebau 1o aAnisod Jaylaym 1oedwi ueoiubis
Aue aaey [im 108load 10 Aoijod JnoA mouy noA §| |3 |In} e 0} paaoold pjnoys noA Jayjaym ajenjeas o} Jed siy) a1a|dwo)
jJuswissassy Joedwy| jeniu] :Z 18¥Vd

‘Bululel) pue Juswabeuew Je1s aAoaYe ainsus o) soe|d Ul

sossao0.d poddns pue juswdojaAsp Jels 1sngqol aAey 0} pajoadxs aq |im uonjesiuebio pajuiodde ay| ‘sisod ayj Jo sjuswalinbal
ay) 1no Auied o) paddinba aq |Im pa}os|as s|enpIAIpuUl 8y} 8INSUd 0) SS8204d JudLW}INIOaL B SA|OAUI ||IM Sjuswabuelle Bunoesuo)

£ JJe1S |euonippe JO Jusw}inioal 8y} A|0AUl JO sjuswalinbal
Buiuiesy jeuonippe "6 Je}s Jo slequisw Bunsixa 1o} Jay)ie ‘suoneoljdwl 82J0/J0M SABY BAOQE paliiuapl swie ayl ||IA

Page 134



8 Jo 9 abed
VI3 |IN} B }ONpU0D 0} paau Jou op noA joedw Jueoyiubis Aue paljijuapl Jou aAey NoA §|

¢ 1¥Vd Ul V|3 |In} B 0} paadold 0} paau ||IM NOA uay} gz Jo g suonoas Japun sjoedwi juediiubis Aue paiyiuspl aaey noA j|

€10 ydie

:M3IA3I 10} djeq

B/N

:Aejop ay) 1o} suoseal aAIb ased|d joafoud 1o Adijod ayj jo Jels ayj Je auop Bulaq Jou si |3 9yl }

"SBNSSI UoISayo9 |enuajod ssaippe 0} ylom Jo abuel

e Jno Bulkiied usaqg aney joaloid ayy ul paajoaul ajdoad BunoA ay) pue 101j3u09 Joj [enualod ayy aq |Im a1ay) AlIo ay) Jo
seale Jualaylp wouj Jayaboy buiwod ale sjdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyo aiaypp “ajdoad BunoA | g9 apnjoul [|Im SIY) 1Y)
pooylayl| e si alay] ‘spunolbxoeq olwouoos pue sdnolb snoibijal ‘sanijiqe Buikiea Jo ‘ejews) pue ajew ‘spunoibxyoeq
JINg 1o abuel apim e wol) ajdoad BunoA pue ualp|iyd apnjoul [|IMm SIY| "papircid saiiAjoe ay) pue Alljioe) ay) Ssedoe 0}
)oos Aew jey} saniunwwod Jo abues 8y} aullep 0} pash usaq sey ejep |Bo0| pue eale asIaAIp Ajjuedliubis e si pjamo]

:sjusawissasse JNoA yoeal 0} pasn aAey noA asuapinas Aue |1ejap Ajjaliq aseald

age 135

ON

éAysianip aotopjaom
joeduwi Aay) ybiw moy ‘os j| ¢ suoijesijduwi asiopdom uo Joedwi Aue aaey Aosijodpoafoad anoA |jipa "D

1?Yl10 \ uoisayo) Ajunwwon paJauued [IAID 10 pallel) UswopN Jueubald
Japuabsuel | A UoIsSN[ou|/sn}e}s 21lWouU09g 01008 siaie)

|\ uonejuslQ [enxas Noodoleg
Juoibljoy  S8bY Jualayip Jo s|doad US|\ JO UBWOAA » pajgesiq 01uyig Ayouly @ yoelg

(syenidoudde se yon
ases|d,) ¢joafoud ay} 10j saNSS| UOISN|IUI [BIDOS 10 UOISaYO0D Juesyiubis Aue alay) s| ¢1o9loud ayj o) uone|al
ul sapnjijje pue sadualIddXd ‘spaau jJualayip aaey o) Ajayi] mojaq sdnoub 10 saljiunwiwod Jejnaied ayj aiy g




g Jo ) abed

:e)ed : (oljojuiod Jo} Joo1O d|qisuodsay V|3) paubls
:e1eQ us||y Wiy :(woy ay) Buns|dwod 18210) paubis

(991A18S 10 01]0J1104 UMO INOA BpISINO WO SUISOUO0D /|3 9y} JI) S8DIAISS JO ‘SOIj0j110d Jayjo sdnoub Buusals j08loud
‘sjuiod uonoe splemo} Buiylom s18o140 ‘siaquusiy "6 8) auo sey V|3 ay) Jo AdoD e spaau oym sU0AIBAS Jey] 8Ins S)el\ =
"SIY} dUop aAeY noA 1ey) aouapiAe apinoid 0} noA yse
Aew siao1jo/seAnejuasaldal Ajljenba / oljojuod “Ajerendosdde suonoe Jojluow pue wioy |3 pale|dwod ay) dosy oses|ld =
", suonesiidwi AjunpoddQ jo Ayjenb3, paj uonoss sy Ul Yodal ayj 0} )i ppe pue |3 8y}
JO syoadse juepodwil }sow a8y} Jo Arewwns Jauqg AJaA e Jayjabo) Buuq - spodal Buuinbal syosloid Jayjo pue sg/sy pueg
‘spiodal Jouige Jo4 1o 1 ubis pue anoidde Ajjewsoy ueds Aay) 1eyy 0s ‘0} siajad J yoiym (suodey 1ouige?) -6-8) suodal
pajeloosse Aue pue yy|3 ay} Jo Adoo |eul) B 88S 0} paau ||IMm OI|0jl0d JNOA ul sy|3 Yo Buiubis 1oy ajqisuodsal Jeoijo 8y =

VI3 1Ind 9y} pajajdwod aA.noA adsuQ

Page 136

£I1=Tq :(192110 9|qisuodsay V|3) paubis

:o1eQ :(woy ay) buns|dwod J1821Q) paubis

‘paje|dwod (g pue | sped) wioj |3 Jo 8jeq
"Juswssassy joedw| ||n4 e jno Aued
0] paaoo.ud (sjeridoisdde se ajajap,) Jou ||IMm [ |IIM | pue 198loid Jo Aoijod Aw jo suoneoidwi Ajijlenba ay) paiapiSuod Mou aAey |

"sy/|3 1o BuluBis 1oy sjqisuodsal o1joj1u0d JNoA ul 182110 8y Aq (10 paubis) paies|o aq 0] Spasu [|lIS UOISIOap SIY) - 8)0U 8sea|d



g Jo g abed

uswom
jInpe pue BunoA ‘spib
JO spaau ay} jJeaw

0} paJojie} saijiApoe

pue uoisinoid

8y} JO alnjeu ay)
pajeolpul Sey Uswom
BunoA pue suIb yum

palinbaa se paJaAljap aie suoissas Ajuo

uawom jeyj} pue uswom BunoA sjoeupie Bunayiew
alnsua 0} uoisianoad apew aio0jaiay) sey

y09loid ay] "uaw BunoA joeupe Ajpueuiwopaad

(senssi
Aluieiew pue
Aoueubauid apnjouj)

ul JUswi)saAuU| *aAOqe 99g uol1e}NSuU0? |00 [1IM paJaAljap sanlAloe [eaisAyd pue juods ayj | USN pue USWOAA
uoisinoud pue
saljAjoe Jo ubisep | )1 aiinbaa oym sanjiqesip yum ajdoad BunoA pue
ay) pawuojul sey siy} uaipjiyds asoy) jJo saosueyd a4l pue uoissasboid
eale ay) ul sanljigesip pue spaau buluies| “quawabebua ay) anoidwi 03 aq ||1m uoisiaoad
yym ajdoad BunoA pue salljigesip 9y} jo wie Bujyoieiano ayl siauped jueasjal
pue uaip|iyd Juaiayip Buiiea yyum 9y} pue saajasway) syuedioijued Aq pajejnaije
JO spaau ay} jaaw a|doad BunoA pue aq [[Im 9say] "Ssal}i|eoo] UaAlb uiypum Buialj
0} palojie} sal}iAloe uaJp|iyod papnoul sey sanljigesip yym ajdoad BunoA pue uaip|iys jo
ul JUswi)saAU| *aAoqe 99g uol1e}NSuU0? [eo07 Spaau ay} Y}IMm aul] ul paJtaAl|ap aq [|IM SBI}IAIDY m_QomQ pajgesig
Buiob
-Uuo S| UoIe}NSU0)D
"109(o.d dnoub juswan|oAu|

eaJe ay} ul
sdnoub g g Juasayip
JO spaau ay} jJoaw

0} paJojie) saniAnpoe
Ul JUBWIISAAUY|

8y} Jo }8s Jno 8y
wioJ} slapjoyaels
pue sdnoib
Alunwwos ‘ejdoad
BunoA pue ualp|iyo
YIM Suolje}Nsuoo
Je|nbai jo

abuel e jno paLeo
aAey ajdoad BunoA
pue siauned dnoib
Buriesss joafoud
pue [19unod AJ0 ay |

yinoA sjoafoud ayy
uiyim ajdoad BunoA
3Ng J0 YJom ay |

‘way) uoddns
pInom 1ey} saijiAljoe
pue uoisinoid

8y} JO ainjeu ay}
pajedlipul 8ABY OYm
a|doad BunoA pue

UaJPIIYo JNG YIm
uoI}B)NSU09 |200"7

}l a11nbai oym suaziid JNg 2soy) Jo daudljisal
O]WOU093 ||BJ3A0 puk A}JIAIJOR JO S|9A3] ¢ sadueyd
a}i] pue uoissaiboud ‘yuawabebua ayj} anoidui

0} 9q ||Im uoisinoid ayj jo wie Buiysielrano ayj
siaulied jJueasjal ay} pue saAjasway) syuedioijed
Aq paje|nonJe aq ||1m asayL "sani|edo)

UuaAIb ulyyum Buial] sdnolb NG JusIapip jo
Spaau 8y} Yjim aulj Ul pataAl|dap 3q ||IMm SIHARDY

a|doad oiuylg
AyIouiy g yoe|g

yoleasal (sebed

éyoeduwl sjinsau |[euoneu Aeains JouJdjul JUBAd|aI

aAnisod ay) pue moy uonoejsnes ‘63 ayj yoeau
aseauoul Jo Joeduwi ‘Uaym ‘oym | jjuawaje)s Inok 0} puej}s yoea
aAnebau ayj Juwi| ‘uonjejjnsuod | joddns o) pasn sdnoub Buimojjoy a3y} uo }2119)
0} suoljoe 3joN 9JON 90UdpIAD 9)JON | 3y} 10} aAnebau Jo aanisod joedw) - 8joN anssi 1o dnoug

219y bunoid Aq JauJaju] ay} uo sabed Ayijenbg ayj o3 1ajal 03 |nydjay aq Aew 3|
}sauaju] Jo sajlunwwod Jejnojjued uo sey joafoad 10 Aoijod ayj Joedw yeym Aji3uapi |

Vi3 lind :¢€ 14vd

Page 137



g Jo g abed

spunouibyoeq
|ean}|na jo abuelu
B JO9|jal ||Im saljiAloe

‘aAoqe 998

pajeiqa|ad pue
pajowoud Aj|ny aq [jIm AJSI9AIp pue spunoabyoeq
[ean}|nd Jayjo wo.lj asoy} 1o} }oadsal dojanap

0} pajoddns aq |jim ajdoad Buno wnio4 Jasn
e ybnouyj Aijioe) ayj jo asueutanob ayjy uil ajol
A9y e aAeY 0} danunuoI [[IM Ady} pue seale JapIm
pue ajeipawiwi a3y} ul Buial sjdoad BunoA jo

2)9
sJaled ‘uoisnjoul
|e1oos ‘uolsayod

ul JUBW)SdAU| *aAO(e 998 SPadu 3y} Y}IM aul] Ul PaJdAIIBp 3] [|IM S3JIAIOY ‘69 sanssi 19?ylo
Ayunwwos Ausiang
|es0] ay)} Buijosajjol 991010M 3SISAIP B sey adN4 ©3J10JMI0AA
SS99292k pasipisgns
pue 934} buipinoad
Ko1jod Buiond ey
e Uo paseq eaJe ay}
ulypm Buiall suaznio
Jo sdnoub juaiayip
JO spaau ay} jasw ‘suoljelidse pue sSpaau J1dWOISNI 0} palojie} aiow
0} paiojie} saljiAloe 3q 210J0J3Y) |[IM PUE B3JE dYj} Ul SUSZI}ID 3y} JO snjejs
ul JUswisaAu| *aAO(e 9988 Spaau ay} Y}IM aul| ul palaAllap aq ||IMm sdljIAOY | JlWOUO0IF 0100
saljiunyoddo slallieq abe awod
|euonjesauab-iayul J19A0 pue s||I)s aieys 0} 1ayj}ab03 Buiwoos suaziyo
ajowo.d 03 saniAoe Jap|o pue BunoA yum seniAioe [euoelousb sabe jualajip
paJojie} ul JuswisaAu] *aAO(e 9988 -19)ul 9jowoad 0} paIdAIdp aq [|IM SIINANOY jo o|doad

‘sdnoub
yye4 |eooj apisbuoje
)10M 0} anUBUOd

‘sdnoub
Ja119q pue uoibijau Juaiayip o} yseoidde aaisnjoul

sdnolo joijog

l1im 3oafoad ay | UE 9INSUS PUE PAJIdAIIBP aq [[IM SBIIAIDY pue uoibijay
paJinbai
se A1aAljap 92IAIS ‘sjuapisal
yoddns |im ;moqiina4 Japuabsuel; o} yoeoudde aAisn|oul ue ainsua m_moon_
UMM Joesjuod ayj| pue paJaAlap aq ||Im Bujuies] Jjnpe saljIAOY Japuabsuel |
paJinbai
se A1aAljap 921AI8S
uoddns |im [mogynag sjuapisal go 03 yoeoidde aaisnjoul jenxasig

Y}IMm joes3u0d 3yl

ue 3INSUd pue PaJdAIIBP 3] [|IM SBIHAIY

Q@ ABD ‘UBI(So]

dnoub juswan|oAu|
yino A sjoafoud

By} UIY}IM uswom
BunoA }o ylom ay |

‘way) uoddns
pInom jey} seijiAljoe

Page 138



0l 8o 0| obed

(senssi
paJinbai se palaAljop aJe suoISsas AJUO USWIOM Jey} pue :
usawom BunoA sjoeajie Huijeyew ainsud o} uoisinoid apew Ajuisjew pue
al0ja1ay) sey 39afoud ay] ‘uaw BunoA joeajye Apueuiwopaad AoueuBaid apnjoul)
anoqy 99S anoqy 998 anoqy 99S [l1M paiaAljap saniAnoe [esisAyd pue pods ayy | USIN R USWOAA

sajljigesip yum

ajdoad BunoA pue uaipjiys jo sasueyd a4l pue uoissaiboid
“quawabebua ay} anosdwi 03 aq |jIm uoisiroad ay} jo

wie Buiyosiesano ayj staulied JueAa|al 9y} pue SaA|9SWBY}
sjuedionued Aq pajejnaiie aq |[IM 3SayL "S9al}l|ed0]

uaAIb uiyym Buial] sdnoab sanijiqesip yum ajdoad BunoA pue
aAoQe 998G aAO0(QYy 995 aAO0QYy 995 ualip|iyo Jo spaau ayj} Y}IM aul| ul pasaAljap aq ||IM Sal}IAIOY m_QOmQ pajqgesia

wea] Yjnox
Alunwwo9 ayy
y}im uoljeldoosse
ul sainjng
PIdYBYS adnd
uonesiuebio

siseq J1ojoeI3u0D ‘suazid JINg
|enuue ue pajuiodde ayy | jo ¢ sasueys ayi pue uoissaiboid Juawabebus ayy anoidwi
UO PaMaIAaI Kq papoddns 0} aq [|1m uoisinoid ay} jo wie Buiysiesano ay) siauped
aq 0} ‘sjobuie) dnoig JueAajal ay) pue saAjesway) sjuedionued Aq pajejnonae
190foad ayj jo oy 1839 yum juswabeueyy aq |Im asay] "sanieso] usaAlb uiypm Buial] sdnosb g a|doad o1uyig
ayy 1oy BujobuQ | uejd dojeneg 1oafoud oyl | jusseyp Jo spaau By} yIM aull Ul pasaAllep aq M sapiady | AJIOUIN B Yoelg
pojo|dwiod | ¢ajeasawn Zpe9|
ajep / ssaiboid | ay} sijeym I11M OYM ipaainbau si uonoe jeym anssj 10 dnoug

“pUNOQ 8w} pue olsijeal ‘a|gqeAsIyoe ‘s|geinsesw
‘olj10ads aJe Asy) Jey) 8Ins 8)ew 0} pue suonoe asay) pJodal 0] Mojaq uejd ay) asn ases|d ‘sdno.b |je Jo} sjoedwi sAnebau
2onpa. Jo syoedwi aAlsod ajowoid 0) 8ye) 0) papasu NOA Suonoe Jeym paljijuspl NoA (g 1ed Jo | Uonoses) sAoge a|qe) ay) uj

ue|d uolpv vi3 ‘¢

(ejelidoadde se ayajop asesjd,) ON/SIA  ¢S9o10eId 8siaApe |enusajod Aue Ayjuapl das o1joj1uod JnoA 10 noA pig

"SIY) SSaippe 0] sebueyo sjeipawiwl 8Yew 0} pasau uay] [[IM NOA “|louno) ay) Joj suoneolidwi [ebs| [enusiod
aney Aew siy) se ‘dals Alljenba oljojuod JnoA yiim ssnoasip eses|d dnoib Aue Joj 3oedwil aAzebau jeiyuajod paliuspl saey noA J|

Page 139



b

8o || ebed

pajeiqajad

pue pajowolid A||n} aq |Im A}ISIaAIp pue spunoJbyoeq
|eanyjnd 1ayjo wou} asoy} 10} }oadsaa dojanap o3 pajoddns
aq |im 9jdoad Buno wnuo4 1asn e ybnouyy Ajij1oey

ay) Jo aoueuidanob ay} ul 9joa A3y e dAeY 0} anuI3uOI |jIMm Aay}

o) E)

sJaJjed ‘uoisnjaul

|e1oos ‘uoisayod
‘6 9 sanssi

VIV pue seale J9pIM pue ajelpawwi ay} ul Buial] ajdoad BunoA
V/V dA0qy 93g 9A0qY 99§ V/V 9A0qy 93g | ‘Ualp[lyd JO SPIaU 3y} Y}Im aul] ul palaAl|ap 3q [|IM SaIAIDY Ayjenba Jayjo
Aunwwos Kjisianig
aAoqy 9988 anoqy 9988 anoqy 9988 |eo0] ay} Buijos|jal 9210)40M 3SIBAIP B Sey quN4 ©3J10J3I10AA
‘suonjesidse
pue spasu Jawo}snd 0} palojie} alow dq 31049494}
[IIM pue eaJe ay} ui Aunwwod Japim ay} pue ajdoad BunoA snjejs
aAoqy 988 anoqy 9988 aAoqy 995 | ‘uaipIyd JO SPadU Y} YHM aUl| Ul paIdAIIdPp aq ||IM SaIAIPDY | JWOUO0JF OI00S
(030
siouIeq abe awoo JI9A0 pue S||I}S dieys aspjo 1abunoy)
0} Jay3ab0) BuIwod suaz|yid 19pjo pue Bunok yjm saniAloe sabe juaiayip
aAoqy 998 aAoqy 998 aAoqy 998 |euoijesauab-1ajul djowo.ud 0} palaAlldp 3 ||IM SBINAIOY Jo ajdoad
-sdnoJb Jaijaq pue uoibijai JuUalayIp o} sdnouib
aAO0(QYy 995 aAO0(QYy 995 aAoqy 99 | yoeoudde aAiSn|oul Ue d1NSUD pue PaJdAIIBP 3] ||IM SBIHAIIOY joljeq / :o_m__¢m_
‘sjuapisas sued} 0} yseoidde aaisnjoul a|doad
aAOqy 998 aAOqy 998 aAoqy 938 UB 9INSUd pue paJaAl|ap aq ||Im Buiuies] Jjnpe saljIAoY Japuabsueu |
-sjuspisal go o3 | 21dodd |enxasig
aAo(Qy 995 aAo(QYy 995 aAoqy 99S | yoeoudde aAISn|oul UB BINSUD pUB PAIBAIIDP 3] ||IM SAIHAIIOY 2 >m0 ‘uelqsan
pajojdwod | ¢ajessawi) épe9|
ajep / ssaiboud | ayj sl Jeym IlIM OYpA épalinbau si uonoe jeypa anssi 1o dnoug

Page 140



Agenda Iltem 12

Sheffield SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL
City Council Cabinet Report 1 2

Report of: Sonia Sharp

Date: 23rd May 2012

Subject: Learning provision for young people and adults in Sheffield
Author of Report: Dee Desgranges

Summary:

This report proposes the creation of a new commissioning framework that will
allow the local authority to draw on a network of local providers to deliver tailored
programmes to young people and adult learners across the city. It seeks
permission to use a proportion of the funding awarded annually to the City
Council by the Young People’s Learning Agency and the Skills Funding Agency
to secure learning opportunities for 16-19 and adult learners from a quality
assured network of local providers selected through tender.

Recommendations:

Cabinet is asked to approve:

e the creation of a commissioning framework that allows for a more
responsive, flexible and innovative approach to matching teenage and
adult learners to the provision that best meets their needs

¢ the tendering, through this framework, of a proportion of the Adult
Safeguarded Learning funding awarded to the City Council to better meet
the needs of adult learners

¢ the tendering, through this framework, of a proportion of the Employer
Responsive and Learner Responsive funds to better meet the needs of
both teenage and adult learners in their local communities.

Background Papers:

Page 141



Category of Report: OPEN

If Closed add — ‘Not for publication because it contains exempt information
under Paragraph... of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended).’

* Delete as appropriate

Page 142



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist

Financial Implications

YES/NO Cleared by: Patricia Phillipson

Legal Implications

YES/NO Cleared by: Gillian Anderson

Equality of Opportunity Implications

YES/NO Cleared by: Bashir Khan

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications

YES/NO

Human rights Implications

YES/NO:

Environmental and Sustainability implications

YES/NO

Economic impact

YES/NO

Community safety implications

YES/NO

Human resources implications

YES/NO

Property implications

YES/NO

Area(s) affected

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader

Clir Jackie Drayton

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in

Children, Young People and Family Support

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?

YES/NO

Press release

YES/NO

Page 143




1.0

2.0

3.0

Learning provision for young people and adults in
Sheffield

SUMMARY

1.1

1.2

1.3

This report proposes the creation of a new commissioning
framework that will allow the local authority to draw on a network
of local providers to deliver tailored programmes to young people
and adult learners across the city. It seeks permission to use a
proportion of the funding awarded annually to the City Council by
the Young People’s Learning Agency and the Skills Funding
Agency to secure learning opportunities for 16-19 and adult
learners from a quality assured network of local providers selected
through tender.

The Lifelong Learning Skills and Community Service (LLSC) is
charged with organising adult and community learning provision in
the city on behalf of the Skills Funding Agency (SFA). In addition,
LLSC holds a contract from the Education Funding Agency(EFA)
to organise learning for 16-18 year olds, particularly the most
vulnerable and disengaged. LLSC draws down funding from the
SFA and the EFA deliver these objectives.

The service has developed strong and effective networks of local
providers, mainly drawn from the third sector, that are able to tailor
their provision to meet the specific needs of the targeted young
people and adult learners. The new commissioning framework is
designed to allow LLSC to use these funding streams to ensure
that learners are connected to the learning provision that best
meets their needs.

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE

2.1

The framework will allow the young people and the adult learners
targeted by these EFA SFA programmes to benefit from learning
opportunities shaped to meet their specific needs. LLSC will do
this by using the framework to draw on a wide variety of
organisations that have been quality assured, which are regularly
monitored and which can demonstrate that they bring different
strengths and specialisms that benefit learners with a wide variety
of needs and aspirations from, for example, language support to
specific vocational training. The framework is also designed to
build local capacity by providing small and niche providers, usually
drawn from the third sector, with the opportunity to develop their
offer and to strengthen their sustainability.

OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY

3.1

It is proposed that the commissioning framework will operate for
three years. However, EFA SFA funding is determined on an

Page 144



4.0

3.2

annual basis and for each academic year. The amount of funding
available is, therefore, likely to vary over the lifetime of the
framework.

Organisations that are selected for the framework, following a
standard corporate procurement exercise, will be supported by
LLSC to develop and manage the data returns required by the
national funding agencies and to deliver the quality of teaching
and learning required by Ofsted. All of the provision in the
framework will be monitored regularly by LLSC and it is likely that
it will be subject to Ofsted inspection during the lifetime of the
framework. It is anticipated that through the support offered by
LLSC as part of the framework agreement that the organisations
with which we contract will develop the capacity sufficiently to be
able to bid for mainstream funding and other grant awards in their
own right in future years.

MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

LLSC is in receipt of:

e EFA Learner Responsive funding for 16-18 year olds

e SFA Learner Responsive funding for 19+ learners

e SFA Adult Safeguarded Learning funding for 19+

Community Based Learning

Adult Safeguarded Learning (ASL) funding
Currently, Adult Safeguarded Learning programmes are delivered
through a mixture of direct delivery from tutors employed on a
sessional basis by LLSC and by local organisations commissioned
to deliver learning in community settings.

The Department for Business Innovation & Skills (BIS) recently
published its Further Education & Skills Reform Plan: building a
world class skills system. This suggests that, in the spirit of
improved localism, those organisations at the local level that have
a good knowledge of local needs and training requirements should
undertake to establish arrangements by which learners are better
engaged to the courses most suited to their needs. The
commissioning framework, as proposed in this paper, is designed
to meet this requirement.

The Further Education & Skills Reform Plan also proposes the
establishment of ‘Community Learning Trusts’ to organise
community learning in local areas. Bids for Community Learning
Trust are due in on the 25" May and LLSC will apply to be a pilot
trust. The trust is not required to be a legal entity, rather a loose
partnership of funded providers and community organisations.
Tendering out to these organisations will be part of the trust plan
whose focus is to increase local recruitment to and delivery of
adult learning.

Page 145



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

4.12

4.13

The local organisations that will be recruited to the commissioning
framework will be selected by the standard City Council tendering
process. The tender will specify that applicants would preferably
have local knowledge and a history of working with community
assemblies and local learning partnerships.

The amount to be tendered for the ASL funding stream, based on
the indicative SFA allocation for Sheffield will be approximately

£700,000.

Employer Responsive (ER) /Learner Responsive (LR) Funding
These funding strands are almost exclusively allocated to the City
Council’'s own learning centres, including Sheaf Training, Red
Tape Central and the Construction Design Centre as managed by
LLSC.

The commissioning framework will provide access to a wider
range of partner providers delivering in other local settings and
therefore a more diverse and flexible learning offer. This will be
designed to meet the needs of young people and adults in their
own communities and address the very specific needs of
vulnerable or disadvantaged groups, for example teen parents,
those with learning difficulties and disabilities and some black and
minority ethnic communities.

Indicative amounts to be tendered for ER and LR funding coming
from the SFA and EFA will not exceed £250,000.

HR Implications

A small number of the staff currently employed by LLSC and
delivering ASL in community settings may be subject to TUPE if
the commissioning of this funding stream goes ahead. The detail
of this is currently being worked through by HR on an individual
basis.

Financial Implications

Moving towards a flexible commissioning framework model will
ensure a maximisation of the SFA and EFA contract value
awarded to LLSC. The model will also financially support those
community based organisations that are accepted on to the
framework.

The SFA and EFA allocations have not been confirmed for the
period of the proposed framework, however this does not preclude
the service from proceeding with establishing appropriate
mechanisms for commissioning in advance of the funding being
confirmed

Legal implications

The Council has the power to secure learning provision under
Education Act 1996, provided it:

Page 146



5.0

6.0

4.14

e considers the needs of persons with learning difficulties

e encourages diversity, opportunity and choice

o facilitates the education and training of certain 16-18 year
olds

o takes account of education and training whose provision
might be secured by other persons.

Contracts need to be awarded in accordance with procurement
law and the Council’'s Contract Standing Orders. Organisations
delivering in these funding streams will be required to adhere to
SFA/Education Funding Agency contractual requirements.

Equality Implications
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out and
approved.

Consultation will take place with the funding agencies, community
assemblies and strategic partners as appropriate to any
commissioned activity. This will occur as and when any proposals
to move to commissioning are confirmed.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

5.1

5.2

Retain direct delivery of all adult and community learning by the
City Council. This is in direct conflict with the national direction of
travel to localise responsibility for the planning and delivery
through Community Learning Trusts.

Retain direct delivery of the ER and LR funding streams
exclusively through the City Council’s own learning centres. This
would militate against the development of a more flexible and
diverse provider base across the city that is, in some cases, better
placed to meet the needs of the most vulnerable learners.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1

6.2

The national picture for adult learning is changing and there is a
projected move towards developing the activities of local
community involvement in adult learning. Offering contracts to
local organisations and supporting them to build capacity and
expertise will enable them to be better prepared for this. It will also
help to strengthen their ability to secure other sources of external
funding for education and training.

The city also needs a more flexible, varied, and easily accessible
programme of learning for vulnerable and disadvantaged young
people that makes us better able to further reduce the NEETS
cohort and to meet the challenges associated with the Raising of
the Age of Participation to 18 by 2015. A commissioning
framework through which quality assured partners are able to
respond rapidly, reach into communities and engage potential

Page 147



7.0

learners in innovative ways will contribute to this agenda.

RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1

Cabinet is asked to approve :

the delegation to the Assistant Director of Lifelong
Learning, Skills and Communities — Family and
Communities, in consultation with the Cabinet member with
the Children, Young People and Families Portfolio and the
Directors of Finance and Legal, to award the contracts and
to determine the terms and conditions upon which the
contracts will be awarded.

the creation of a commissioning framework that allows for a
more responsive, flexible and innovative approach to
matching teenage and adult learners to the provision that
best meets their needs

the tendering, through this framework, of a proportion of
the ASL funding awarded to the City Council to better meet
the needs of adult learners

the tendering, through this framework, of a proportion of the
ER and LR funds to better meet the needs of both teenage
and adult learners in their local communities

the delegation to the the Assistant Director of Lifelong
Learning, Skills and Communities — Family and
Communities, in consultation with the Cabinet member with
the Children, Young People and Families Portfolio the
ability to do anything which they feel is necessary to
achieve the outcomes outlines in this report.

Page 148



Sheffield  sHEFFIELD cITY cOUNCIL 1

City Council

=
()

Agenda

Cabinet Report

Report of: Richard Webb, Executive Director Communities
Date: 23/5/12
Subject: Transforming Support for People with Dementia Living at

Home in Sheffield

Author of Report: Howard Waddicor, Commissioning Officer

Summary:

This report sets out Sheffield City Council's commitment and vision for
supporting people with dementia, those affected by dementia and those
organisations that support them.

It sets out the issues facing Sheffield by the increase in the numbers of
people with dementia living at home at a time when expectations of
what represents good support is changing.

It describes the progress made so far and what needs to be done to
build on this to ensure that Sheffield is a city where people with
dementia and their carers can feel well supported and where we
endeavour to support communities to become more ‘dementia friendly’.

It is essential that people with dementia, their families and friends, and
staff working with them have a big say in shaping the city’s future
plans. This report seeks agreement from Cabinet to formally involve
people in the process of planning for the future.

It also outlines how the Council will work with people who use services
and with staff to improve services, invest money to make the biggest
impact and make savings within the context of the reduced funding
made available by the Government as a result of the Comprehensive
Spending Review.

Reasons for Recommendations

The growing number of people with dementia represents a significant
issue for the city. The expectation for most people with dementia is to
remain at home as long as possible.

The existing support arrangements will not meet the increase in
demand or the changing expectations of people with dementia.

Paqe 149

13



— To help understand how best to develop services, agreement is being
sought to involve people and organisations affected by dementia

— In order to comply with the requirements attached to Government

funding, Cabinet is asked to approve plans to commission an
information and advice service in advance of the wider discussion.

Recommendations:
That Cabinet

e Confirms its commitment to people with dementia and the families,
communities and organisations who support them.

+ Endorses the strategic approach to addressing the changing
aspirations and the environment in which support is delivered,
including the intention to make Sheffield a dementia friendly city.

+ Authorises a major involvement exercise with those affected by
dementia to ensure that change fully reflects their views. A report on
the outcome will be brought back to Cabinet for consideration.

e Agrees to establish an advisory group who will support officers
undertaking the involvement exercise.

» Agrees, in advance of the wider discussions, to develop proposals
for the commissioning of an information, advice and support
service.

Background Papers:

— National Dementia Strategy, 2009

- Sheffield Dementia Health Needs Assessment, 2011

— Sheffield Dementia Commissioning Plan (updated November 2011)
Category of Report:

Open

Page 150



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist

YES Cleared by: B Coukham

S

Health and Community Care Scrutiny Committee

YES

Page 151



1.0
11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.0

2.1

2.2

Summary

This report sets out the issues facing Sheffield by the increase in the
numbers of people with dementia living at home at a time when
expectations of what represents good support is changing.

It sets out a vision for supporting those affected by dementia and those
organisations that support them. It aims to ensure that the right support
is offered in a timely way and responds to changing need.

It sets out the steps that Sheffield needs to take to meet the challenge
and deliver on the vision.

It describes the process by which the voice of those affected by
dementia is heard when changing the existing arrangements. It is
acknowledged that there may be concerns that decisions about the
future of services have already been made - including the dementia
resource centres at Hurlfield view, Norbury and Bole Hill View. The
report confirms that nothing has been decided and that there is a
genuine wish to involve all people affected by dementia before final
proposals are developed.

Nevertheless any proposals will have to consider how to deal with the
financial savings already identified for this service area in 2012-13
within the context of the reductions in public expenditure as a result of
the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review.

What does this mean for the people of Sheffield?

A diagnosis of dementia has a major impact for the individual and
those who know and care for them. Much can be done however to
reduce the consequences of dementia to allow people to make
arrangements for the future and live as independently as possible, for
as long as possible.

Whilst dementia impacts on older people and younger people, most
people with a diagnosis are over 65. The council is committed to
supporting strategic changes in a way that the issues facing older
people are recognised and addressed to achieve its strategic vision as
an age friendly city and *...a great place to grow older with people
living happy, healthy and independent lives, and enjoying everything
that the city has to offer’.

Page 152



Dementia 2012

A national challenge

Defining dementia

Future projections

The number of people In the UK with dementia wilf double in the next 40 years. @ = 10,000 people

PEEeR40000 J0R000000¢ RORTM0O1M0000004
PREER44404 10040010 RO04000400 0000040
PORE140400 1000000004 1000040000000 040004
THEE040400 F24000004 1R 000004000400404
PRER41000 1EEAE00EE4 HALME01M04 0410040
PeEeReTeEe TREATRR4T0 FOTAROT0T09000040
FREREAEAEE FOR4000014 FREMMITO000404¢
PEEGEATOED PRRORO0410 HOT4000M10000404E
200400 pecple PARER00004 14142004 000004040

with dementia in

2012 PREAEREEES THRREMT040000040

1,000,000 pecple 1,700,000 people
with dementia in with dementia i

2021 2051

' Charts are reproduced by kind permission of the Alzheimer's Society

Pa%e 153



2.3 Whilst there is consensus that something needs to be done, the scale of the
challenge to both communities and professionals should not be
underestimated:

The growing number of older people means that Sheffield faces a
substantial growth in the numbers of people with dementia in the next 18
years. Currently 6,382 people are living with dementia in Sheffield. This
is expected to rise to 7,342 by 2020 and 9,340 by 2030°. The estimated
number of people under 65 with dementia is currently 120 with a similar
increase expected.

National campaigns have successfully raised the profile of dementia and
resulted in a greater understanding of the condition but dementia
remains the single biggest cause of admissions to care homes.

People with dementia admitted to hospital, on average, are likely to stay
twice as long as others with the same iliness.

The impact on informal carers and family members is substantial. Not
only are more people involved in caring but the level of need they are
dealing with has increased significantly.

The cost of supporting people with dementia is considerable. The
council's current overall investment in supporting people with dementia is
an estimated £19m. This is expected to grow as numbers increase.

2.4  We have a chance to overcome some of these challenges:

A better understanding of dementia by the general public paves the way
for communities that are more tolerant and supportive. Many families
would welcome the support that a better informed community can offer.
Shopkeepers and other customers who are prepared to be patient and
supportive to people with dementia improve their chances of living
independently.

Raising expectations about what is possible for people with dementia —
including the expectations of professionals — can help people live well
with dementia. Improved diagnosis rates and earlier intervention can
offer treatment that delays the onset of some symptoms.

Better information and advice supports people with dementia and their
carers to make choices and plan their lives. Having important
conversations about the future whilst people still have capacity, helps
carers and professionals make better informed decisions on their behalf
when communication becomes more difficult.

Changes in the way people choose the support they need through
personal budgets give people options that did not exist before enabling

2 Sheffield Dementia Health Needs Assessment, 2011

Page 154



them to live well with dementia®. Foe example, supported walks, for
those who enjoy them, can offer so much more than traditional day care
whilst still giving the carer a break.

For people with complex needs greater integration between health and
social care can reduce crises and stress on carers. As needs become
greater the number of people involved with support increases. The effort
for carers required to engage with and monitor all these interventions can
be significant.

The use of new technology can help people live independently and
reassure carers about the risks presented by people with dementia living
in the community. Equipment is now available that, when used
appropriately, can extend independent life by reducing risk.

® 'Getting Personal? - Making personal budgets work for people with dementia” Alzheimer's Society,

2011

7Page 155



The size of the challenge

The Greckdown of the population
with dementia ocoss the UK,

Dernentla ls-most comman in older people
but younger people {under 65) con get it too.

£0-64 ywors £5-69 yeors
1in 1,400 1in100

UK total

7G-79 ysars 80+ years
1in2s ting

Source: Alrheimer s Saciety, 2012 Alzheimer's
nizheimers.org.uk Society

Page 156



3.0

31

3.2

3.3

3.4

The Sheffield Vision for People with Dementia and their Carers

in February 2009 the National Dementia Strategy was launched. It is
designed to transform the lives of people with dementia and their
carers. The Strategy outlines objectives to improve the quality of
services for people with dementia and their carers. See Appendix A
for details

The key recommendations from the strategy are:

— Early intervention and diagnosis to reduce the need for long term
care

- A wider range of more personalised services

— Effective integration with other services

— Improved support for informal carers

— A focus on a skilled workforce delivering quality services

In September 2010 DH produced “Quality outcomes for people with
dementia: Building on the work of the National Dementia Strategy”. It
describes what the Department of Health considers as its priorities for
policy. Four key priorities were identified:

— Good quality early diagnosis and intervention for all
— Improved quality of care in general hospitals

— Living well with dementia in care homes

— Reduced use of anti-psychotic medication

In addition to priorities identified by national consultations there have
been a number of local consultations in recent years linked to the
Sheffield Dementia Strategy”. The resulting priorities identified for
people with dementia in Sheffield are:

— To live in communities that understand the impact of dementia and
support those affected

- Access to early diagnosis and treatment

— Timely information, advice and support

— Improved experience of living at home supported by integrated,
flexible and personalised support

— Greater choice of high quality support that represents good value
for money

— Greater awareness of the impact of dementia on informal carers
and better support for them

— Fewer unscheduled hospital admissions, better supported
discharge and better care in hospital

— Fewer admissions to care homes and better care for those with
dementia who live in care homes

* Sheffield Dementia Strategy, 2007

Page 157



4.0

4.1

4.2

43

— To be treated with dignity and respect by all those involved in

supporting people with dementia

Progress so far in Sheffield since 2007

Since 2007 Sheffield has been developing a joint approach
hetween health and social care to improve the experience of people
with dementia in the city. The 2007 Sheffield Dementia Strategy
anticipated some of the changes in the 2009 National Dementia
Strategy and achieved the following:

Establishing a memory service to improve diagnosis rates
Shifting resources from inpatient facilities with poor outcomes for
people with dementia to community based rapid response
services

Bringing together health and social care teams to form
community mental health teams to create an integrated
assessment and support service

Establishing a specialist home support service for people with
mental health needs including dementia

Progress on these and other changes have been routinely reported
to the Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board
— on the last occasion in October 2010. A report seeking approval to
consult on the future of Foxwood dementia resource centre went to
Cabinet in October 2010.

The table overleaf gives a detailed account of the progress so far
against the priorities set out in paragraph 3.4

Page 158



Vision

Progress so far

To live in communities that
understand the impact of
dementia and support those
affected

In 2011-12 a pilot to develop a ‘dementia friendly’

community in Shiregreen has:
— Developed community links and raised

awareness of dementia within existing local

schemes

— Explored the potential to influence the use of

open spaces to improve local services.

— Developed intergenerational opportunities
— Looked at developing local transport links
— Involved people with dementia, their families

and carers in raising awareness and
disseminating ideas.
— Explored ways to involve local shops.
— Examined ways to open up leisure and
sports facilities to people with dementia.

— Looked at developing training for specialist

and non-specialist staff
— The potential for rolling this out to other
neighbourhoods

Access to early diagnosis
and treatment

— Improved diagnosis rate to 567% of all those

estimated to have dementia — the third
highest rate for an authority in England
- Reduction in waiting times for diagnosis,

though there remains room for improvement
— Progress towards greater follow up support

from GPs for people with a non-complex
diagnosis

—  Work with Sheffield Teaching Hospitals to
identify patients with cognitive impairment

without a formal diagnosis

— Increased capacity for diagnosis within the

memory service
— Case finding activity in primary care

Timely information and
advice and support

— The establishment of dementia cafes
delivered by the Sheffield Alzheimer's

Society offering information and advice to

people who have memory problems

— An information and advice service jointly
funded by health and social care is being
developed and will be commissioned in
2012-13.

Improved experience of
living at home supported by
integrated, flexible and
personalised support

— All new referrals to social care now offer

individual budgets to develop personalised

packages of care
— A specialist mental health home support
service to support people with the most

Pa1g1e 159




Vision

Progress so far

complex needs

— Improved range of community activities for
people who receive formal day support
through the resource centres

— The establishment of the health funded rapid
response service which offers skilled
interventions to help people with complex /
acute needs remain at home

Greater choice of high
quality support that
represents good value for
money

— More people are now choosing from a wider
range of support opportunities for people
using personal budgets

— An improved range of community activities
for people who receive formal day support
through the resource centres

Greater awareness of the
impact of dementia on
informal carers and better
support for them

— In response to the Sheffield Carers Strategy,
NHS Sheffield and Sheffield City Council are
jointly commissioning a range of services
that help carers live independent lives and
improve their well-being. The new service will
commence in the autumn of 2012

Fewer unscheduled hospital
admissions, better
supported discharge and
better care in hospital

— The Dementia Programme Board and the
Right First Time project have agreed that
there are significant areas of overlap.

— Agreement to involve GPs more in following
up people with non-complex needs after a
diagnosis

— Health Foundation funded events for GPs to
support transition

— Funding secured to support the transfer of
some specialist nurse support in primary
care to support review and case finding
activities

- National Dementia CQUIN in 2012 - 2013

— Sheffield Teaching Hospitals dementia
pathway and clinical guidance launched
December 2011

— Business case approved to support
workforce development and implementation
of the pathway at Sheffield Teaching
Hospitals Royal College of Psychiatrists
National Dementia Audit for Acute Hospitals

— The Right First Time project to continue good
progress on reducing the use of anti-
psychotic medications

Fewer admissions to care
homes and better care for

— OQverall many fewer people are now
supported in care homes but people with

Page 160




Vision

Progress so far

those with dementia who
live in care homes

dementia are the group most likely to be
admitted

The establishment of a Quality in Care
Homes programme has significantly
improved understanding of the issues for
people in care homes.

Improved and coordinated monitoring of care
homes has resulted in a more systematic
approach to identifying and mitigating risk to
care home residents

The establishment of a Care Home Dementia
Forum to support the development of
dementia champions in care homes and
improve practice

The opening of a number of newly-built high
quality independent sector care homes in
Sheffield which set a new standard for the
built environment for people with dementia

To be treated with dignity
and respect by all those
involved in supporting
people with dementia

Agreement has been reached by the Dementia
Programme Board to develop a workforce
development programme which would operate at
three levels:

basic (all staff at induction)

intermediate (people who work with people
with dementia on a regular basis)

a leadership framework to support heads of
service/lead professionals in delivering the
programme and ensuring its implementation

Pa%e 161




5.0 Changing expectations since 2007

5.1 Even in the last 5 years since the Sheffield Dementia Strategy was
written it has become clear that older people have different
expectations about how they want to live their lives. This applies
equally to those who have dementia and those who care for them.

— More people with dementia are choosing to live at home than ever
before. This trend is expected to continue®.

— Notions about what represents good support are also changing.
Many people want to continue to do the things they have always
done. They are increasingly looking to looking to social care to
support them to do thls rather than rely on traditional, often
institutional, services®.

— Consultations with carers in 2010 reported that’many people with
dementia have not been offered support following diagnosis and
this has increased the sense of isolation. Increasingly families are
looking for support and advice before they need more intensive
support.

— Many people have found it difficult to access support when it is
needed and experienced delays in processing requests for
help*.They are looking for earlier intervention to help them resolve
issues before they become a crisis.

— Whilst carers of people with dementia still need opportunities for a
break to allow them to live their own lives they also want the support
offered to the person with dementia to be of a high standard. They
expect it to be personallsed — reflecting the interests and abilities of
the person they care.®

— They are also looking for support to be flexible, at times which suit
them or when they are facing a crisis.

® Dementia UK, 2007
® Users of Social Care Personal Budgets — National Audit Office, July 2011

Report on Resource Centre De-commissioning Consultation - Octeber 2010 - January 2011
® Review of Carer Breaks for People with Dementia and their Carers in Sheffield, 2007

Page 162



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.9

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

What do we need to do to modernise in the next five years?

To take account of the changing expectations and developing practice
we now need to think again about what works best for people affected
by dementia in Sheffield. There are already many ideas about how
change can be brought about and these are set out below. However it
is important that people in Sheffield are given the opportunity to shape
these and contribute ideas of their own. This will begin with a major
engagement exercise to test these ideas and learn from those most
affected about what works for them.

Local dementia alliances can bring together the community within a
locality to raise awareness of issues facing local people with dementia,
to promote the dementia declaration and to take forward actions to
improve the lives of people living with dementia and support
development of dementia friendly communities.

We can build on the local learning from the dementia friendly
communities pilot in Shiregreen to enable all areas of Sheffield to better
support people with dementia.

We can improve information and advice so that all people with
dementia and their carers will have access to a comprehensive
information and advice service. This will help them identify ways of
living well with dementia before more formal support is needed and
then make that transition easier. We need to begin this in advance of
the wider engagement to take advantage of Government funding
opportunities.

We need to develop capacity for people with more complex needs to
have individualised support, using community resources, alongside an
integrated range of more formal health and social care interventions to
reduce the likelihood of admission to a care home.

Providing opportunities for carers to have a break — both planned and
in a crisis - enables them to live their own lives and be confident about
the support offered to the person with dementia.

By improving the way health and socia! care and other public services
work together to support people to live at home we can be more
efficient and improve the experience of people with dementia.

By ensuring that investment in services continues to represent good
value for money we can enable resources to be targeted to where the
need is greatest.

Working with the City's Right First Time project we need to reduce the
likelihood of someone being admitted to hospital because there is
insufficient support available to them in the community. Similarly we
need to make it possible for people with dementia to be discharged

Pa%e 163



6.10

7.0

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

from hospital in a way that is safe and timely and for the levels of
community support to be adequate to sustain them.

As part of the Quality in Care Homes Board priorities we need to make
sure that people with dementia are treated with dignity and respect
whichever care home they live in.

How we plan to involve others in this modernisation

We want to give all those affected by dementia, and those who work
with them, the opportunity to genuinely shape the future of support in
Sheffield. This is a chance for people to have their say about what
works and what doesn't. 1t is also intended to begin a debate about
what might be possible if we are genuinely open to new ways of
working.

This opportunity will last three months and will include people with
dementia, their carers, staff and relevant stakeholders. The questions
to be asked are:

— How can Sheffield communities better understand the needs of
people with dementia so that living at home is a safe and positive
option?

~  What types of support work best for people with dementia living at
home?

—  What are the features of good support for carers of people with
dementia?

— How can we facilitate change but protect existing users of services?

- How can health and social care providers work closer together for
the benefit of people with dementia?

These questions will be posed to:

— Community groups and organisations

— People who may need services in the future

— People who are supported using the current arrangements

— Staff working in the current support services

— Other staff working with people affected by dementia

— Current and future providers of support

— Other interested parties including NHS Sheffield, housing providers,
the wider council and the voluntary community and faith sector

The methodology will vary dependent on the capacity of the individuals
involved. It will include carers and it is also planned to work with the
Alzheimer's Society and others to ensure that people with dementia
themselves have a say in how support is arranged.

There are some existing mechanisms for involving people, including
the Community Dementia Forum and carers groups supported by the

Page 164



7.6

7.7

7.8

8.0
8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

resource centres, but opportunities will be given for online and face to
face meetings with individuals through evidence gathering sessions.

It is also planned to use creative techniques to capture the feelings
and aspirations of individuals affected by dementia.

In addition it is intended to establish a group of lay people who are
willing to help understand what the responses are telling us and act as
an advisory group on implementation.

The results of the involvement exercise will be brought back to Cabinet
for final decision.

Financial Implications

The council’s current overall investment in supporting people with
dementia is an estimated £19m. This includes those people supported
in residential and nursing care. Specialist provision for people living at
home is an estimated £9m. Doing nothing to the services will not mean
that costs will remain the same because the growth in numbers of
people with dementia will change this.

To understand the consequences of the growing numbers of people
with dementia, Sheffieild Programme Board, supported by the Yorkshire
and Humber Improvement Partnership, undertook to model the
financial impact of the demographic changes. The modelling assumed
that without changes that supported early intervention there would be a
combined additional cost to both health and social care of £3.5m by
2019.

In contrast the model also predicts that through the key interventions
such as those set out in the vision there is the potentiai for combined
annual savings of £2.4m by 2019, Without change the additional costs
to Sheffield City Council for care home placements alone will be £1.4m
each year.

These assumptions were based on continued growth in the number of
people admitted to care homes and hospital in line with the
demographic changes. The evidence was that early intervention not
only allowed people to remain at home longer but also reduced the cost
of funding care.

The Council in its March 2012 Budget Report made it clear that access
to adult social care services was to be maintained at current levels and
to protect frontline services as far as possible. It confirmed that
supporting and protecting communities is a key objective. It made it
clear that this is “...about making the best possible use of our
resources to meet the needs of Sheffield and its people. This means
protecting services for people that most need extra help and support

Pagre 165



8.6

8.7

9.0
91

9.2

8.3

10.0
101

10.2

from the Council and focusing our investment on efficient services that
people and local communities really need”

As part of the overall savings required there are target savings of
£385,000 set against this area in 2012-13 on an annual budget of
£3.9m

All Local authorities have been awarded one-off funding to improve
dementia memory services. Sheffield's allocation is £112,000. The
allocation of this funding was not made until late 2011/12 and a request
has been made to Members to earmark this amount into a reserve

for spend in 2012-13. It is proposed to begin the commissioning of this
service prior to the planned involvement exercise to ensure that funding
requirements are met. The details of this are set out in Appendix C.

Legal Implications

The Council's involvement process must be planned appropriately
(including consideration of equality issues) with those who will be
affected by the proposals, ensuring that they are offered the
opportunity to comment and that the Council responds to any issues
raised

The Council must have regard to their duty under the Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 to eliminate discrimination that is unlawful and
to promote equality of opportunity between disabled persons and other
persons. The Duty to Promote Disability Equality: Statutory Code of
Practice recognises that it will not always be possible for authorities to
adopt the course of action which will best promote disability equality
but when making the decision, due regard must be given to the
requirement to promote disability equality alongside other competing
requirements.

The Initial Equality Impact Assessment attached, addresses the need
to ensure that any subsequent proposals will not have a
disproportionate impact on any one group of people and this will be
further considered during the involvement exercise.

Human Resources

It is recognised there may be changes that may follow on that will
provide concerns for staff. In the event of this, staff and Trade Unions
will be fully consulted on any specific proposals that may affect them.

The full implications for staff including redeployment and redundancy
options will be fully explored as part of this process.

Page 166



11.0
111

12.0
121

12.2

12.3

12.4

13.0

Environmental & Sustainability

It is not anticipated that there will be any negative impact upon the
environment caused by these proposals.

Equality of Opportunity

An Initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been completed
(See Appendix B)

The groups most affected by dementia are
- Older people due to the age related nature of the condition
- Women as more survive to an older age than men
- BME communities because of the lower early diagnosis rates
- Carers who often undertake the burden of supporting people
with dementia

The involvement exercise will:

- Follow good practice to ensure it is accessible and
representative.

- Monitor engagement with protected groups throughout the
process, and address gaps where required

- Carry out equality monitoring of responses where appropriate.

- Carry out equality analysis of findings/key themes/issues etc, by
protected groups where appropriate.

The EIA concludes that the issues to be considered as part of the
involvement exercise do not adversely impact our statutory equality
or human rights duties

Recommendations

It is recommended that Cabinet:-

e Confirms its commitment to people with dementia and the families,
communities and organisations who support them.

« Endorses the strategic approach to addressing the changing
aspirations and the environment in which support is delivered,
including the intention to make Sheffield a dementia friendly city.

« Authorises a major involvement exercise with those affected by
dementia to ensure that change fully reflects their views. A report on
the outcome will be brought back to Cabinet for consideration.

e Agrees to establish an advisory group who will support officers
undertaking the involvement exercise.

« Agrees, in advance of the wider discussions, to develop proposals
for the commissioning of an information, advice and support
service.

Pagge 167



APPENDIX A: National Dementia Strategy (extract)

Objective 6: Inproved community personal support services.

Provision of an appropriate range of services to support people with dementia
living at home and their carers. Access to flexible and reliable services,
ranging from early intervention to specialist home care services, which are
responsive to the personal needs and preferences of each individual and take
account of their broader family circumstances. Accessible to people living
alone or with carers, people who pay for their care privately, through personal
budgets, or through local authority-arranged services.

A comprehensive community personal support service would provide:

home care that is reliable, with staff who have basic training in
dementia care;

flexibility to respond to changing needs, not determined by rigid time
slots that prevent staff from working alongside people rather than doing
things for them;

access to personalised social activity, short breaks and day services;
access to peer support networks;

access to expert patient and carer programmes;

responsiveness to crisis services;

access to supported housing that is inclusive of people with dementia;
respite care/breaks that provide valued and enjoyable experiences for
people with dementia as well as their family carers;

flexible and responsive respite care/breaks that can be provided in a
variety of settings including the home of the person with dementia;
independent advocacy services; and assistive technologies such as
telecare.

Page 168



APPENDIX B: Equality Impact Assessment | Shefﬁeld

City Council

Name of policy/project/decision:
Transforming Services for People with Dementia Living at

Home -_— o

Status of policy/project/decision: New

Name of person(s) writing EIA: Howard Waddicor
Date: 14/5/12 Service: SCaP
Portfolio: Communities

What are the brief aims of the policy/project/decision? To improve the
quality and range of services to support peopie at home

Are there any potential Council staffing implications, include workforce
diversity? Yes

Areas of possible | Impact Impact | Explanation and evidence
impact level
Age Positive High Dementia is an age related condition.

The Sheffield Health Needs
assessment shows a projected
increase in late onset dementia in
Sheffield from 6,137 in 2010 to 8,292
in 2025, an increase of 74%. The
greatest increase in prevalence of
dementia in Sheffield is predicted to
occur for those people aged 80 and
over. The changes are anticipated to
allow people to remain at home as
long as possible with the right type of
support

Disability Positive High Critical to a positive outcome for this
and all groups affected is an
integrated, whole-system approach to
transforming services. This requires
dedicated resources to manage the
project throughout the stages.

Pregnancy Neutral No disproportionate impact anticipated
Imaternity
Race Positive Medium | There is evidence from a report

compiled by the NHSS Community
Development BME Mental Health
Team that some BME communities
are unable to gain early diagnosis and
support because of shortcomings in
the way symptoms are understood
and a reluctance to attend GP
services. Following diagnosis the
existing support arrangements are not

Pa%e 169



Areas of possible
impact

Impact

Impact
level

Explanation and evidence

always flexible or culturally
appropriate. Though the number of
BME elders is currently low the
numbers are due to increase. The
numbers of Pakistani elders 65+ will
increase by 250 by 2025. The
proposed changes may reduce
investment in traditional services and
increase opportunities for funding for
people from BME communities to
access social care support in a more
personalised flexible way

The revised information and advice
service will be expected to work with
existing BME organisations to ensure
that there is a wider understanding of
the need for early diagnosis and
support for people with dementia.

Religion/belief

Positive

Low

Recent prevention work with the
Muslim Elders Support project has
identified the potential of using faith
based sessions to broaden
understanding of the impact of poor
lifestyles on the level of vascular
dementia in communities. A
preventative approach has the
potential to reduce this in the long
term by reducing the number of
strokes

Sex

Positive

Medium

There are more older women than
men so there are proportionately more
women with dementia. In addition the
Sheffield Carers Strategy shows that
most caring is done by women.
Improvements in support to carers, as
proposed in these changes, will
reduce the burden of caring for people
with dementia

Sexual orientation

Positive

Medium

Dementia has the potential to have a
profound impact on the lives of the
individual and those who care for
them. The purpose of the change is to
help reduce the impact of the
condition by providing personalised
support in a way that allows people to
live a normal life for as long as

Page 170




Areas of possible | Impact Impact | Explanation and evidence

impact level
possible.

Transgender Neutral No disproportionate impact anticipated

Financial Positive The National Dementia Strategy 2009

inclusion, poverty, and the Sheffield Carer Breaks

social justice, Strategy for People with Dementia

cohesion or 2006 both highlighted the significant

carers impact on carers of looking after
someone with dementia. The
involvement exercise will give carers
the opportunity to shape the way
support is offered to people with
dementia.

Voluntary, Neutral No disproporticnate impact anticipated

community & faith

sector

Other/additional: | Negative High Those people with dementia are

Existing service amongst the most vulnerable people

users living at home. By the nature of the
condition change can be difficult for
some.users. Any transitions need to
be carefully managed to reduce the
impact

Pa%a 171




Action plan

Area of impact

Action and mitigation

l.ead, timescale
and how it will be
monitored/review
ed

All groups Howard Waddicor -
- Follow good practice to ensure the | Planned Cabinet
exercise is accessible and report for May 2012
representative. Involvement June -
- Monitor engagement with protected | August 2012
groups throughout the process, and
address gaps where required
- Carry out equality monitoring of
responses where appropriate.
- Carry out equality analysis of
findings/key themes/issues etc, by
protected groups where
appropriate.
All groups We will involve people with dementia and, Howard Waddicor -
separately, their carers through the June to August
Community Dementia Forum hosted by the 2012
Alzheimer's Society and other groups.
Workforce SHSC will meet with staff through appropriate | SHSC by August
meetings including the Trade Unions 2012
All groups All stakeholders will be involved appropriately | Howard Waddicor
in developing the model. This will include GPs | by August 2012
as part of the 'Right First Time Project’
All groups The strategic approach will be shared at the Richard Webb by
Dementia Programme Board chaired by August 2012
Richard Webb
All groups Proposals for change will include a risk Howard Waddicor -
management plan for existing users and by April 2012

carers to ensure that any changes have the
minimum impact on this group

Page 1/2




APPENDIX C: Proposals for improving information and Advice Service

Sheffield has received £112,000 as a one-off payment. The conditions
attached to the funding require “PCTs and local authorities to agree
appropriate areas of investment in memory services and the oufcomes
expected from this investment. This could, for example, include provision of
advice and support including information about local care and support
services; follow up and review setvices including peer support, assessment of
carers’ needs and advice and support on planning for the future.

The Department of Health expects that decisions about the use of this funding
will take into account the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for local
populations, and the existing commissioning plans for both health and social
care. PCTs should work with local authorities to achieve these oufcomes in a
transparent, efficient and integrated manner, with local authorities keeping
PCTs informed of progress using appropriate local mechanisms.”

- It is proposed that Sheffield looks at its existing investment in this type
of support and both health and social care jointly commission a service
that is appropriate for, and available to, all people with a diagnosis and
the people who care for them.

- Prior to developing a specification it is intended to work with interested
organisations to ensure that an innovative and cost effective service is
developed. It is expected that this will include contributions from
existing users of the service. The outcome of this process will
determine the procurement arrangements.

Pagse 173



Page 174



	Agenda
	10 Review of Care4you Resources Centres
	11 Lowfield MyPlace (U-mix) Project
	12 Learning Provision for Young People and Adults in Sheffield
	13 Transforming Support for People with Dementia Living at Home

